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This Prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the listing regulations of the Bermuda Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the Information contained in this
Prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries that, to the best of thelr knowledge and belief there are no other facts, the omission of which
would make any statement hereln misleading.

The Bermuda Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes no representations as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any lability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon any part of the contents of this Prospectus,

Terms used in this Prospectus are as defined in the section headed “Definitions”.

The details contained in this Prospectus are applicable as at the date of this Prospectus. This Prospectus is subject to updating and it is the responsibility of
anyone relying on its contents to ensure that it is the most current version and that no corrections or revisions have been made, investors should read the
whole of this Prospectus,

This Prospectus is important. You are advised to It your lawyer, bank manager, or other professional adviser, who speciallses in advising on the
acquisition of shares and other securities before investing In the securities offered in this Prospectus. investment In the Shares involves above average
risk and your attention is drawn to Section Four "Risk Factors” in this Prospectus. The investment Is anly suitable for sophisticated or professional
Investors.

No company in the Investec Group [as defined in the section “Definitions” below] makes any representations or gives any warranties or undertakings with
regard to the suitabrlity of any investment in the Shares or the accuracy of this Prospectus and Investors should obtain independent legal, tax, accounting,

nvestment and other relevant advice when contemplating any investment in the Company.

The Directors do not propose to market the Shares or send this Prospectus, to Investors domiciled or with 2 registered office in any Member State of the
European Economic Area ("EEA"), the United Kingdom {*UK”) or The United States of America {"US").

The Companies and Inteltectual Property Commission of South Africa {“CIPC”) takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes no
representations as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
any part of the contents of this Prospectus.

Signed on this 18 September 2023

For: Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited

Javine Lewis David Stepheuson
Signed by Duly Authorised Director Signed by Duly Authorised Director
name: Janine Lewis Name: David Stephenson

¥eri Lawcasi'er-ldimj.

Signed by Duly Authorised Director

Name' Keri Lancaster-King
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DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this Prospectus, unless the context requires otherwise:-

“A Class Shares”

The "A” class ordinary shares in the Company, as described in Section One of this Praspectus, ISIN number GGOOB29NFI788loomberg ticker: OPTIVGR GU

“Administration Agreement”

The agreement between the Administrator, the Company and the Investment Adviser in terms of which the Administrator has been engaged to provide
administration, registrar and secretarlal services

"Administrator” and/for “Designated Manager” and/or “Company Secretary and Designated Firm”

Sanne Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited (a Guernsey registered company number 43046}, (formerly Praxis Fund Services Limited), 1 Royal Plaza, Royal
Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL

“Aggregate Minimum Subscription”

A minimum aggregate of 5,000 (five thousand) Shares being subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus and/or retained by existing shareholders in the
Company, with an approximate value of some GBP3,135 per Share

“Annual and Listing Spansar”

Clarien B5X Services Limited (registration number 24587)

“Application Form®

The application form available from the Distributor or the Administrator, to be tompleted by an Investor wishing to subscribe for Shares

“Articles of Incorporation” or “Articles”

The articles of incorporation of the Company as amended or replaced from time to time

"Auditor”

Grant Thornton Limited

“B Class Shares”

The "B” class ordinary shares in the Company, as described in Section One of this Prospectus, 151N number GGO0BFSOHRS2 Bloomberg ticker OPTIVGR GLJ.

"Business Day"

Any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday, on which banks are normally open for full banking business in Guernsey

"Cail Date"

The First Call Date and every quarterly date thereafter
"Call Option”

The Debt Issuer's right to elect to redeem the Debt Instruments an the Call Date
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"ciect

The Companies and Intellectual Property Commission of South Africa

"Company"

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited, a Guernsey authorised company, registration number 42302 of 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter Port,
Guernsey, GY1 2HL. The registered office address is also the business address of the Directors of the Company and the principal operating address of the
Company

"Company's Funds”

The total subscription monies received from Investors on the Fifth Closing Date, less all Front End Fees, plus the aggregate EIS Price of the Existing Issued
Shares retained by existing Shareholders in the Company

"Credit Event”

Bankruptcy, Failure to Pay, Obligation Acceleration, Restructuring, Repudiation/Moratorium and Government Intervention, as such terms are defined in the
2014 Credit Derivative Definitions of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association

*CRS”
Common Reporting Standard

“Debt Instruments Maturity Date”
The date thatis

1} a maximum of 6 years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments if the Debt Instruments are senior Debt Instruments;
2} a maximum of 10 years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments if the Debt Instruments are subordinated Instrument

"Debt Instruments”

1)  Unsecured USD denominated senior debt instruments, to be issued by the Debt Issuer by not later than 5{five} Business Days, or as close as
possible, after the Trade Date, which debt instruments
. may contain a Call Option, as further described in Section Two "Capital Preservation” in this Prospectus; and
- have a First Call Date that is 5{five) years after the issue date of the Debt instruments.
The debt instruments may be credit linked, where the payment of interest and principal is contingent on the credit performance or credit
deterioration of each Reference Entity, in the proportion equal to the percentage determined in respect of each Reference Entity as referred to
in the definition of Reference Entity;

or
2} Unsecured USD denominated subordinated debt instruments that rank as tier 2 capital of the Debt Issuer In terms of applicable laws and
regulations, issued by the Debt Issuer not later than S{five) Business Days after the Trade Date, which debt instruments

- contain a Call Option, as further described in Section Two “Capital Preservation” in this Prospectus; and
- have a First Call Date that is S{five) years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments;

Investors’ attention is drawn to the "Risks associated with the Debt Instruments” in Section Four.
"Debt Issuer”
18L or another debt issuer to be selected by the Investment Adviser, which debt issuer will have a long-term rating equal to or better than IBL’s rating

“Directars® or "The Board”

Directors of the Company

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/2024) Fage 5|70



"Distributor”

An entity or persan approved by the Directors and party to a Distribution Agreement through which the Investor may be introduced, or have access, to the
Company, If not directiy

"Distribution Agreement"

The agreement entered or to be entered into between the Company and the relevant Distributor, on terms to be finalised by the Directors, pursuant to
which agreement the Distributor will be paid an annual fee as more fully described in Section One “Commissians or Distribution Fees Paid” in this Prospectus

“EIS Prica”

The Fair Market Value per Share as reviewed by the Auditor on the Fourth Termination Date, which price is estimated to be between USD2,614 and USDA4,000
per Share. New B Class Shares shall be issued at the EIS Price, Each new A Class Share shall be issued at an amount that is the GBP equivalent of the EIS Price
as calculated at the Fourth Termination Date.

“Equity Expasure”

A targeted basket of offshore indices, namely the Nikkei 225 {20%), S&P500 {40%), EurostexxS0 (25%) and i5hares M50 Emerging Markets EFF (15%) or an
alternative world index/s, or exchange traded fund with equity exposure as determined by the Investment Adviser to the Company

*Equity Investment Provider(s}”

An international bank(s) or an entity{ies) in the group of companies of an international bank(s), with a long-term credit rating of at least A (Standard & Poors)
as selected by the Investment Adviser

“Equity Linked Investment(s})"

An equity investmentis) linked to an investment in the form of a note, a warrant or an over the counter traded option transaction, issued by an Equity
Investment Provider(s) as further described in Section Two “Upside Linked to Equity” in this Prospectus

“Existing Issued Shares” or {"EIS™)

The issued Shares in the Company as at the date of this Prospectus

"Expense Pravision"

An estimated 0.5% of the Company’s Funds

"FATCA"

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

"Fair Market Value per Share™

The fair market value of each Share as determined by the Investment Adviser on the first Business Day of each month (as reviewed by the Auditor on the
Termination Date or the liquidator on a winding vp) acting in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner

"Fifth Closing Date”

24 November 2023, or a later date as the Directors may decide but not later than 28 November 2023
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* Fifth Offering” or “This/The Offer” or “This Qffering”

50% of the Existing Issued Shares are estimated to remain invested in the Company plus a minimum of 1,000 new A Class Shares and 10,000 B Class Shares
are estimated to be issued, which would equate to a minimum total of approximately 9,400 A Class Shares and 16,500 B Class Shares being issued against
the EIS Price pursuant to this Prospectus

"Fifth Opening Date”

The later of 22 September 2023 or the date on which the Prospectus has been registered with CIPC

“Fifth Redemption Date”

The date of redemption of the Shares, being the date 5 business days after the Fifth Termination Date

"Fifth Termination Date”

Either: (i} the Call Date if the Debt lssuer exercises the Call Option in accordance with its terms;
or

{ii) the maturity date of the Debt Instruments, being up to ten years from the issue date of such Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer does not
exercise the Call Option in accordance with its terms,

as the case may be

"First Call Date”

The date that is S{five) years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments
“First Offering”

10,434,000 Ordinary Shares in the Company issued to Shareholders at GBP1,000.00 per Ordinary Share on 15 November 2004

"Fourth Offering *

29,755,700 Shares in the Company issued to Shareholders, consisting of 16,752.946 A Class Shares at a price of GBP1,946.96 per A Share and 13,002.754 B
Class Shares at price of USD2,490.16 per B Class Share on 28 November 2018

"Fourth Redemption Date"

The date of redemption of Shares, being the date that is 5 business days aRer the Fourth Termination Date

"Fourth Termination Date"

Either: {i} the Call Date if the debt issuer exercises the call option of the debt instrument, currently held by the Company, in accordance with its terms;

or

[il} the maturity date of the debt instrument, currently held by the Company., being ten years from the Issue date of such debt instrument, if the
debt Issuer does not exercise the call option in accordance with its terms,

as the case may be
“Forelgn Portfolio Investment Allowance™

The foreign portfolio investment allowance {asset swap] granted to institutions in respect of investments, in terms of circular B2{B)iii issued by the Financial
Surveillance Department of the South African Reserve Bank
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“Front End Fee”

An amount not exceeding 2% {plus South African value added tax where applicable) of the amount subscribed for per Investor pursuant to this Prospectus
"GbP"

The lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“GFSC"

The Guernsey Financial Services Carmmission

| [

Investec Bank Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa {registration number 1969/004763/06)
“Investec Bank Pic"

Investec Bank Plc, a company registered in England and Wales with registration number 00489604

"investec Group™

Investec Limited and Investec Plc and their subsidiaries, which in¢lude Investec Bank Plc and IBL

“Investec Limited”

Investec Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa (Registration Number 1925/002833/06)
"Investec Plc*

Investec Ple, 8 company registered in England and Wales with registration number 03633621

“Investment Adviser”

Investment adviser to the Company, being Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of IBL
"Investment Adviser Agreement"”

The agreement between the Investment Adviser and the Company in terms of which the investment Adviser has been engaged to provide Investment
advisory services to the Company

"lwestment Period”
The period from the Trade Date to the Termination Date

"Investor”

Any person who may potentially subscribe for Shares in the Company, being a sophisticated or professional invester who can afford to take a higher degree
of risk, which may include the risk of the loss of his entire investment, and whe has extensive knowledge and experience in financial and business matters
and is capable of evaluating the merits and risks associated with an investment in the Company

*Last Practicable Date”

The last practicable date prior to the finalisation of this Prospectus
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“Law"
The Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008 as amended, extended or replaced and any Ordinance, statutory instrument or regulation made thereunder
"Management Shares”

The Management Shares with a par value of GBP1 each having the rights and entitlements set out in the Articles

"Minimum Subscription Amount”

The subscription price per Share will be equal to the EIS Price or the GBP equivalent therecf, however subscriptions for investment may not be less than
GBP10,500 for Class A Shares ar USD12,000 for Class B Shares

*Memorandum”

The Memorandum of Incarporation of the Company as amended or replaced from time to time

"Potential Failure to Pay"

A Potential Failure to Pay, as defined in the 2014 Credit Derivative Definitions of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
"Promaoter”

Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of 1BL

“the Proportionate Recovery Percentage”

The recovery percentage of an obligation of an applicable Reference Entity, determined by the Issuer, acting in a reasonable and commercial manner,
calculated on the proportion that the applicable Reference Entity bears in refation to the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt instruments, as referred to
in the definition of Reference Entity

“Prospectus®

This document as registered with or withaut supplements.

“Redemption Date”

Either the Fourth Redempticn Date or Fifth Redemption Date (as the context requires)

"Reference Entity”

One or more local and/or international banks to be selected by the Investment Adviser on or before the Trade Date, each with a long-term rating equal to
or better than IBL's rating, in the proportion of the nominal amount of the Debt Instruments, the specific propertion of which is to be recommended by the
lnvestment Adviser to the Directors on or befere the Trade Date

"Registrar”

Sanne Fund Services [Guernsey) Limited

"Register of Shareholders”

The register of Shareholders of the Company kept by the Administrator
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"Rules”

The rules applying to an authorised closed-ended investment companies in Guernsey lssued by the GFSC
"Second Offering”

17,124.443 Ordinary Shares in the Company issued to Shareholders at GBP1,354.56 per Ordinary Share on 17 November 2009

"Shareholder”

A holder of Shares in the Company

“Shares”

The A Class Shares having a par value of GBP0.01 each and the B Class Shares having a par value of USD0.01 each in the capital of the Company, as well as
fractions of such ordinary shares, as the context requires. All other rights attributed to the A Class or B Class Shares are identical

"South African Companles Act”

The Companies Act. No. 71 of 2008 of the Republic of South Africa

"Special Resolution"

A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 75% of the votes of the Shareholders entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy and voting, at the
meeting convened with the proper notice of the meeting having been provided to Shareholders

"Termination Date"

Either the Fourth Termination Date or the Fifth Termination Date, as the context requires
“Third Offering”

20,073.284 Ordinary Shares in the Company issued to Sharcholders at GBP1,733.01 per Ordinary Share on 18 November 2014

‘Trade Date"

Any date that is no later than 25 Business Days after the Fifth Closing Date, being the date on which the Company will invest the Company's Funds

"the Trust"

The trust known as The Basket Trust constituted by a declaration of trust dated 2 September 2009 and made by Praxis Trustees Limited {registered number
16783).

“usp*
The lawful currency of the United States of America

“US-Guernsey IGA”

As defined In the section of this Prospectus headed “Risk Factors — FATCA and similar measures”

“Write-Off"

A partial or total write-off of the Debt Instruments as described in Section Four “Risks associated with Debt Instruments®
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SECTION ONE: Information about the Company whose securities are being offered
1. Name, Address and Incorporation Information

The Company was incorporated in Guernsey on 9 September 2004 with registration number 42302. The registered office and business address of the
Company is 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL. The Company is neither a holding company nor 2 subsidiary. The Company has
an unlimited life, The Administrator will act as the transfer agent. The registered office and business address of the Administrator is 1 Royal Plaza, Royal
Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1GR,

The Directors particularly draw Investors” attention to the following restrictions:
South Africa

Under Section 99(1)[b) of the South African Companies Act, the Memorandum and Articles of the Company together with the names and addresses of the
Directors will be filed with the South African Companies and Inteltectual Property Commission once the Prospectus Vetting Committee of the South African
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission has completed its review of this Prospectus. The Company is a Guernsey authorised closed-ended
investment company listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange. The Directors’ and Auditor's reports are made with every ethical degree of care and skill. The
Directors’ integrity and good governance is measured by the transparency of reporting to the regulatory and listing authorities under which the Company is
registered and listed and wherever practically possible the Company has made every effort to comply with the King Committee Principals on governance for
South Africa {King I} and will make every effort to comply with applicable Principles of the King Committee Principles on Governance for South Africa 2016
[King 1v}.

South African Investors may utilise the following investment options and are encouraged to discuss these further with their Distributor:

L] Offshore allowances {or any South African Reserve Bank approved offshore allowance)
. Disclosed amnesty and foreign assets

" International assets held by South African investors

. Foreign Partfolio Investment Allowance facility {asset swap)

Enforcement of this Prospectus by South African courts may be limited by the effect of Jaws of general application in South Africa relating to, or generally
affecting, the scope of application of South African law, the geographical area of application of South African law, and the rights of parties to contracts,
agreements, and undertakings, including the principles of public policy and interpretation,

United States of America

The Shares have not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 {the “1933 Act"}, nor has the Company been registered under the United
States investment Company Act of 1940, or any state law. Except in a transaction which does not violate such Acts, the Shares may not be directly or
indirectly offered, sold or delivered in the United States {as defined in Regulation 5 under the 1933 Act) or to or for the account of any US person (as defined
in Regulation 5 under the 1933 Act], or to any person purchasing the Shares for re-offer, delivery or transfer in the United 5tates or to any US person as part
of the distribution of such Shares. The Shares may not be acquired by any person subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

United Kingdom

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. In particular the communication constituted
by this Prospectus is directed at persons who {i) are outside the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland; or (i) have professional experience in matters
relating to investments, or {iii} are persons faliing within Articie 49{2){a) to (d) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 {Financial Promotion) Order
2001 (all such persons together referred to as “relevant persons”). This communication must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant
persons. Any investment or investment activity to which this communication refates Is available only to relevant persons and will be engaged in only with
relevant persons.

Bermuda

There is na intention to market the Shares to residents of Bermuda.

Guernsey

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Guernsey under the provisions of the Law as a non-cellular company limited by shares and s
registered with the GFSC as an authorised closed-ended investment company. This Prospectus may only be distributed or circulated directly or indirectly in
ar from within the Bailiwick of Guernsey by persons licensed to do so by the GFSC under the Protection of Investors {Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020, as
amended. The Company complies with the GFSC's "Finance Sector Code of Corporate Governance” (the "Code") which applies to all companies that hold a
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license from the GFSC under the regulatory laws or which are authorised as an investment company, the Code is similar ta the applicable Principles of the
King Committee Principles on Governance for South Africa 2016 {King Iv).

The Company is registered for FATCA under GIIN HOXICZ.99999.5L.831.

The Company’s LEl number is 213800FH2PYPVYYF8XG23

2 Directors, Other Office Holders or Third Parties

The Directors of the Company are Janine Lewis, David Stephenson and Keri Lancaster-King. More details about the Directors, their occupations and
experience are provided below. The Directors are appointed as directors of the Company in terms of the Administration Agreement, The Directors’
appointment is indefinite and will continue until the Company is liquidated or they resign or are removed fram office or the Administration Agreement is
terminated.

The registered office address of the Company is also the business address of the Directors of the Company.

As described in the Administration Agreement, an annual fee (which includes the appointment and services of 3{three) Directors) is paid to the Administrator,
The Directors are indemnified through directors’ and officers’ insurance which includes professional indemnity cover for work undertaken on behalf of the
Cormpany,

Janine Lewis (British)

Born in 1965, Janine is a resident of Guernsey residing at Coco De Mer, Folie Lane, Vale, Guernsey, GY3 550 and is a director of the Administrator. She has
worked in the finance industry for aver 40 years, qualifying as a Chartered Company Secratary in 1995 and becoming an Assaciate of the Institute in 1996,
Janine has worked in the funds industry for the past 25 years where she has been involved in the establishment and administration of various funds, varying
in complexity but in particular has concentrated on structured products and property funds, listed on various exchanges.

Janine holds the following directorships:

Advanced investment Holdings Limited International Titans Basket Limited

Asia Pacific Basket Limited Sanne Directors {Guernsey) Limited

Britannic Opportunities Limited Investec W& International PCC Limited {as alternate director)
China Seas Basket Limited Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited

East Asian Growth Basket Limited Fundstore International Fund PCC Limited {as alternate director)
Pangbourne Asset Management (Channel Islands) Limited DPIF Plaza holdings Limited

Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited DPIF CIC Holdings Limited

Diverse Property Income Fund Limited DPIF LLS holdings Limited

DPIF Ford Holdings Limited Tenzing PE General Partner Limited

Butterfield Bank PCC Limited

David Stephenson (British)

Born in 1962, David is a resident of Guernsey residing at Riniac, Route de Cobo, Castel, Guernsey, GYS 7UH and is a senlor manager in the financial reporting
team at the Administrator. David has worked in the finance industry for over 35 years, having trained at Coopers and Lybrand before jolning Investec Trust
Guernsey in 1987. He served as Financial Controller at Investee Trust Guernsey, before switching to a fund accounting role with the Administrator, David
has significant fund experience having worked with various fund profiles including listed investment and property funds, private equity and structured
products.
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David holds the following directorships:

Advanced Investment Holdings Limited East Asian Growth Basket Limited

Asla Pacific Basket Limited International Titans Basket Limited
Britannic Opportunities Limited Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited
China Seas Basket Limited Sanne Directors (Guernsey) Limited

Keri Lancaster-King {British}

Born in 1979, Keri Is a resident of Guernsey at Papillonner, Cordier Hill, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1JH. She is a director of the Administrator. After
working abroad, she started her fund administration career managing a company secretarial team at Investec Administration Services Limited which was
acquired by PraxisIFM Group in 2009. In December 2021 the entire fund administration arm of PraxisIFM group was acquired by Sanne Group Plc and in
August 2021 Sanne Group plc was purchased by Apex Group. In 2011 she formed the new business team and now manages the responsibility for the take
on, establishment, listing and launch of all new regulated and unregulated investment funds or investment vehicles for the Administratar. She is also acts
as a director on a number of companies. Keri has a degree in English,

Keri holds the following directorships:

Advanced Investment Holdings Limited International Titans Basket Limited

Asia Pacific Basket Limited Sanne Fund Services {(Guernsey) Limited
Britannic Opportunities Limited Sanne Directors {Guernsey) Limited
China Seas Basket Limited

East Asian Growth Basket Limited

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited
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Other Office Holders or Third Parties

Annual and Listing Sponsor
Clarien BSY Services Limited
25 Reid Street,

HM11

Bermuda

Administrator, Secretary, Registrar and Nominated Firm
(also being the business address of the Directors}
Sanne Fund Services [Guernsey) Limited

1 Royal Plaza

Royal Avenue

5t Peter Port

Guernsey

GY1 2HL

Investment Adviser and Promoter

lnwestec Corporate and Institutional Banking
a division of

Investec Bank Limited

100 Grayston Drive

Sandown, Sandton

South Africa, 2196

Independent Auditar
Grant Thornton Limited
St James Place

St James Street

5t Peter Port

Guernsey

GY1 2NZ
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Bankers

Investec Bank {Channel Islands) Limited
Glategny Court Hamilton

5t Peter Port

Guernsey

GY13LP

Legal Advisers in Guernsey
Carey Olsen (Guernsey) LLP
Carey House

Les Bangques

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY14BZ

Legal Advisers in South Africa
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr inc.

11 Buitengracht Street

Cape Town

South Africa, 8001
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Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser ta the Company is Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of IBL. IBL is regulated by the South African Reserve Bank
in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 and the South African Companies Act, 2008. No criminal convictions or disciplinary actions were taken against IBL by a
securities, supervisory or other regulatory body during at least the past five years.

The directors of 1BL are as follows:

Executive Directors, being Richard John Wainwright {CEO]), Rupesh Govan {FD}, Fani Titi and Non-Executive Directors, being Mvuleni Geoffrey Qhena, Morris
Mthombeni, Zarina Bibi Mahomed Bassa, Vanessa Olver and Philip Alan Hourquebie {Chairman).

The Global Head responsible for the Corporate and Institutional Banking division of IBL is Mr Lourens Janse van Rensburg of Villa 55, 279 Sidney Street,
Waterkloof Village, South Africa. Mr Janse van Rensburg has a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours; Financial Management) degree from the University of
Potchefstroom, a Certificate of Theory of Accounting {*CTA") degree from the University of Potchefstroom, is a qualified Chartered Accountant and also
holds a CFA. Mr. Janse van Rensburg completed his articles with Coopers & Lybrand (now Price Waterhouse Coopers) in 1998 and joined Gensec [now
Sanlam Capital Markets) where he managed the financial control of the equity derivative team, as well as risk management for the interest rate derivative
desk. He was also responsible for setting up their investment products business. Mr Janse van Rensburg, joined I1BL in 2001, working in the interest rate
structuring team, preference share funding and investment products areas. He was appointed the head of Investec Financial Froducts in 2010 and in
December 2015 was appointed executive officer of Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking.

IBL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limited {"Investec") {previously Investec Group Limited}, and 1BL is one of the S{five) largest banks in South
Africa. Investec was founded in South Africa in 1974 and is an independent international banking group that provides a specialised range of products and
services to its select clients. It has expanded through a combination of substantial organic growth and a series of strategic acquisitions in South Africa, the
United Kingdom and other countries in which the Investec Group operates. In July 2002, Investec implemented a dual listed companies structure with listings
in Johannesburg and London, For the year ended 31 March 2023, Investec had £435.1 billion in funds under management.

The Corporate and Institutional Banking Division of IBL provides a wide range of products, services and value-added solutions to select corporate clients,
public sector bodies, financial institutions, local and foreign banks and financial brokers. The Corporate and Institutional Banking Division specialises in the
creation of financial products and derivative instruments, which are designed to enhance investment values and minimise or remove potential downside
risk for investors. In view of the aforegoing IBL has the necessary expertise and experience available to fulfill its obligations under the Investment Adviser
Agreement, as the investments to be entered into by the Company, as described in this Prospectus, are of a specialised nature.

Description of the bush ged by the In Adviser

During the course of its appointment as investment adviser, the Investment Adviser shall have the duties and obligations normally assumed by an investment
adviser and in particular shall include:

{1) identifying, securing, and researching potential investments, conducting physical and legal due diligence and evaluating the same, making
recommendations to the Board regarding suitable investments and taking instructions from the Board on investment opportunities,

(2} negotiating and supervising borrowings of the Company within such limits as the Board may from time to time specify;
{3} analysing the performance of the investments and advising the Company in relation to the investments;

4 providing the Board with such information, and making such recommendations to the Board, concerning the investments as it may from time to
time request;

{3) at the Board's request providing a representative to attend meetings of the Board in connection with any of its duties specified above;

{6) providing to the Administrator all such information in relation to the investments as It may reasonably require to carry out its duties under the
Administration Agreement; and

(7 performing such other duties as may be reasonably necessary or incidental to the above or as may be agreed between the Company and the
Investment Adviser.
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Annual Fee of the Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser is entitled, for its services as investment adviser, to receive an annual fee of 0.60% of the Company’s Funds {as reduced by any
redemptions of Shares prior to the Redemption Date) payable in advance on the first Business Day of each year, until the Call Date. If the Debt Issuer does
not exercise the Call Option on the First Call Date, then the fee shall reduce to 0.15% per annum for the period subsequent to the First Call Date. The
Investment Adviser Agreement does not contain any provisions for the alteration of the Investment Adviser’s remuneration. The Investment Adviser shall
also be paid an amount equal to the amount of interest earned by the Company on such amount, caltulated from and including the date on which the
Investments (as defined in the Investment Adviser Agreement) have been made until but excluding the date of payment of the relevant amount to the
Investment Adviser.

Registration Fee

The Investment Adviser will also earn a settlement and registration fee of up to 0.75% of the total value of each early redemption transaction as set out in
Section Four “Sale Arrangemnents and Redemptions”.

Administrator

Sanne Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited, formerly Praxis Fund Services Limited, has been appeinted to act as designated administrator, company
secretary and nominated firm under the Administration Agreement. Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey} Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Apex
Acquisition Company Limited as part of Apex Group. The Apex Group emplays over 10,000 people worldwide and administers in excess of £3 trillion of
assets under a variety of structures and funds

The Administrator's registered office is 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 2HL. The Administrator Is licensed under the Protection of
Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey} Law, 2020, as amended, to conduct administration business. The Administrator has been appointed as the Nominated Firm
{such term as defined in the Commission’s Handbook on Countering Financial Crime and Terrorist Financing).

Sanne Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited employs qualified members of respective professional disciplines which include members of the Association of
Chartered and Certified Accountants and members of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

The Administrator provides a range of administration services including entity establishment and project management, carporate governance and company
secretarial services, transaction administration, accounting and financial management/reporting, safe custody, shareholder services and investor reporting,
stock exchange sponsorship and sutsourcing management,

Description of the business managed by the Administrator

The Administrator shall provide the Company with administration, registrar and company secretarial services. During the course of its appointment as
Administrator, the Administrator shall have the duties and obfigations normally assumed by an administrator and secretary and in particular shall include:-

{1} the convening of the meetings of Directors and Shareholders in accordance with the Articles and the provision from time to time if requested of
representatives of the Administrator to attend meetings, the taking of minutes and the collation of all necessary papers therefor;

{2) the keeping and updating of the statutory books and recerds of the Company;

{3) the delivery of information and ali returns required by appcable law to any competent authority in Guernsey, Bermuda or elsewhere including, in
particular, the GFSC and assistance with the reporting requirements and listing rules of the market on which the Shares may from time to time be
listed, currently the Eermuda Stack Exchange;

(4} dispatching to Sharehalders, the Directors and the Auditor and any other person entitled to receive the same or as the Company may requilre, all
circulars, natices of meetings, reports, financial statements and dealing with all other correspondence from and to Shareholders of the Company

and circulating board meeting information, at least S{five} days prior to a Board meeting, to each member of the Board and the lnvestment Adviser;

(5) the holding of meetings of Shareholders, receiving and tabulating votes cast by proxy and communicating ta the Company the results of the
tabulation;

i6) maintaining the register of Shareholders and acting as the transfer/paying agent {if applicable);
{7 administering all transfers and redemptions of Shares as described in the Prospectus and payment of the proceeds to the applicable parties;

(8) all duties to be performed by the secretary of a company under applicable law and by the secretary of the Company under the Articles;
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=13 the provision of the registered office of the Company and a place where notices may be served on the Company; and

(1) without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing performing such other administrative and company secretarial duties, obligations and functions
as the Company may from time to time agree with the Administrator.

Annual fee of the Administrator

Under the Administration Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay or procure to be paid to the Administrator, for its services as Administrator, Secretary
and Registrar a fee of 0.13% in the first year following the Trade Date and an annual fee of 0.11% of the Company’s Funds (as reduced by any redemptions
of Shares prior to the Redemption Date} payable each year thereafter until the Redemption Date. The Administrator shall also be paid an amount equal to
the amount of interest earned by the Company on such amount, cafculated from and including the date on which the investments [as defined in the
Administration Agreement) have been made until but excluding the date of payment of the relevant amount to the Administrator.

The Administrator shall also be entitled to charge disbursements incurred on behalf of the Company to the Company, which include fees for courier,
telecommunications and printing

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Administrator shall provide [3) three employees to act as Directors to the Company. The Directeor
remuneration forms part of the annual fee of the Administrator under the terms of their Agreement. The Directors appeinted will have no formal or separate
contract in place with the Company.

Transaction and Registration Fee

The Administrator will also be pald an administration fee of GBP150 {or currency equivalent) for facilitating the cash flow of the sale per Shareholder
transaction and a settlement and registration fee of up to 0.50% of the total value of each early redemption as set out in Section Four *Sale Arrangements
and Redemptions” in this Prospectus.

3, Histary, State of Affairs and Prospectus of the Company
History

The Company was incorporated on 9 September 2004 with limited liability in the Island of Guernsey under the provisions of the Law as a non-cellular
company limited by shares and is registered with the GFSC as an authorised closed-ended investment company {Registered Number 42302). Potential
investors have the history in which to evaluate the Company’s ability to achieve Its Investment Policy

First Offering

The First Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with a locked in return of between +4.5% and -4.5% per quarter depending on the actual market
perfermance of the indices.

Second Offering
The Second Offering of Qrdinary Shares provided Shareholders with 114,75% participation in GBP on the FTSE100 index,

Third Offering
The Third Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with 146.52% participation in GBP on the FTSE100 index,

Fourth Offering

The Fourth Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with 244.55% participation in a basket of indices comprising S&P500 {40%), EuroStoxx 50
{25%), Nikkei 225 (20%) and MSCI Emerging Markets [15%).

Tao the extent that the helders of the Existing Issued Shares elect not te continue to remain invested in the Company pursuant to the offer described in the
paragraph below, the Company will redeem those Existing Issued Shares on the Fourth Redemption Date by utilising the proceeds of the debt Instrument
acquired by the Company, as described in the prospectus of the Company dated 18 May 201308. The proceeds of such debt instruments will be sufficient
to enable the Company to redeem all the Existing lssved Shares in full.
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This Offering

The Company has made an Offer to the hoiders of Existing Issued Shares to elect to continue to remain invested on the Fourth Redempticn Date.
Shareholders who wish to accept the Company’s Offer must accept the Offer in writing. Written notice must be received by the Company by no later than
16 November 2023, failing which the Offer will lapse. The holders of Existing Issued Shares that do not return an election shall be disinvested from the
Company on the terms and conditions on which such Shares were issued. As part of the election, the holders of Existing Issued Shares may also subscribe
for further Ordinary Shares in the Company based on the terms and conditions set outin this Prospectus and the Articles. An Aggregate Minimum number of Shares
must be retained or subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus and election. The rights attaching to Existing Issued Shares in respect of which the Offer has been
accepted shall be as set out in this Prospectus and the Articles.

Public Company

The Law does not recognise a distinction between "public company™ or “private company” as types of company capable of registration in Guernsey. Any
conversion to a public company would therefore entail migration of the Company from Guernsey. As per the Law, Shares of the Company may not be offered
directly to the public in Guernsey but may be offered to regulated entities In Guernsey or offered to the public by entities licensed under the Protection of
Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law 2020, as amended.

Material changes to the businass of the Company

There have been no material changes to the business of the Company in the past three years.

Prospects of the business

The Company will provide Investors with a debt Investment and an equity linked investment that are structured to provide USD capital preservation on the
Company’s Funds and the patential for enhanced capital growth {denominated in USD}.

State of affairs of the business
At 30 June 2023 the Shares had a value of approximately GBP2,963.68 per Share, giving existing Shareholders a return of approximately 52.22% since
subscription in GBP, despite market valatility. The Indices selected when Shares were offered to Shareholders in the Fourth Offering were based on the high

growth potential of the indices.

The underlying table shows the value of the Company's investments since the Fourth Offering of Shares in the Company. The final column simulates the
value of the investments at the Fourth Redemption Date should the index level remain at the level for this period.

Split Inceptian Market value Indicative expiry
29.22.2018 for this overview for this overview
2,490.16 3,767.13 3,984.85

Overall share price
Issue price USDGHEP inception rate —

Mark-to-market value

USDGBP current rate —

Expiry Date

Indicative expiry value
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Immovable property

The Company has no immovable property.

Financlal commitments of the Company

The Company is an investment company and therefore has no buildings, machinery or plant.

Company financial particulars

Please refer to Annexure A of the Prospectus for further information of the Company’s turnover, profits and/or losses. The Company has tax exempt status
in Guernsey.

Dividends

The Company may pay dividends. The Directors will consider declaring a dividend if such dividend appears to be justified by the financlal position of the
Company. Any dividends paid will only be paid in line with the palicy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange and the Law.

It is envisaged that, if a Call Option is not exercised by a Debt Issuer on the First Call Date, then the Company will:

{a)

(b)

a)
b}

c}

d}

e)

g)
h)

as soon as possible after such First Call Date, declare and pay a dividend equal to the proceeds [if any} received by the Company from the Equity
Linked Investment, less taxes (if any); and

thereafter declare and pay annual dividends equal to the interest payable under such Debt Instrumentis), less costs, fees and taxes to be paid by
the Company.

Share Capital of the Company

Each Share in the Company will carry with it all the rights and privileges as contemplated in the Articles and nothing in this Prospectus shall be
construed as granting any Shareholder any right, title and interest in or to the assets or investments of the Company,

The Company has not offered its Shares to the public for subscription or sale or altered its capital during the preceding three years from the date
of this Prospectus.

The Company has a share capital comprised of Management $hares of GBP1 each and has A Class Shares of GBP0.01 each and B Class Shares of
USD0.01 each. There are 10 Management Shares in issue and the Directors do not intend to issue any further Management Shares. As at the date
of this Prospectus there are 16,752,945 A Class Shares and 13,002.754 B Class Shares In Issue. The Company is incorporated under Guernsey law
and is permitted to issue an unlimited number of shares and shares of different classes without the need for shareholder authorisation prior to
each issuance. Accordingly, the Company does not have *authorised shares” as envisaged in the South African Companies Act. New B Class Shares
shall be issued at the EIS Price, which price is estimated to be between USD2,614 and USD4,000 per Share. Each new A Class Share shall be issued
atan amount that is the GBP eguivalent of the EIS Price as calculated at the Trade Date. The 10 Management Shares in issue were issued at par and
are held by the Trust.

The Management Shares do not receive any economic benefit from the Company. These shares exist for the sole purpose of voting on purely
administrative matters at the Company’s annual general meeting only if there is no quorum of Shareholders on such date. This enables the Company
to function effectively. Prior to a redemption of all the Shares, the Management Shares can only vote on Ordinary Resolutions relating to
administrative matters such as the appointment of the Auditor, approving the annual financial statements and the Directors’ appointments. After
all the Shares have been redeemed, then the Management Shares can vote on all matters and on Ordinary and Special Resolutions.

The A Class Shares are GBP denominated shares held by each existing Shareholder wha, on the Fifth Closing Date, remain invested in the Company
as well as by each new investor who chooses to subscribe for A Class Shares in the Company,

The B Class Shares are USD denominated shares held by each existing Shareholder who, on the Fifth Clasing Date, remain invested in the Company
as well as by each new investor who chooses to subscribe for B Class Shares in the Company.

All other rights attributed to the A Class Shares and the B Class Shares are identical.

The Directors may issue fractions of Shares, and, if so issued, a fraction of a Share {calculated to three decimal places) shall be subject to and carry
the corresponding fraction of liabilities (whether with respect to any unpaid amount thereon, contribution, calls or otherwisel], limitations,
preferences, privileges, qualifications, restrictions, rights (including, without limitation, voting and participation rights) and other attributes of a
whole Share.

Except as disclosed above, no share or loan capital of the Company has been issued or agreed to be issued and no share or loan capital of the
Company is proposed to be issued or [s under option or agreed unconditionally 1o be put under option. As far as the Directors are aware no person,
other than the Trust has a direct or indirect interest of 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstance at general meetings of the Cormnpany. All Shares shall be redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date, except in respect of thase Existing
Issued Shares for which Shareholders have accepted the Company’s Offer to have their Existing Issued Shares retained in the Company. All Shares

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/2024] Page 19|70



in respect of which the Company’s Offer, to retain Shares in relation to the Fifth Offering was not accepted, shall be redeemed by the Company on
the Fourth Redemption Date.

il To the extent that the holders of the Existing Issued Shares elect not to continue to remain invested in the Company pursuant to the OFfer deseribed
In the paragraph above , the Shares not redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date shall be redeemed on the Fifth Redemption Date, unless the
holders of the Shares that were retained in the Company elect to continue to remain Invested in the Company pursuant to a subsequent offer by
the Company made prior to the Fifth Redemption Date. With regard to redemption arrangements prior to the relevant Redemption Date, refer ta
Section Four "Sale Arrangements and Redemptions” in this Prospectus.

K The rights attached to each ciass are identical so the rights may only be altered, abrogated or varied with the consent in writing of the holders of
not less than three-fourths of the issued Shares of both classes or with the sanction of a Special Resolution of the holders of the Shares of both
classes.

[} The Company may alse be wound up in accordance with the Law.

m) There have been no changes to the share capital since the Fourth Offering.

n} The Directors will not use their authority to issue or allot any shares in addition to the Shares to any Investor unless that has been approved by a

special resolution of the Shareholders.

5 Options or Preferential Rights in Respect of Shares

There are no provisions of Guernsey law which confer pre-emption rights on existing Shareholders on the allotment of equity securities for cash. No person
has, or is entitled to be given, an option to subscribe for Shares,

B, Commissions or Distribution Fees Paid

Should a Distributor be appointed, it shall be entitled to the fees as set out below.
Annual fee of the Distributors

An annual fee of 0.60% calculated on that portion of the Company’s Funds that is derived from the aggregate of subscription amounts subscribed for by
Shareholders introduced by the Distributor (as reduced by any redemptions of such Shares prior to the Redemption Date) will be payabie ta the Distributor
in terms of the retevant Distribution Agreement. if any Debt Issuer does not exercise its Call Option on the applicable First Call Date, then the fee shall reduce
to 0.15% per annum for the period subsequent to such First Call Date

These fees are independent of any transfer fees payable on sales as described in Section Four "Sale Arrangements and Redemptions” in this Prospectus.
Front end fee

The Distributor is entitled to an amount not exceeding 2% {plus South African value added tax where applicable} of the aggregate of subscription amounts
subscribed for by Shareholders introduced by the Distributor,

7. Material Contracts

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have been entered inta by the Company since its
incorporation and are, or may be, material and will be dated on or around the Fifth Closing Date:

{a) the Administration Agreement between the Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser provides that the appointment of the
Administrater will continue until terminated by any party giving to the other not less than a minimum of 3(three) months’ notice, although the
agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing from any party to the other, where a party goes into liquidation or ceases to be able
to pay its debts or breaches its obligations under the agreement {not having remedied such breach within 30 days of notice requiring it to do so) or
where it is no longer lawfu for the Adminstrator to perform its obligations under the agreement or where the Administrator ceases to hold any
license or consent necessary for the conduct of its business. The agreement provides that in the absence of fraud, gross negligence or wilful default
by the Administrator the Company is obliged to indemnify the Administrator for any losses it suffers in the proper performance of its duties under
the agreement (see also the section "Administrator” in Section One in this Prospectus);

b} the Investment Adviser Agreement between the Company and the Investment Adviser provides that the appeintment of the Investment Adviser
will continue until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 3{three) months’ written notice or forthwith In the event of the
insalvency of the ather party or the breach by the other party of its obligations under the agreement {not having remedied the breach within 30
days of natice requiring it to do so) or where the Investment Adviser ceases to hald any license or consent necessary for the conduct of its business.
The agreement provides that, in the absence of fraud, gross negligence, wilful default or breach of the agreement by the Investment Adviser, the
Company is abliged to indemnify the Investmant Adviser against all costs, actions, claims and expenses, which may be incurred by it or made against
it in connection with the agreement.
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Inspection of Documents

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection free of charge, for a period of not less than 10 days from the date of this Prospectus at any
time during normal business hours on any day, except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays in Guernsey or Bermuda [as appropriate}, and copies of them
may be obtained on payment of a reasonable fee, at the registered office of the Company and, also at the offices of the Annual and Listing Sponsor:

{a) the Memorandum and Articles of Incorporation of the Company;

{b} the contracts referred to under the heading *Material Contracts” above;

{c) copies of the most recent annual reports;

{d) the Law;

(e} a list of past and present directorships and partnerships held by each Director aver the last five years,

[{i] a copy of the Prospectus;

”) the written consents required In terms of section 102 of the South African Companies Act; and

(h} the relevant Beard resolution autharising the sign-off of the Prospectus.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company Is avallable for inspection at any ime during normal business hours on any day, except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays in Guernsey, at the offices of the Administrator.

8. Interests of Directars, Investment Adviser and Distributors

Directors

As mentioned in Section One “Directors, Other Office Holders or Third Parties” above: i) there will be no Directors’ emoluments paid and there are no
outstanding Directors” emoluments due to be pald at the date of this Prospectus; and (il) the Directors are indemnified through directors and officers
insurance for work undertaken on behalf of the Company.

A Director may own Shares, but there is no requirement that he or she does so. Other than as disclosed in this Prospectus, the Company does not know of
any person who, directly or indirectly, has an interest in the Company's capital or voting rights which is notifiable under Guernsey law. None of the Directors
has any contract or arrangement existing at the date of this Prospectus in which the Director is materially interested and which is material in relation to the
business of the Company, save for as disclosed in this Prospectus and the Administration Agreement.

Investment Adviser interest in Shares

The lnvestment Adviser and any of its associates may have an interest or position in Shares. The Investment Adviser is not acting for, or advising, or treating
as its customer, any other person (unless other arrangements apply between the Investment Adviser and such person) in relation to investment in the
Cormpany and will not be respensible for providing to any other person best execution or any other of the protections afforded to its customers.

Distributor interest in Shares

The Distributar may have an interest in the prometion of the Company as it will earn a commission on the Shares subscribed for by Shareholders introduced
by the Distributar.

9. Loans and Borrowing Powers

As at the date of this Prospectus the Company has not concluded any loan agreements with any person nor has it created or issued any morigages, charges,
debentures or other borrowings or indebtednass in the nature of borrowings, including bank overdrafts, liabilites under acceptance or acceptance credits,
obligations under finance leases, hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other contingent liabilities.

The Company may borrow up to 10% of the value of the net assets of the Company for temporary purposes to fund short-term liquidity, for the benefit of
the Company. It is net however the current intention of the Directors to engage in any borrowing in respect of the Company.
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10, Shares issued or to be issued otherwise than from cash

During the 3 (three) years immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus the Company has not issued any securities or agreed to issue any securities
other than in cash.

11 Property acquired or to be acquired

The Company does not own or intend to acquire any real property.

12. Amounts pald or payable to the Investment Adviser and Distributors

The Promoter is not entitled to receive any fees for its role as Promotor. For the services provided as Investment Adviser the Promoter is entitled to recelve
afee

Amounts pald in USD to the Investment Adviser and Distributors are described below:

2020 2021 2022
Investment Adviser GBP377,660 GBP355,870 GBP376,095
Distributors GBP374,164 GBP353,713 GBP361,957

Amounts to be paid:

The Investment Adviser Is entitled to an annual fee as set out in Section One "fnvestment Advisar”.

Distributors are entitled to the fees set out in Section One “Commissions or Distribution Fees Paid”.

The Administrator is entitled to the fees set out in Section One “"Administrator”,

13, Preliminary Expenses, Issue Expenses and Ongoing Expenses [in GBP):

Annual Expenses 2020 2021 2022
Guernsey Statutory Fees GBP2,440 GBP1,724 GBF1,575
Guernsey Licence Fees GBP3,413 GBP3,448 GBP3,703
Investment Adviser GBP377,660 GBP355,870 GBP376,095
Distributors GBP374,164 GBP353,713 GBP361,967
Administrator GBPE1,742 GBP75,077 GBP79,818
Auditor GAEPS8, 235 GBPB,227 GBP7,109
Bermuda Listing & sponsorship GBP8,209 G8P8,220 GBP3,687
fees

Front end fees

The Distributor is entitled to a front end fee from each Investor they introduced ta the Company, as set out in Section One “Commissions or Distribution
Fees Paid”.

Expenses
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The Expense Provision will be utilised to meet all expenses of the Company for the period from the Fifth Closing Date to the Redemption Date. The expenses
exclude the annual fees of service providers, but will include the following:

The Company
The Expense Provision will be utilised to meet all the expenses incurred in the operation of the Company including, but not limited to, legal and professional
expenses, audit fees, fees for listing the Shares on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, printing and distribution expenses, the annual accounts, expenses of

holding Shareholders’ and Directors” meetings, taxes, duties, penaltes, government charges, banking fees, printing, posting and dispatching of contract
notes, annual filing fee and exernpt company fee.

Issue of Shares

The Expense Provision will be utifsed to meet the costs, charges, expenses and commissions payable in respect of issuing the Shares,

Initial and Ongoing Expenses

The Expense Provision is utilised to meet the payment or reimbursement of the Initial expenses (Including the launch fee for the Fifth Cffering), the ongoing
expenses and any other expenses of the Company as the same become payable by the Company from time to time. Such ongoing expenses will include,

without limitation, fees payable to the Administrator for the winding up of the Company, such fees to be agreed in writing with the Investment Adviser
covering the time reasonably spent by the Administrator.

Any surplus or shortfall of the Expense Provision will be attributed to or borne by the ordinary Shareholders of the Company. This would be pro-rata and
effected on redemption. If necessary, any shortfall will be provided for using an interim loan faclity approved by the Directors,

The Company is responsible for all its operating expenses including, without imitation, Directors’ expenses, legal costs, bank charges, Auditor’s remuneration
and expenses, costs of dealing in the assets of the Company, interest on any borrowings effected by the Company, the fees of the GFSC and the costs and

expenses of the preparation, printing and, where applicable, distribution or publishing of certificates, tax vouchers, warrants, proxy cards, contract notes,
this Prospectus and annual financial statements and all other documents in connection with the Company.

Share Transfer and Redemption Fees

Fees payable on the transfer or redemption of Shares prior to the Redemption Date are described more fully under the Section Four “Sale Arrangements
and Redemptions” In this Prospectus.

Fees Payable Annually

Annual Fee of the Investment Adviser

The annual fee payable to the Investment Adviser is set out in Section One "Investment Adviser”,

Annual fee of the Ad‘;ﬂlnis!mor

The annual fee payable to the Administrator is set out in Section One “Adminlstrator”.

Annual fee of the Distributors

The annual fee payable to the Distributor is set out in Section One “Comemissions or Distribution Fees Paid”.
Summary of Fees Payable Annuelly

Administrator first year fee of 0.13% followed by 0.11% per annum thereafter

Investment Adviser 0.66% per annum and reduced to 0.15% per annum if the Call Option of any Debt Instruments is not exercised
on the applicable First Call Date

Distributors 0.60% per annum and reduced to 0.15% per annum if the Call Option of any Debt Instruments is not exercised
on the applicable First Call Date
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SECTION TWO: Information about the offered securities

14,

(a}

{b}

(4]

{d}

Purpose of the Offer

Introduction

The Company was incorporated in Guernsey as a non-cellular company limited by shares on 9 September 2004, It Is a closed-ended investment
company. Its issued share capital, with the exception of 10 Management Shares issued for administrative reasons, will conslst entirely of Shares,
being A Class Shares and B Class Shares, Shareholders who have not made an election to retaln their Existing lssued Shares pursuant to the
Company’s Cffer, will have their Shares redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date. To the extent that the holders of the Existing Issued Shares elect
to continue to remain invested upon such Offer, shareholders whose Shares were not redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date will be redeemed
on the Fifth Redemption Date unless pursuant to a further offer by the Company they elect to remain invested in the Comp y subseguent to the
Fifth Redemption Date.

A minimum of three (3) Shares per Investor (subject to the Minimum Subseription Amount} are offered from the Fifth Opening Date specified to the
Fifth C'osing Date. Sharas are offered until the Fifth Closing Date at a price equal to the EIS Price or the equivalent thereof in GBP.

The Company’s M dum provides that the Company’s objects are unrestricted.
Investment Policy and Objective

In the investment Adviser's opinion, uncertain recent worldwide economic conditions and low yields have created demand from Investors for
investments that provide capital preservation and growth potential in a relatively stable currency.

The invesiment objective of the Company is te pravide the Investor with a unique equity-linked investment with a USD principal preservation
together with any potential growth in the return, if held until the Call Option has been exerclsed by the Debt Issuer, or, if the Call Option has not
been exercised by the Debt Issuer, until maturity of the Debt Instruments, provided that, if the Debt Instruments are credit-linked, no Credit Event
has occurred.

The Company’s Memorandum does not restrict the investment policy or the investment of the Company’s assets

Investment Criteria

Investment decisions will be made by the Board advised by the investment Adviser and will reflect the long-term investment objective.

Capital Preservation

A percentage of the Company’s Funds will be invested in the Debt Instruments. The GBP funds to be Invested will be converted to USD at the spot
rate on the Trade Date. The Debt Instruments will be issued by the Debt Issuer,

The percentage of the Company’s Funds invested in the Debt Instruments will be determined so that the amount received by the Company at the
end of the Investment Period In USD will be equal to at least 100% of the Company’s Funds in USD, should there have been no default by the Debt
Issuer and provided that, if the Debt Instruments are credit linked, no Cred:t Event in respect of a Reference Entity has occurred. Should a Credit
Event occur in relation to a Reference Entity, then the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments will be reduced in accordance with the
following formula:

Y=X-2Z

where ¥ is the reduced aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments

X is the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments prior to the occurrence of the applicable Credit Event

215 the Proportionate Recovery Percentage

The amount equal to the Proportionate Recovery Percentage may (1) during the Investment Term be paid to Shareholders as dividends, or be
reinvested, as the Directors may deem appropriate, acting on the advice of the Investment Adviser; or {2} be paid to the Company on maturity of

the Debt Instrument,

Investors’ attention Is drawn to the “Risks associated with the Debt Instruments” in Section Four.
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The example below is on the assumption that the exchange rate between GBP and USD on Trade Date will be the same on the maturity of the
investment in the Debt Instruments.

usD
a) Gross subscription monies received pursuant to this Prospectus 110,000,000
b) Less: Front End Fees (up to 2%} 2,200,000
107,800,000
c} Plus: Aggregate EIS Price retained by existing Shareholders 10,000,000
Company’s Funds equals (a- b} + ¢ 117,800,000

If the Call Option is not exercised by any Debt Issuer on the First Call Date, then the Company may declare and pay dividends as described under the
Section “Dividends” in this Prospectus,

{e} Upside Linked To Equity

The balance of the Company’s Fungs avaiable for investment after the investment in the Debt Instruments will be invested in an Equity Linked
Investment(s). The Equity Linked lnvestment{s] will be issued by an Equity Investment Provider(s) 1o be selected by the Investment Adviser, The

Equity Investment Provider(s) will have a long-term credit rating of at least A {Standard & Poors) on the Trade Date and the Equity Linked
Investment(s) will be invested in Equity Exposure. The final index level will be the average of the monthly closing Index leve!s, over a period to be
decided by the Investment Adviser on the Trade Date, being a period not exceeding 12 months immediately prior to the exercise date of the Equity
Linked Investment{s). The Equity Linked Investment(s) will be effected under appropriate contractual arrangements to reflect the transaction
between the Equity Investment Provider(s) and the Company. The Equity Linked Investment will provide at least 100% participation in any positive
performance of the index/findices up to the First Call Date, but capped at a maximum of 40% above the initial index level.

Investors’ attention is drawn to the risk factors set out in Section Four "Risk Factors” in this Prospectus.
{f) Changes to Investment Qbjective, Investment Policy, Borrowings and investment Criteria

The Board may resolve to change the Investment Objective, investment Policy, Borrowings or Investment Criteria of the Company by amending,
supplementing or reissuing this Prospectus. However there is no current intention to make any changes during the Investment Period. Any proposed
charge during the Investment Period must first be approved by a Special Resolution of the Shareholders,

i) Aggregate Minimum Subscription

This Offer is subject to a minimum aggregate of 5,000 Shares being (i} subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus, and the listing of such Shares on
the Bermuda Stock Exchange, andfor (i) retained by Shareholders of Existing lssued Shares who made an election not to have their Shares
redeemed, failing which the offer will terminate.

15. Time and date of the opening of the Offer and the closing of the Offer

This subscription Is open for a fixed offer period only at a date as the Directors may declde. This perlod runs from the Fifth Opening Date, anticipated to be
18 September 2023, provided the Prospectus has been registered with the CIPC by this date, until the Fifth Closing Date, being 24 November 2023 [or such
later date as the Directors may decide, but not later than 28 November 2023, Only fully completed applications received by the Fifth Closing Date, with
cleared funds in the Company’s nominated account, will be acceptable for investment (this is the offer deadline).

16. Farticulars of the Offer

This Prospectus is issued in refation to an Offer for subscription of Shares in the Company. A Class Shares and 8 Class Shares, in an aggregate of [29,755.700)
Shares, will be offered to existing Shareholders in the Company and to new Investors, at the EIS Price per Share or the equivalent thereof in USD. The
Directors will issue and allot Shares such that the maximum aggregate Issue amaunt of such Issue and allotment, together with the aggregate EIS Price of
the Existing Issued Shares that have not been redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date, is equal to or more than the Aggregate Minimum Subscription. The
exact amount will be known after the Fifth Closing Date of the Offering and will be notified to the CIPC.
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The Offer is not underwritten.

Any subscription menies remaining after a whole number of Shares has been issued will not be returned to the applicant and instead fractions of Sharas will
be issued. Fractions of a Share shall be Issued to three decimal places and shall carry the corresponding proportion of rights, liabilities and other attributes
of the whole Shares.

Any company or companies in the Investec Group shall be entitled but not obliged to subscribe for any number of Shares,
The Company has not issued any securities during the three years immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus

In the event of termination of this Offer, all subscription amounts already recelved by the Company In respect of the Offer shall be returned to the Investors
as soon as possible, but in any event not later than 20 Business Days following such termination, threugh electronic funds transfer into an account in the
name of the relevant Investor only, without interest and less any bank charges.

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any application made in connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or
create any implication that the information herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.

Although application will be made for the Shares to be listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, this does notimply a commitment by any member firm of the
Bermuda Stock Exchange to make a market in the Shares. In view of the specialised nature of the Company, it is unlikely that third parties will make an active
market in the Shares. It is not proposed to list the Shares on any other stock exchange.

No copy of this Prospectus has been registered in any jurisdiction other than in Bermuda, Guernsey and South Africa in connection with the Issue of Shares.
No person receiving a copy of this Prospectus in any territory may treat the same as constituting an Invitation to them to purchase or to subscribe for Shares,
unless in the relevant territory such an invitation could lawfully be made to them without compliance with any registration or other legal requirements.

The contents of this Prospectus are not to be construed as a recommendation or advice to any Investor in relation ta the subscription, purchase, holding or
disposition of Shares and Investors should consult their professional advisers accordingly.

17, Minimum Subscription
Subscription for Shares

The Directors have determined that the aggregate minimum amount raised under the Offer must equal the Aggregate Minlmum Subscription multiplied by
the EIS Price or the equivalent thereof in GBP, as the case may be,

The subscription price per Share will be equal to the E'S Price or the GBP equivalent thereof, however subscriptions far investment may not be less than the
Minimum Subscription Amount, provided that the Directors may, at their sole discretion, accept applications for less than the Minimum Subscription
Amount, where the shortfall is minimal. Shoud Investors subscribe for the Shares in any currency other than in GBP or USD then such monies shall be
canverted to GBP or USD upon receipt by the Guernsey bankers. The procedure for the subscription of Shares is as described under the "Applications”
section below.

The Company may accept any application fram an Investor, subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended or Section 4575
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Payment for Shares must be made as set out In the Procedure for Application. itls the Investor's responsibility to ensure funds are recelved by the Company
in its nominated bank account prior ta the Offer deadline. Any interest earned on the subseription account will be for the benefit of the Company.

A contract note is issued to each successful Investor detailing the amount invested, the issue price and number of Shares issued, within twelve Business
Days after the Trade Date.

The Distributor {if any) will be entitled to a commission on the subscription of Shares by parties it has introduced as set out in Section One "Commissions or
Distribution Fees Paid”.

The Company will net purchase any real property out of the proceeds of the issue,
The Company has not borrowed any money to pay for the commission to the Distributor

The working capital of the Company is the Expense Provision that will be utilised to meet all the expenses incurred in the operation of the company including,
but not limited to, legal and professional expenses, audit fees, public relations fees, for listing the Shares on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, printing and
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distribution expenses, the annual accounts, expenses of holding Shareholders” and Directors’ meetings, taxes and duties, penalties, government charges,
banking fees, printing, posting and dispatching of contract notes, annual filing fee and exempt company fee.

18. Applications

An Investor who wishes to apply for Shares must obtain an Application Form from the Distributor, or Administrator. The Investor must complete the
Application Form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and send a copy of the signed Application Form and copies of the required due
diligence {as described in the Application Form) to the Investment Adviser and/for Adminlistrator as scon as possible. The copy of the signed Application
Form, the certified copies of the investor due diligence and the subscription monies must be received by the Company, by the Offer deadiine being the Fifth
Closing Date.

The fully completed original signed Application Form, together with the original certified due diligence and the tax documentation as described in the
Application Form must be received by the Administrator. The Administrator shall confirm to the Investor that the documentation is acceptable. The
subscription monies should be placed into the Company's nominated client bank account grior to the Fifth Closing Date. Any monies received in a currency
other than GBP or USD, as the case may be, will be converted to GBP or USD, as the case may be, at the prevailing spot rate available to the Company at the
date of receipt of said monies. The Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser do not accept any liability for unfavourable rates of exchange
at the date of receipt of subscription money.

Banking detallsor any further information with regard to the Application Form, may be requested from either the Administrator or the Investment Adviser,
using the details below

Administrator: Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited
Address:

1 Royal Plaza

Royal Avenue

St Peter Port

Guernsey, Channel islands

GY1 2HL

Telephone +44 {0) 2035 203600

Email Address basketsrollover@apexfs.group

Investment Adviser: Investec Bank Limited

Address:

36 Hans Strijdom Avenue

Cape Town

8001

Telephone +27 11 291 3092 Admin Team
Email Address SPSuppart@investec.co.za

When making the payment, Investors should ensure that the deposit reference is In the name of the investor. Failure to do so, may result in Investors funds
being retumed to the remitting bank. Neither the Administrator, Investment Adviser, the Company nor Investec Bank [Channel Islands) will accept
responsibility for incorrectly referenced payments which will result in non-allocation of funds, nor will they be held liable should any consequential loss
oceur. Failure ta remit the correct currency may resolt in funds being returned at investors own cost, which may also result in FX or currency loss,

Payments must come from the account in the name of the Investor/s. No third party payments will be accepted.

An application will not be valid untess all the above requirements have been fufilled.

Investor undertakings

By completing and delivering an Application Form together with payment in full for the Shares applied for, each Investor agrees with the Company as follows:

(a) the Directors shall be entitled to accept or refuse any application in whole or in part, in such manner as they may in their sole and absolute discretion
decide;
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(b}

G

(e}

n

(h)

»

the Company shall be entitled to scale down applications and to reject applications in whole or in part. In such case application monies will be
returned to applicants by electronic transfer into the account specified by the applicant in the Application Form without interest, less any applicable
banking fees;

any application shall be irrevocable and any payment will be honoured on first presentation (and cleared before the Fifth Closing Date);

the application and any issue of Shares are made on and subject to the terms and conditions of this Praspectus, the Application Form and the
Articles;

the application for Shares is based solely upon the information in this Prospectus and no other information or representation has been relied upon;

any monies returned to the applicant will be net of bank charges and will not include any interest which may have been earned while the Company
held such manies;

all risks in respect of the method of payment will be borne solely by the Investor;

accounts and notices from the Company will be sent by emall and the applicant shall provide a valid email address for this purpose;

the Company shall be notified, by the applicant, in writing of any change in registered address, email or bank account details; and

the Company makes no representations nor gives any warranties or undertakings with regard to the sultability of any investment in the Shares or

the accuracy of this Prospectus and potential Investors should obtain indegpendent legal, tax, accounting, investrment and other relevant advice
when contemplating any investment in the Company.

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/1024) Page 28|70



SECTION THREE: Statements and reports relating to the Offer

19. Stat t as to the adequacy of capital

The Directors are of the opinion that, subject to the Aggregate Minimum Subscription being met, the issued capital of the Company is adequate for the
purposes of the business for at least 12 months from the date of this Prospectus.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the Offering of Shares in certaln jurisdictions may be restricted, and accordingly, persons Into whose possession this
Prospectus comes are required to Inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

This Prospectus does not constitute and may not be used for the purposes of an offer or solicitation by any person in any jurisdiction {i} in which such offer
or solicitation is not authorised or {ii} in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not gualified to do so or {iii) knowingly, to any person to whom
it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

The Company is an autharised closed-ended investment company pursuant to the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020, as amended
and the Rules.

The GFSC and the States of Guernsey take no responsibility for the financial soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any of the statements made
or opinions expressed regarding It

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus you should consult your accountant, legal or professional adviser or financial adviser. The
Directors have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated in this Prospectus are true and accurate in all material respects as at the date of this
Prospectus, and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make misleading any statement in the Prospectus, whether of facts or of opinion.
All the Directors accept responsibility accordingly. It should be remembered that the price of the Shares and any income from them can go down as well as
up.

The Administrator shall comply with relevant anti-money [sundering guidelines applicable in Guernsey from time to time including the Criminal Justice
[Proceeds of Crime) [Bailiwick of Guernsey] Law, 1999 (as amended), the Handbook for Financial Services Business on Countering Financial Crime and
Terrorist Financing (as amended) and associated laws, regulations, rules and guidelines,

Persons Interested in acquiring the Shares should inform themselves as to:

{a) the legal requirements within the countries of their nationality, residence, ordinary residence or domicile for acquiring, holding, disposing or
redemption of the Shares;

{b} any foreign exchange restriction or exchange control requirements which they might encounter an acquisition, holding, disposal or redemgption of
the Shares or on receipt of any dividend received in respect of the Shares; and

[c) the taxation consequences which might be relevant to the acquisition, holding, disposal or redemption of the Shares or any dividend received in
respect of the Shares;

Copies of this Prospectus and Application Form may be abtained from the applicable Distributar, the Investment Adviser, or from the Administrator.

The Administrator's contact details are as follows:

Telephone number +44 [0} 2035 303600
Email Address basketsrollover @apexfs.group

20. Report by Directors as to material changes

The Directors report that there have been no material changes to the assets or liabilities of the Company since the latest financial year end and the date of
this Prospectus.

21, Statement as to listing on Stack Exchange

It is the intention to retain the listing of the A Class Shares and the B Class Shares on the Bermuda Steck Exchange, subject to the Aggregate Minimum
Subscription being satisfied.

This Prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the listing regulations of the Bermuda Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
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Praspectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts, the omission of which,
would make any statement herein misleading.

The Bermuda Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes no representations as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon any part of the contants of this Prospectus.
12, Report by Directors (where business undertaking to be acquired)

As at the Last Practicable Date, the Company has not identified any business undertaking which it will purchase directly or indirectly from the proceeds of
the issue of the Shares or from any part of such proceeds, or from any other funds.

23, Report by Directors {Where the Company will Acquire a Subsidlary)

As at the Last Practicable Date, no part of the proceeds of the issue of the Shares, whether directly or indirectly, will be used in a manner that results in the
acquisition by the Company of securities of any other juristic person, with the direct or Indirect result that the other juristic person will become a subsidary
of the Company.

24, Report by the Auditor of the Company - 30 September 2022 Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of the Company are reported on by the Auditor to the Shareholders, as a body in accordance with section 262 of the Law.
The audit is undertaken so that the Auditor might state to the Shareholders those matters that are required to state to them in an Auditor’s report and for
no other purposes. To the fullest extent permitted by Law, the Auditor does not accept or azsume responsibiity to anyone other than the Shareholders, as
a body, for audit work, for the report, or the opinions farmed by the Auditor.

The audited historical information of the Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2022 is presented in Annexure A.
A copy of the independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of the Company as at 30 September 2022 is included in Annexure A,

No dividends have been paid by the Company.
5, Report by Directars of the Company

The Law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company
and of the profit and loss of the Company for the audited period_ The Directors collectively and individually confirm their understanding of their responsibility
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure the financial statements comply with the Law. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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SECTION FOUR: Additional information
26, General

The Articles give powers to the Directors to require the transfer or compulsory repurchase of Shares in a number of specified circumstances, as set out in
the Articles.

Redemptions of Shares prior to the relevant Redemption Date are wholly at the discretion of the Company’s Directors. Any request for redemption may be
refused in whole orin part. {See Section Four "Redemption Arrangements prior to the Redemption Date" in this Prospectus).

Any information given, or representation made, by any dealer, salesman ¢r other person which is not contained in this Prospectus {or any dotument
expressed to be an addendum or supplement to this Prospectus) or any accompanying report{s) shou'd be regarded as unauthorised and should accordingly
not be relied upon.

Adl holders of Shares are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of the
Company, copies of which are avalable for inspection as described under “Inspection of Documents” in Section Seven “Material Contracts™ of this
Prospectus.

27, Sale Arrangements and Redemptions

Transfer/Sale Arrangements

The Investment Adviser has agreed to use its reasonable endeavours to make a market in the Shares on a matched basis. In order to assist this process the
Trust has declared its willingness to purchase Shares [although the Trust is not obliged to do so).

ifa Shareholder wishes to sell his Shares, there are provisions to do so at the discretion of the Directors, Upon receipt of a request to sell Shares and assuming
normal market conditions the Directors expect that a Shareholder that wants to sell Shares will be able to do 50 at any time prior to the Redemption Date.
The Distributor will Immediately notify the Investment Adviser and the Investment Adviser wili inform the Administrator that a client wishes to sell his
Shares. Should a Distributor have a client that wants to purchase the Shares, the Distributor will notify the Investment Adviser of the price that its client is
willing to pay for the Shares.

No sale of less than 3 Shares per transaction will be permitted, nor any disposal a5 a result of which a Sharehalder will hold less than 3 Shares in the Company,
except where a Shareholder disposes of all his Shares

A seller of Shares wishing to accept the price offered by a purchaser must complete a share transfer form available from the Investment Adviser. Upon
recelpt of an original signed Application Form, the required original due diligence, receipt of cleared funds from the purchaser and the original signed transfer
form from the seller of the Shares the Administrator shall have 10 Business Days to effect the sale. Details of the due diligence requirements can e found
in the relevant Application Forms, however if the purchaser requires further information they can contact either the Investment Advisor and/or the
Administrator,

The Administrator shall be entitled to an adminlstration fee of £150 for facilitating the cash flow of the sale per Shareholder transaction effected through
the client money account. This fee shall be deducted by the Administrator from the proceeds due to the seller. Any proposed increase in this fee Is subject
to negotiation with the Investment Adviser, The sale proceeds, less applicable fees agreed at the time of sale, will be paid by the Administrator to the
relevant Shareholder. In line with Guernsey regulatory requirements the Administrator will not make any third-party payments,

The Administrator shall not be liable to a seller of Shares faor any fallure on the part of the buyer of the Shares to make payment of the sale proceeds to the
Administrator timeously or at all.

All other transfers of Shares effected by the Administrator will be free of charge. The Administrator will only process share transfers when in receipt of an
original completed Share transfer form signed by the transferor , an original application form signed by the transferee and the required original due difigence
of the transferee.

Transfers of Shares may be restricted and Shares may become subject to compulsory repurchase in certain circumstances if, inter alia, new Investors would
cause the Company an economic, tax or regulatory disadvantage.

In the case of all transfers and sales, the Administrator will effect payments by electronic transfer into the account specified by such Shareholder in the
original Application Form or the Share transfer form, as the case may be. it is the Shareholder’s responsibility to ensure the receiving account accepts the
specified currency and that the nominated account accepts all telegraphic transfers. All currency exchange risk and bank charges are borne by the
Shareholder. The Administrator will not make any third-party payments.

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/2024] Page 31|70



Redemption Arrang ts prior to the Redemption Date

it should be noted that prior to the applicable Redemption Date there is no entitlement in favour of Shareholders to have their Shares redeemed by the
Company. Redemptions on a date other than a Redemption Date are wholly at the discretion of the Directors and any request for redemption may be
refused in whole or in part. No redemption shall be permitted unless the Directors are satisfied that they have complied with all applicable law, including
but without limitation, satisfaction of the solvency test as required by the Law. Should Director consent be granted, and assuming normal market conditions,
a partion of the Company’s assets will be realised in a manner determined by the Directors as may be required to enable it to effect such redemptions at a
fair market price less any costs incurred by the Company in refation to the sale of the assets by the Company to effect such redemption.

If the Directors consent to a redemption prior to the Redemption Date, the Administrator must receive all required correctly completed original
documentation. Upon receipt of all completed documents, the Administrator will have 10 Business Days to effect the redemption. Redemption proceeds
less applicable fees agreed at the time of redemption will be paid by the Administrator to the relevant Sharehclder into the account specified in the original
Application Form or in the redemption instruction, subject ta the Shareholder accepting the offered price. It is the Shareholder’s responsibility to ensure the
receiving account accepts the specified currency and that the nominated account accepts all telegraphic transfers. All currency exchange risk and bank
charges are borne by the Shareholder. The Administrator will not make any third-party payments.

Unless a redemption request specifies a particular number of Shares to be redeemed, it will be deemed to apply in respect of the total holding of the relevant
Shareholder.

Prior to the applicable Redemption Date no redemption of less than 3 Shares will be permitted except where a redemption request applies In respect of the
total holding of the relevant Shareholder.

All redemptions of Shares prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be subject to a settlement and registration fee of up to 1.25% of the total value of
the applicable transaction of which 0.75% of the total value of the applicable transaction is payable to and for the account of the Investment Adviser and
0.5% of the total value of the applicable transaction is payable to and for the account of the Administrator, This fee will be deducted by the Administrator
from the redemption proceeds due to the applicable Shareholder.

Redemption Policy
Subject to their overall discretion, the Directors have determined to operate the following policy in respect of redemptions;

{b} Redemption of the Shares which are the subject of a redemption request shall take place at the redemption price agreed to between the relevant
Shareholder and the Company;

{c) No redemptions prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be approved by the Directors where in the opinion of the Directors the redemptions
may be prejudicial to the Company or other Shareholders;

(d) No redemptions prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be appraved by the Directors where such redemption would render the Company
insolvent;

{e) No redempticns prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be approved by the Directors where such redemption would or might leave the
Company with insufficient funds to meet any future contemplated obligations or contingencies.

Redemption on the Redemption Dute

To the extent that Shareholders have not elected to retain their Existing Issued Shares pursuant to an offer by the Company, the Shares shall be redeemed
an the applicable Redemption Date, subject to the Debt Issuer and the counterparty{ies) having fulfilled all its/their repayment obligations in respect of the
Debt Instruments and the Equity Linked Investment(s), as the case may be. Should such repayments not have been made, then the redemption may be
deferred until all obligations have been met.

The redemption price of each Share shall be reviewed by the Auditor, acting in a reasonable manner and in accordance with market practice, which price
shall represent the Falr Market Value per Share

Subject to receipt of ali documentation and original required due diligence the Administrator will process the redemption of the Shares to Praxis Trustees
Limited as Trustee of the Basket Trust {the “Trust"} in accordance with the terms of the offer. Redemption proceeds will be paid from an account in the
name of the Trust to the relevant Shareholder by electronic transfer into an account in the name of the shareholder no later than 10 Business Days after the
Redemption Date. in the event that the redemption proceeds cannot for any reason be paid to the relevant Shareholder by telegraphic transfer within 10
Business Days after the Redemption Date, the money will be held in the Trust account until claimed by the retevant Shareholder or until three years after
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the applicable Redamption Date, whichever is the earlier, and if not claimed by the Shareholder on such date, then it will be paid to a registered charitable
institution in Guernsey.

No settlement and registration fees will be payable in respect of redemptions effected on the applicable Redemption Date, however all currency exchange
risk and bank charges are to be borne by the Shareholder.

Valuation of Assets

One of the factors that may influence the price of a Share will be the value of the underlying investments of the Company. To assist Shareholders and
parties interested in investing in the Shares in assessing potential returns on the Shares, the Investment Adviser will value the Company’s assets on the
first Business Day of each month at fair market price and notify the Administrator of the Fair Market Value per Share. This valuation wil be based on the
price of the Debt Instruments determined by the Investment Adviser in good faith and on the price of the Equity Linked Investment(s) supplied by the
Equity Investment Provider(s} in relation to the investments made by the Company. Valuations will be made available to Shareholders and interested

parties on the website https.//www.apexgroup.com/investec-basket-information/.

Temporary Suspension of Valuation, Issue, Redemption ond Transfer of Shares

The Directars may, from time to time, temporarity suspend both the calculation and valuation of the underlying investments of the Company and the issue,
redemption and transfer of Shares in any of the following instances:-

{a} in any period during which any market in which a significant portion of the underlying investments are currently quoted or traded is closed, other
than for customary holidays and weekends, or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended; or

[(33] when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the
Directors, disposal or valuation of the underlying investments is not reasonably practicable without being seriously detrimental to the interests of
Shareholders or if, for reasons of illiquidity or other constraints on reallsation of underlying investments, monies to meet redemption proceeds are
not immediately available or if, in the opinion of the Directors, redemption prices cannot fairly be calculated; or

{c} in the case of a breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of the underlying investments or other
assets or when for any other reason the current prices on any market or stock exchange or any assets of the Company cannot be promptly and
accurately ascertained; or

{d) If the Company Is unable to repatriate assets required for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of Shares or during any period in
which the transfer of assets involved in the realisation or acquisition of underlying investments or payments due on the redemption of Shares
cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be effected at normal prices nor normal rates of exchange,

Notice of any such suspension and notice of the determination of any such suspension shall be given to Shareholders if in the opinion of the Directors it is
likely to exceed five Business Days and will be notified to applicants for Shares or to Shareholders requesting the redemption of Shares at the time of
application or filing of the written request for such redemption. Where the Shares of the Company are I'sted on a recognised stock exchange, notice of any
such suspension and notice of the determination of any such suspensian shall be given immediately to the recognised stock exchange. Where possible, all
reasonable steps will be taken to bring any period of suspension to an end as soon as possible

8. Conflicts of interest

The Company and the Investment Adviser may place orders and otherwise transact business with or through any company within the Investec Group. in
addition, any cash of the Company may be deposited with the investec Group or invested in certificates of deposit or banking Instruments issued by the
Investec Group. Banking and similar transactions may also be undertaken with or through any such company.

There will be no obligation on the part of the Investment Adviser or any other company within the Investec Group to account to the Company or Sharehalders
for any benefits so arising and any such benefits may be retained by the relevant party provided that such transactions are in compliance with the Rules,
carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm’s length and are consistent with the best interests of Shareholders and:

[a) a certified valuation of such transaction by a person approved by the Directors as being independent and competent has been obtained: or
b} such transaction has been executed on best terms on an organised investment exchange in accordance with the rules of such investment exchange;
or
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{c) where campliance with (a} or (b} is not practical, such transaction has been executed on terms which the Directors and Administrator are satisfied
conform with the principle that such transactions be carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm’s length and are
consistent with the best interests of Shareholders.

Any company within the Investec Group may deal in Shares as principal or on an agency basis and retain any benefits so arising.

The Investment Adviser may, in the course of its respective businesses, have conflicts of interests with the Company. Should a conflict of interest actually
arise, the Directors and the Investment Adviser will use their best endeavours to ensure that it is resolved fairly.

In allocating investment opportunities between its clients, the Investment Adviser will at all times act in the best interests of its clients {including the
Company) and will allocate investment opportunities in 3 rnanner it considers fair and reasonable.

The Investment Adviser when selecting brokers or dealers to execute transactions must solicit competitive bids and has an obligation to seek the lowest
available commission cost.

Interests of the Directors, if any, are set out in Section One “Interests of Directors, investment Adviser and Distributors” in this Prospectus and the Articles
spedify circumstances in which a Director may or may not vote in relation ta a matter in which he may be Interested.

29, Taxation
introduction

The following summary of the anticipated tax treatment in Guernsey applies to persons holding Shares as an investment. The summary does not constitute
legal or tax advice and is based on what is understood to be current taxation law and published practice at the date of this Prospectus. Investors should be
aware that the level and bases of taxation may change from those described and should consult their own professional advisers on the implications of
making an Investment in, holding or disposing of, Shares under the laws of the countries in which they are liable to taxation

Guernsey
(i} The Company

The Company has been granted exemption from liability to income tax in Guernsey under the Income Tax {Exempt Bodies) {Guernsey}
Ordinance, 1989 as amended {"Exempt Bodies Ordinance”) by the Director of the Revenue Service in Guernsey for the current year.
Exemption must be applied for annually and will be granted, subject to the payment of an annual fee, which is currently fixed at £1,200
per applicant, provided the applicant qualifies under the applicable legislation for exemption. It is the intention of the Directors to
conduct the affairs of the Company 5o as to ensure that it continues to qualify for exempt company status for the purposes of Guernsey
taxation.

As an exempt company, the Company is and will be treated as if it were not resident in Guernsey for the purpases of liability to Guernsey
income tax. Under curreat law and practice in Guernsey, the Company will only be liable to tax in Guernsey in respect of income arising
or accruing in Guernsey, other than from a relevant bank deposit

Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upen capital inheritances, capital gains, gifts, sales or turnover, nor are there any estate duties {save for
registration fees and ad valorem duty for a Guernsey Grant of Representation where the deceased dies leaving assets in Guernsey which require
presentation of such a Grant).

Mo stamp duty is chargeable in Guernsey on the issue, transfer or redemption of Shares in the Company.
{ii} Shareholders

In the case of Sharehotders who are not resident in Guernsey for tax purposes, distributions can be paid to such shareholders without
giving rise to a liabiity to Guernsey income tax, nor will the Company be required to withhold Guernsey tax on such distributions.

Shareholders who are resident for tax purposes in Guernsey (which includes Alderney and Herm), or who are not so resident but have a
permanent establishment in Guernsey to which the halding of their Shares is related, will incur Guernsey income tax at the applicable
rate on a distribution paid to them. Provided the Company maintains its exempt status, there would currently be no require ment for
the Company to withheld tax from the payment of a distribution te such Shareholders and will only be required to provide the Director
of the Revenue Service such particulars relating to any distribution paid to Guernsey resident Shareholders as the Director of the
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Revenue Service may require, Including the names and addresses of the Guernsey resident Shareholders, the gross amount of any
distribution paid and the date of the payment.

The Directer of the Revenue Service can require the Company to provide the name and address of every Guernsey resident who, on a
specified date, has a beneficial interest in Shares, with details of the interest.

Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upon capital inheritances, capital gains, gifts, saies or turnover, nor are there any estate duties
[save for registration fees and ad valorem duty for a Guernsey Grant of Representation where the deceased dies leaving assets in
Guernsey which require presentation of such a Grant).

No stamp duty is chargeable In Guernsey on the Issue, transfer or redemption of Shares.

(i} FATCA and similar measures

Pursuant to US Internal Revenue Service (YIRS”] regulations, the Company and its tax advisers hereby inform you that: (i) any tax advice
contalned herein Is not intended and was not written to be used, and cannot be used by any taxpayer, for the purposes of avoiding
penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayer; {ii] any such advice was wrltten to support the promotion or marketing of the Shares
described in this Prospectus; and {lii} each taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer's particular circumstances from an
independent tax adviser.

The Company Is registered for FATCA under GIIN HOXICZ.99999.5L.831. Under FATCA and legislation enacted in Guernsey to Implement
the US-Guernsey JGA, certain disclosure requirements will be imposed in respect of certain Shareholders who are or are entities that
are controlled by one or more natural persons who are, residents or citizens of the United States, unless a relevant exemption applies.
Certain due diligence obligations will also be imposed. Where applicable, information that will need to be disclosed will include certain
information about Shareholders, their ultimate beneficial owners and/or controllers, and their investment in and returns from the
Company. The Company will be required to report this Information each year in the prescribed format and manner as per local guidance,
If the Company does not comply with these obligations, it could be subject to a 30% withholding tax [ FATCA Deduction™) on certain
payments to it of US source income {including Interest and dividends) and {from no earlier than two years after the date of publication
of certaln final regulations defining "Foreign Passthru Payments") a portion of non-US source payments from certain non-US financlal
institutions to the extent attributable to US source payments. The US-Guernsey IGA is implemented through Guernsey’s domestic
legislation in accordance with guidance that is published in draft form.

Under the U5S-Guernsey IGA, securities that are "regularly traded™ on an established securities market are not considered financial
accounts and are not subject to reporting. The Bermuda Stock Exchange may not qualify as an “established securities market” for these
purposes. In any event, a Share will not be considered "regularly traded” and will be considered a financial account if the Sharehoider
is not a financial institution acting as an intermediary. Such Shareholders will be required to provide informatlion to the Company to
allow it to satisfy its obligations under FATCA. Shareholders that own Shares through a financial intermedlary may be required to provide
information to such financial intermediary in order to allow the financial intermedlary to satisfy its obligations under FATCA.

Common Reporting Stondard

On 13 February 2014, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development released the CRS designed to create a global
standard for the automatlc exchange of financial account information, similar to the information to be reported under FATCA, On 29
October 2014, fifty-one jurisdictions signed the multilateral competent authority agreement ["Muitilateral Agreement”) that activates
this automatic exchange of FATCA-like information in line with the CRS. Since then further jurisdictions have also signed the Multilateral
Agreement and in total over 100 jurisdictions have committed to adopting the CRS. Many of these jurisdictions have now adopted the
CRS. Guernsey adopted the CRS with effect from 1 January 2016.

Under the CRS and legislation enacted in Guernsey, certain disclosure requirements are imposed in respect of certain Shareholders who
are entities that are controlled by one or more natural persons who may be residents of any of the jurisdictions that have also adopted
the CRS, unless a relevant exemption applies. Certain due diligence obligations will be imposed. Where applicable, information that
would need to be disclosed will include certain information about Shareholders, their ultimate beneficial owners and/or contr ollers, and
their investment in and returns from the Company. The Company will be required to report this information each year in the prescribed
format and manner as per local guidance. The CR5 is implemented through Guernsey’s domestic legislation in accordance with local
guidance that Is supplemented by guidance issued by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

Under the CRS, there is currently no reporting exemption for securities that are "regularty traded” on an established securities market.
Shareholders that own Shares through a financial intermediary may be required to provide information to such financial intermediary
in order to allow the financial intermediary to satisfy its obligations under the CRS.
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If the Company fails to comply with any due diligence and/for reporting requirements under Guernsey legislation implementing the US-
Guernsey IGA andfor the CRS then the Company could be subject to the imposition of financial penalties, and in the case of the US-
Guernsey IGA, FATCA Deductlons. While the Company will seek to satisfy its obligations under the US-Guernsey IGA and the CRS as
implemented in Guernsey in order to avold the imposition of any FATCA Deductions or any flnancial penalties under Guernsey law, the
ability of the Company to satisfy such obligations will depend on recelving refevant information and/or documentation about each
Shareholder and the direct and indirect beneficial owners of the Shares {If any). There ¢an be no assurance that the Company will be
able to satisfy such obligations.

The Company reserves the right to request from any Shareholder or potential investor such information as the Company deems
necessary to comply with FATCA and the CRS, or any obligation arising under the implem entation of any applicable Intergovernmental
agreement, Including the US-Guernsey tGA and the Muiltilzteral Agreement, relating to FATCA, the CRS or the automatic exchange of
Information with any relevant competent authority.

All Investors should consult with their own tax advisers regarding the possible implications of FATCA, the CRS and any other similar
legisiation and/or regulations on their investment in the Company.

investor Taxation

As the investment is in the Shares of the Company, the taxability of returns will depend on the nature and status of each Investor. If any Investor is in any
doubt about the taxation consequences of acquiring, holding, disposing, transferring or redeeming of the Shares, he shou'd seek advice from his own
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Sauth African tax residents will be taxed in South Africa under current South African tax regulation on any dividends and other returns received by them
from the Company.

30, Dividend Policy

The Company may pay dividends. The Directors wili constder declaring a dividend if such dividend appears to be justified by the financial position of the
Cornpany. Any dividends pald will only be paid in line with the policy of the Bermuda Stack Exchange, the Articles and the Law and be paid in the currency
of the Shares held by the applicable Shareholder.

. Risk Factors

Attention is drawn to the following specific risk factars:-

Making an investment carries a level of inherent risk. investors should carefully consider the risks associated with investing in the Company and seek
professional advice before making any decision to invest in the Company. Set out below are some of the potential risks which should be considered in
determining whether an investment in Shares is a suitable investment. The risk factors set cut below are not, and are not intended to be, a complete ist
of all the risks relevant to a decision to purchase or hold the Shares. There may be other risks that an Investor should consider that are relevant to their
own particular circumstances or more generally.

a) Suitabllity of investment

Investors are not to construe the contents of this Prospectus as investment, tax, business or legal advice. Prior to offering to acquire Shares, an
Investor should consult with his own legal, business and tax advisers to determine the approprlateness and consequences of an investment in
the Company.

An investment in the Company is anly suitable for Investors who appreciate the risks involved, which may include the loss of their entire
investment. An investment in the Company is not suitable for lnvestors who may wish to realise their investment at short notice.

Investors should make their own independent decision to invest in the Shares and as to whether an investment in the Shares is appropriate or
proper for them based upon their own judgment and upon advice from such advisers as they may deem necessary. Investors should not rely on
any communication {written or oral} of the Company, the Investment Adviser or any of their affiliates or their respective directors, officers or
agents as investment advice or as a recommendation to invest in the Shares, it being understood that information and explanations relating to
the Shares will not be considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Shares, No communication (written or oral)
received from the Company, the Investment Adviser or any of their affiliates or their respective directors, officers or agents will be deemed to
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of an investment in the Shares.

b) Counterparty and Credit Risk

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/2024) Page 36)70



There is credit risk on the Debt Issuer, each Reference Entity {if the Debt Instruments are credit linked) and the Equity Investment Provider{s}.
The bankruptey, refusal to pay, governmental intervention, restructuring, acceleration of debts or any other default by any such partyljes), as
applicable, may cause the value of such investment of the Company to be reduced or to become zero, which may adversely affect the Share
price or cause the Shares to become worthless.

If any of the Company’s investments are terminated early for any reason the Directors will take such steps as they, in their sole discretion,
consider practicable in order to enable the Company to achieve its investment objectives. There can be no assurance that this will be possible.

If the Dabt Instruments are credit linked and should a Potential Failure ko Pay have occurred, then the Termination Date shall be postponed to
determine whether the Potential Failure to Pay will be cured or whether a Credit Event has occurred. The timing for payment of any amounts
may occur at a different time than expected.

- The market price of a credit linked instrument may be volatile and will be affected by various factors including, but not limited to, the time
remaining to the maturity date of the instrument, prevailing credit spreads in the market and the creditwarthiness of the Reference Entity, which
in turn may be affected by the economic, financial, political and other events in one or more jurisdictions.

Shareholders should conduct their own investigation and analysis, including, where applicable, obtaining independent expert advice, with respect
to the credit risk of the Reference Entity and the factors that may assist in determining the likelihood of the cccurrence of a material adverse
event with respect to the Reference Entity, Including, but not limited to, general economic conditions, the condition of relevant financial markets,
relevant political events and developments or trends in any relevant industries.

- Shareholders should be aware that any such breach ar default by any party in relation to an investment made by the Company may adversely
affect the ability of the Company to meet its investment objectives.

€) Litigation Risk

Investment in the Company involves certain risks normally associated with investment in equity securities, which includes for example the risk
that a party may successfully litigate against the Company, which may result in a reduction in the assets of the Company. The Directors are not
aware of any pending litigation against the Company.

d} Hedging against market volatility

- The investment objective as described in the Praspectus of the Company is twofold: to preserve the Shareholder’s capital in USD; and to give
meaningful participation in the growth in international equity markets, Interest rates and credit spreads may show significant volatility if global
inflation and the prospect of recession in many countries influence markets. If interest rates and credit spreads are at elevated levels, the
potential equity participation of the Company over the next investment term may Improve, The Investment Adviser may then seek to purchase
some instruments (being some of the Debt instruments as well as interest rate hedges) shead of the product trade date in order to secure these
attractive fevels. It may not possible to purchase all of the Debt instruments ahead of trade date given the uncertain size of the trade. If purchase,
these instruments will be sold on to the Company on trade date at the same |evels at which they were acquired. This will ensure that the Company
can still meet its investment objectives even if the market yield on the Debt Instruments is lower than current levels on trade date. In addition,
the interest rate hedge will then ensure that the Company still benefits from any further material increases in interest rates. Movement in interest
rates up until the trade date will have an effect on the payoff and valuation on day one of the investment term.

e} Failure to Achieve Investment Objective

There can be po assurance that the Company will achieve its investment objective.

f) Restricted Liquidity In Shares

The Directors do not expect an active secondary market to develop in the Shares and an investment in the Company is therefore only appropriate
for Investors who are prepared to commit their investment on a medium to long term basis for at least five years.
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Shares carry no rights for the holder to require the Company to redeem the Shares prior to the relevant Redemption Date or repurchase Shares,
although the Directors have the power to repurchase or request the transfer of Shares and the Trust has indicated its willingness to buy Shares
which Shareholders wish to sell (although it is not obliged to do so).

In the event that 2 Shareholder wishes to sell all his Shares, the Administrator will endeavour te facilitate the redemption of the rel Shares
to the Trust. The Shares will be listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange but the Directors do not expect that an active secondary market will
develop.

Investors

Whilst investment in the Company can offer the potential for higher than average returns it also involves a correspondingly higher degree of
risk and Is only considered appropriate for Investors who can afford to take that risk, which may include the risk of the loss of the entire
investment. An Investor must have extensive knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and be capable of evaluating such
mevits and risks. Each Investor represents, as part of his application for Shares, that he satisfies these criteria and that he is acquiring the Shares
for investment.

h)

Tax and Regulatory Changes and changes in Interpratation, administration or application

The tax consequences to the Company and to Shareholders (in respect of bath levels and bases of taxation), the ability of the Campany to
repatriate its assets (including any income and profit earned on those assets) and other operations of the Company are based on regulations
which are subject to change through legislative, judicial or administrative action {or in the interpretation, administration or application of such
legislative, judicial or administrative action) in the jurisdictions in which the Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser, or their
affiliates operate.

Any change in legislation or judicial or administrative action {or in the interpretation, administration or application of such legislative, judicial or
administrative action) in the jurisdictions in which the Debt Issuer and/or Equity Investment Provider(s) or their affiliates operate may adversely
affect the Company's investments in that the Debt Issuer and/for the Equity Investment Provider(s} may effect an early terrination/redermption
of the Debt Instruments and/or the Equity Linked Instrument{s) or adjust the pricing of the Debt Instruments and/for the Equity Linked
Instrument(s).

Exthange Rate Risk

The A Class Shares are denominated in GBP. All the Company's investments will be made in USD. Any Investor who anticipates a return in a
currency other than USD will bear the risk of an adverse change in the exchange rate between USD and that ather currency and any resultant
reduction in the value of the investment when denominated in that other currency. Investors’ attention is drawn to the fact that the A Class
Shares are denominated In GBP but all the investments of the Company that provides capital preservation will be denaminated in USD. Should
the GBP strengthen against the USD, then the capital preservation that is envisaged may not be effective in GRP,

Lack of Liquidity of Investments

The investments may be illiquid, difficult to value and subject to legal and other restrictions on transfer. There can be no assurances that the
Company will be able to liquidate a particular interest at the time and on the terms it desires or that the Debt Issuer will call the Debt Instrument.
The investments made by the Company as described in this Prospectus will be medium to long term and of an illiquid nature. The acquisition of
Shares in the Company should be regarded as a medium to long-term investment, as the value of the Company’s assets prior to the maturity of
the Company’s investments (described under Section Two "Purpose of the Offer” in this Prospectus) may be significantly less and the price of
the Shares may accordingly be adversely affected.

K

Risks associated with investments linked to an Index
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Performance of an index may be adversely affected by the volatility in the prices of a small number of indices included within the index. Where
there is no positive growth of the index over the Investment Period then the Equity Linked Investment{s) will expire without any value and the
Company shall receive no return {including, for the avoidance of doubt, that portion of the Company’s Funds invested in the Equity Linked
Investment(s)).

1) Risks assaciated with the Debt Instruments

Interest rates and credit spreads have shown significant volatility In recent months as global inflation and the prospect of recession In many countrles
has influenced markets. The participation of the Company in the growth of international equity rmarkets is sensitive to rates. Toillustrate, a 0.1%
change in rates will result in a c2.9% change in participation. In order to reduce the uncertainty of meeting the Company’s investrment objectives in
these circumstances, the Investment Advisor reserves the right to purchase some or all of the Debt Instruments prior to the Trade Date, and to on-sell
the Debt Instruments to the Company on the Trade Date at the same yield they were acquired. The intention is to secure the yield on the Debt
Instruments prior to the Trade Date. This will ensure that the Company can still meet Its Investment objectlves even if the yield on the Debt
Instruments in the market is lower on Trade Date. However, there is the possibility that rates increase after securing a particular yield which would
result in a lower participation than if the Debt Instruments were not secured in advance,

The fair value of the Debt Instruments on the Trade Date may be higher or lower, depending on whether interest rates and credit spreads in the
market have moved since the initial purchase by the Investment Adviser. This initial fair value gain or loss wilk not impact the Investor's return
negatively if held to maturity, as the marketed payoff will still be earned. However, if sold before maturity, there is a possibility of experiencing a mark-
to-market loss if rates have increased between the date of initial purchase of the Debt Instruments by the Investment Advisor and the Trade Date.

If the Debt Instruments are subordinated debt instruments that rank as tier 2 capital of the Debt Issuer in terms of applicable law or regulations
{*the Regulations”):

. the Debt Issuer is not entitled to exercise the Call Option, or 1o redeem the Debt Instruments, without the prior written approval of the
applicable regulator;

» If the Debt Issuer Is placed inta liquidation or Is wound-up, be subordinated to the claims of depositors and all creditors in respect of the
aobligations {the Senior Obligations) of the Debt Issuer that are expressed to rank senlor to the obligations of the Debt Issuer under the
Debt Instruments;

] If the Debt Issuer is wound-up or put into liguidation, voluntarily or involuntarily, the Company as a halder of the Debt Instruments will

not be entitled to any payments of principal or interest in respect of the Debt Instruments until the claims of depositors and all the
creditors in respect of Senior Obligations which are admissible In any such winding-up or liquidation have been paid or discharged in full,
If the Debt Issuer does not have sufficient assets at the time of winding-up or liquidation to satisfy its Senlor Obligations, then the
Company as a holder of the Debt instruments will not receive any payment in respect of the Debt Instruments;

. In addition, the rights of the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments are limited in certain respects. In particular, if the Debt Issuer
defaults on a payment of any amount due on Debt Instruments and has failed to remedy that breach within the remedy period stipulated
in the Debt Instruments, the Company as holder may only Institute proceedings for the winding-up of the Debt Issuer (andfor prove a
claim in any winding-up of the Debt Issuer) but take no other actlon in respect of that default. Only if an order of court is made or an
effective resolution is passed for the winding-up, liquidation or dissolution of the Debt Issuer will the Company as a holder of the Dabt
Instruments be able to declare (upon written notice) the Debt Instruments immediatety due and payable;

. Furthermare, there is no restriction on the amount of securities or indebtedness which the Debt Issuer may issue or incur which rank
senicr to, or pari passu with, the Debt Instruments. The issue of any such securities or indebtedness may reduce the amount recoverable
Ly the Company as holder of the Debt Instruments on a winding-up, liquidation or curatorship of the Debt Issuer

- Accordingly, although the Debt Instruments may pay a higher rate of interest than comparable instruments which are not subordinated,
there is a risk that the Company as holder of the Debt Instruments may lose all ar some of its investment should the Debt Issuer become
insolvent;

. Pursuant to the Regulations, the Debt Instruments contain a provision to the effect that, at the option of the relevant regulatory authority,
such Instruments must be written off, in part or in total, upon the occurrence of a trigger event as described below, The trigger event
{Non-Viability Event] is the earlier of: (1) a decislon that a write-off, without which the issuing bank would become non-viable, is
necessary, as determined by the relevant regulatory authority; and (2) the decision to make a public sector injection of capital, or
equivalent support, without which the issuing bank would have become non-viable, as determined by the relevant regulatory authority;

. The possibility of Write Off means that the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments may lose some or all of its investment. The
exercise of any such power by the relevant regulatory authority or any suggestion of such exercise could materially adversely affect the
price or value of an investment in the Debt Instruments and/or the ability of the Debt Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Debt
Instruments
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. Write-Off of the Debt Instruments will only occur to the extent deemed by the relevant regulator as necessary to ensure that the Debt
Issuer is viable, as specified In writing by the relevant regulator. Accordingly, any write-off of the Oebt instruments will generally be
effected to ensure compliance with these minimum requirements only

. Upon the occurrence of a Non-Viability Event {as defined above), the Debt Instruments will be cancelled {in the case of a write-off in
whole] or written-off in part on a pro rata basis (in the case of a write-off in part) in accordance with the Regulations relating to Banks

[ Further to such cancellation or Write-Off, the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments will no longer have any rights against the
Debt Issuer with respect to any amounts cancelled or written off and the Debt lssuer shall not be obliged to pay compensation in any
form. Furthermore, any such cancellation or write-off will not constitute an event of default or any other breach of the Debt Issuer's
obligations under the Debt Instruments;

. The oceurrence of a Non-Viabillty Event is therefore inherently unpredictable and depends on a number of factors, many of which are
outside of the Debt Issuer's control

. The First Call Date, will be five years after issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer exercises the Call Option in accordance
with its terms. Investors should note that, if the Debt Instruments are subordinated debt instruments, the maturity date of the Debt
Instruments is ten years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer did not exercise the Call Qption In accordance
with its terms;

. If, for any reason, the subordinated Debt Instruments are cancelled or redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity date and the proceeds
{if any) are received and retained by the Company, the Company will then invest the proceeds [if any) in other debt instruments. In this
regard Investors should take note of the counterparty and Credit Risk factors described in {b) above. There can be no assurance, upon
the early cancellation or redemption of the Debt instruments, or if any Write-Off occurs under the Debt Instruments, that the Company
will have sufficient funds to redeem or repurchase all of the Shares in full

if an event of default occurs in respect of the Debt Issuer, then the Debt instrument may terminate prior to its scheduled maturity date at a
value that is less than the value that it would have been at its scheduled maturity date. Assuming that early termination occurs and the early
termination proceeds [if any) are received by the Company, then the Company will invest the early termination proceeds (if any)in another debt
instrument. In this regard Investors should take note of the Counterparty and Credit Risk Factors described above. There can be na assurance,
upon the esrly termination of the Debt instruments, that the Company will have sufficient funds to redeem all of the Shares in full.

The First Call Date will be five years after the issua date of the Debt instruments. The Debt Issuer Is then entitled to exercise its Call Option In
accordance with its terms. Investors should note that, if the Debt Instruments are senior debt instruments, the maturity date of the applicable
Debt Instruments will be six years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer did not exercise its Calt Qption in accordance
with its terms,

if, for any reason, a senlor Debt Instrument 's cancelled or redeemed prior to its First Call Date and the praceeds (if any) are received and retained
by the Company, the Company will then invest the proceeds (if any) in other debt instruments. In this regard Investors shou!d take note of the
counterparty and Credit Risk factors described in (b) above. There can be no assurance, upon the early cancellation or redemption of the Debt
Instruments, that the Company will have sufficient funds to redeem or repurchase all of the Shares in full,

m) Fixed Income Investment

The percentage of the Company’s Funds that needs to be invested in the Debt Instrument with the intention of providing capital preservation
toinvestors will be dependent on market conditions and may therefore exceed 75% of the Company’s Funds and consequently a reduced amount
may be invested in the Equity Linked Investment(s)}.

n Forward Looking Statements and Forecasts

To the extent that this Prospectus contains forward looking statements, (including, without Emitation, statements containing the words
“believes”, "estimates”, “anticipates”, “expects”, "intends”, “may”, *will", or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other varlations or
similar expressions), such forward looking statements involve unknown risk, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results,
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financial condition, performance or achievement of the Company to be materially different from any potential future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.

Given these uncertainties, Investors are cautioned not to place any undue reliance on any forward locking statements contained in this
Prospectus.

o) Marketing of the Company’s Shares

The Directors do not propose to market the Shares, or send this Prospectus, to investors domiciled or with a registered office in any Member
State of the EEA, the UK or the US.

pl Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

‘The Company and/or interests in the Company could be subject to the application of the Forelgn Account Tax Comgliance provisions of
the U.S. Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act 2010, which implemented sections 1471-1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended ("FATCA"). FATCA generally imposes a reporting regime and potentially a 30% withholding tax with respect to
certain U.S. source income (including dividends and interest) and {from no earlier than two years after the date of publication of certain
final reguiations defining "foreign passthru payments”} a portion of non-US source payments from certain non-US financial institutions
to the extent attributable to US socurce payments ("Withholdable Payments®). As a general matter, the rules are designed to require
U.5. persons” direct and indirect ownership of non-U.S. accounts and non-U.5. entities to be reported to the U.S. Internal Revenue
Service {"IRS"). The 30% withholding tax regime can apply If there is a fallure to provide required information regarding U.S. ownership

Generally, the rules will subject all Withholdable Payments received by the Company to 30% withholding tax {including the share that is
atlocable to non-U.5. persons) unless compliance with the rules by the Company is pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement between
the jurisdiction in which the Company is based and the U.5. or the Company enters into an agreement {an "FFl Agreement”) with the IRS
to provide information, representations and waivers of non-\.5. law as may be required te comply with the provisions of the new rules,
including, information regarding Its direct and indirect U.S. accountholders.

FATCA 15 PARTICULARLY COMPLEX AND ITS APPLICATION TO THE COMPANY, INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND THE HOLDERS THEREQF
15 UNCERTAIN AT THIS TIME. EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISER TO OBTAIN A MORE DETAILED
EXPLANATION OF FATCA AND HOW THIS U.5. LEGISLATION MIGHT AFFECT EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR IN THEIR PARTICULAR
CIRCUMSTANCE,

q) US-Guernsey Intergovernmental Agreement

On 13 December 2013 the Chief Minister of Guernsey signed an intergovernmental agreement with the US {"US-Guernsey 1GA") regarding the
implementation of FATCA, under which certain disclosure requirements will be imposed in respect of certain Shareholders in the Company who
are, or are enfities that are controlfed by one or more natural persons who are, residents or citizens of the US, unless a relevant exemption
applies. The US-Guernsey IGA has been implemented through Guernsey's domestic legislation, in accordance with guidance that is published in
draft form. See "FATCA and similar measures” on for more information.

r) Common Reporting Standard

Guernsey has implemented the "Common Reporting Standard” {"CRS"). Under the CRS, certain disclosure requirements will be impesed in respect of
certaln Shareholders in the Company who are entities that are controlled by one or more natural persons who are residents of any of the jurisdictions
that have also adopted the CRS, unless a relevant exemption applies. The CRS is implemented through Guernsey’s domestic legislation in accordance
with guidance that Is published in draft form and which is supplemented by guidance issued by the Organisation for Economlic Co-operation and
Development. See "Commaon Reporting Standard” for more information.
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s) Request for Information

The Company reserves the right to request from any Investor or potential Shareholder such information as the Company deems necessary to
comply with FATCA, any FFI Agreement from time to time in force, the CRS or any obligation arising under the implementation of any applicable
intergovernmental agreement, including the US-Guernsey IGA,

t) €U list of non-cooperative tax jurisdictions

On 5 December 2017 the EU Member States released their first agreed common list of non-cooperative tax jurisdictions as part of the EU's
work to fight tax evasion and avoidance (the " list"). The & list aims to assess jurisdictions against agreed criteria for good
governance, including in relation to tax transparency, fair taxation, the implementation of BEPS and substance requirements for zero-tax
jurisdictions, The list has been updated on a number of occasions since its inception. There are alse lists of jurisdictions who have agreed to
commit to address various concerns by certain deadlines (the "commitments list"). Guernsey was included on the commitments list In relation
to ecanomic substance. In December 2018, Guernsey passed legislation regarding substance requirements and this legislation came into force
on 1 January 2019, On 12 March 2019 the EU Council confirmed that Guernsey had met its commitments to introduce economic substance
legislation. Guernsey has now been removed from the commitments list and remains off the common list.

A jurisdiction’s Inclusion on the cammon list may result in EU Member States imposing both tax and non-tax defensive measures against
entities that are present in that jurisdiction. These could include measures such as increased monitoring and audits, withholding taxes, special
dotumentation requirements and anti-abuse provisions. It should be understood that a refevant jurisdiction's inclusion on the common list
may have an adverse impact on any companies that are connected with that jurisdiction. If countermeasures such as these were to be applied
to any jurisdiction in which the Company is resident or operates there could be tax implications and/or additional compliance requirements
for the structure which could reduce returns to i s in the Company or result in other adverse tax consequences. Based upon the
activities of the Company, it is expected that economic substance requirements in Guernsey may apply to the Company with effect from on or
around 1 October 2020 as the Company is a regulated investment company which does not have an external manager.

The factors mentioned above are not comprehensive and there may be other risks that relate to or may be assaclated with an Investment In the
Company.

32, Accounting Policy, Financlal Statements and Reports
Accounting Policy

The audited statutory financial statements of the Company will be prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and
with the Law,

The next financial year will end on 30 September 2023,

Financlal Staternents and Reports

The Accounting Pericd of the Company is from 1 October to 30 September in respect of each year. Electronic copies of audited financial statements will be
sent to Shareholders at their registered emall address. Audited financlal statements will not be posted other than pursuant to receipt by the Administrator
of a specific written or emailed request. The annual report will be published within six months of the end of the annual Accounting Period. Annual

accounts will also be available through personal Jog on at the Administrator’s Website hﬂgs:{[www.apexgroup.com/ investec-basket-information/ which
will be issued to new Shareholders,

The Company may declare and pay dividends (although it is not expected the Company will pay any dividends). Any dividends paid will only be paid in line
with the policy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange and the Law, and be paid in the currency of the Shares in respect of which the dividends are being paid,
please refer to “Dividends” section in this Prospectus ,
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Litigation and Arbitration

At the date of this Prospectus the Company is not involved in any litigation or arbitration nor are the Directors aware of any pending or threatened litigation
or arbitration since incorporation.

Contract Notes

Contract notes are issued to alt Shareholders. The register of Shareholders will be maintained at the office of the Administrator.
Miscellaneous

(2} The Company does not have a place of business in the United Kingdom or South Africa.

(b} Copies of all material contracts are held by the Administrator (or its nominated agent) on behalf of the Company.

[c) The Company does not have any hedging powers.

(d) The preliminary expenses and good will of the Company will not be amortised and no expenses will be written off by the Company.

(e} Any dispute resulting from this Prospectus will be governed by the laws of the island of Guernsey.

General

{a} The Company does not have and does not expect to have, nor has it since its incorporation had, any employees.

b The Company is responsible for all its operating expenses including, without limitation, Directors’ expenses, legal costs, bank charges, Auditor's

remuneration and expenses, costs of dealing in the assets of the Company, interest on any borrowings effected by the Company, the fees of the
GFSC and the costs and expenses of the preparation, printing and, where applicable, distribution or publizhing of certificates, tax vouchers, warrants,
proxy cards, contract notes, this Prospectus and annual financial statements and all other documents in connection with the Company.

{c) The Company may be subject to withholding tax on distributions received in respect of its investments, which withholding tax may not be
recoverable.

{d) No share or loan capital of the Company has been issued, or agreed to be issued, as fully or partly paid up otherwise than in cash.

(e} Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, no amount or benefit has been paid or given or is intended to be paid or given to any promoter of the Company
nor has any prior right been granted to a distribution or the profits or assets of the Company.

{f) Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted by the Company in connection
with the issue or sale of any Share or loan Capital.

{g) As at the date of this Prospectus the Company has neither any loan capital {including term loans) outstanding or created but unitsued, or any
outstanding mortgages, charges, debentures or other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, including bank overdrafts, liabilities
under acceptance or acceptance credits, obligations under finance |#ases, hire purchase commit ts, guarantees ar other conti it liabilities.

(1] Al consents, approvals, authorisations or other orders of all regulatory authorities {if any) required by the Company under the laws of Guernsey for
the offering of the Shares, for the Administrator to undertake its obligations under the Administration Agreement and for the establishment and
management of the Company have been given.

{il Annual reports of the Company will be sent to the Company Annguncements Office of the Bermuda Stack Exchange within § months of the end of
the period to which they relate.

The $hares are offered and will be issued purswvant to a resolution of the Directors dated on or about the date of this Prospectus and as provided for in the
Articles.
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Annexure A: Most recent Financial Statements and Accounts

OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED
Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 September 2022
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year ended 30 September 2022

The Directars prasent the annual reparl and the audited finandal siatements {"the finandial statements™} of Optimal
Investment Growth Basket Limited {"the Campany”) for tha year anded 30 Septamber 2022

Principal Activity
The principatl activity of the Campany is that of a limited fife investmant holding company.

Thea Company is a Guernsey Authorised closed-anded invastment company and & subject o the Authorised Closed-
Ended Investment Schems Rules 2021. The Company is listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchangs.

Going concern

Under the terns of the Companys praspectus. following a successiul fund raising in Novembar 2018, the Iife of the
Company was extended for a pariod of betwean 5 and 10 years from 26 November 2018, subjec! to exsrcise by the
issuar of the Company's debt instrument of its call oplion over the dabl. In the opinion of the Board, it is highly ikely
that the call aption will he exercisad on the finst call date of 4 Decembar 2023. Al an Extraordinary Genera! Mesting of
the Company to be held during 2023, shareholders will be asked to approve & specist resolution to extend the kfe of
the Company for a further period from the Company’s current expected termination date of 4 December 2023, and o
authoriss the Directors (o saak o raise additional capital through a8 secondary fund raksing. Should shareholders not
approve the spacial resolution, or B insufficient capital can be ralsed far the proposad new investment term. the
Company will tarminata batween 4 Decamber 2023 and 4 December 2028, subject to exarcise of the debt issuers
call opfion, and its shares be redeemsd. However, in the view of tha Direclors, the lkelihood of shareholdars
approving the epedal resolution, and of sufficden! capital subsaquently being raised, and therefore the Company
continuing in exstance beyond 4 Decamber 2023, is axiremealy strong.

The Board considers that the Covid-18 pandemic has not had a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

During the year, there has besen considerable sconomit disruplion ss a result of geopolitical factors, principally the
Russian Invasion of Ukraine. This has affected national aconomies globally, and has had a significant mpact upon
financial markets, which has in turn impacted e valuation of the Company's equity-linked option investment.
Howeaver, the Board does nol consider that thera will be any significant impact on the Company's ability to continue
8S a guing contern, for the following reasons:

« The Company is closed-ended, as a resull of which Lthe Board has tha power to dedline requesis to redeam
shareholdings if it bakaves that such rademplions ara nat in the best interaests of the Company;

+» Should the Board agroee to a redemption, it would be offered lo the investor at a price that the assels can be
redeamsad in the markel The Company itsalf woukl not be exposed to any losses that may arise,

* The Company is less exposed to the risk of widespread investor sell-off, because of the defensive nature of the
Company's investment profile. Other than through default or insclvency of the dabt pravider, investors will be aware
that a key elemant of the Company's mvestment strategy is to provide capital protection, therefore limiting their
axposure to falls in the markets of the kind that are currently being experionced; and

* During the year and subsaquent to the repariing date, the Board has received no enquinies, either directly or via the
Investment Adviser, from investors wishing to redeem their shareholdings &l any other lime other than gl the
predatermined planned date of redamption.

As a result of the above considerations, and as the Company has sufficient working capital and adequale resources

to continue in operations and meet its liabiliies as they fall due for the foreseaable future, the Direclors have
datermined that these financial statemearnts should be prepanad on a going concem basis.

Results and Dividends
The Statsment of Comprehensive income ts set out on paga 10. The Directors do not propose a dividend for the year
(2021: £ N8).



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continuad)
For the yoar ended 30 Septoember 2022

Directors

Tha Direclors of the Comparry during the year and ta the date of this repor are detaited below.
Janing Lawis

David Stephenson

Keri Lancaster-King

Directors’ and Other Interests

Janine Lewis s a Diraclor of the Company and & director of Sanna Fund Services {Guemsey) Limited ("SFSGL")
(formerdy Praxis Fund Services Limited), the Company's Administrator, Secretary, Custodian and Registrar, David
Stephenson is a Ditector of the Company and an employee of SFSGL, and Ker Lancaster-King is a Direclor of the
Company and is a director of SFSGL. Janine Lewis, David Stephenson and Keri Lancaster-King are shareholders in
PraxisiFM Group Limited, which until 3 December 2621 was the ullimate parent company of SFSGL.,

During the year, no Direclor has had any beneficial interest in the shares of the Company,

No Director of the Company, or Investec Corpoarate and Institutional Banking (1CIB'), the Investmant Advisor 1o tha
Company, holds any right, either contingent or otherwise, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Details of fees paid to SFSGL and ICIB during the year are conlained in notes 5, 9 and 17 o these Financa)
Siatermneants,

No fees were paid to the Directors by the Company during the year.

Historica! Results
The results and assets and kabilities of the Company for the last § years are as follows:

Total
Comprehensive
Total Assets  Total Liabilities Income
£ £ £
Year ended 30 September 2022 85,213,248 68,612 11,238,870
Year ended 30 September 2021 73,954,845 49,078 8,834,186
Year ended 30 September 2020 65,145,734 74,134 2,366,024
Year ended 30 Septamber 2019 62,726,232 20,657 3,236,958
Yeat ended 30 September 2018 40,668,560 19,145 2.548 914
Investment Portfolio
The Company's investmeni portfolic comprises tha following investments:
Percentage of Cosl  Carrying Value
portfolio £ E
Investec Bank Limited Subordinatad Callable Nates 77.3% 45,204,977 64,861,812
UBS AG Index Basket Option 2.7% 8.646.081 18,031,627

5§3.851.058 83,893 439

Investec Bank Limited and UBS AG are praviders of financial services.

Statement of Directors' Rasponsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial stataments in accordance with Tha
Companies (Guemsay) Law, 2008.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statemenis for each financial year that give a trug and fair
view of the stala of affairs of the Company as al the end of the financial year. and of the profit or loss for the finangal
year,



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2022

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities {continued)
Under that law, the Directors have prapared the financial statemments in accordance with International Finandiat

Reporting Standards {(IFRSs). Under company law the Directors must nol approve the financlal statements unlass
they are satisfied that they give a trus and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and af the profit or loss for
that period. In preparing these financial staternents. the Directors are required to:

« select suitable appropriate accounting policies and apply tham consistently:
« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudant;

« stale whether IFRSs have been followad, subject to any matarial departures disdosed and explained in the
financial sialemants: and

» prepara the financial statemants on the going concarn basis unless it is inappropriate to prasume that the
Company will continue n business.
Tha Diractors confinm thal they have complied with tha above requiremants in preparing the financial statements.
The Diractors are responsible for keaping aderjuate accounting recards that are sufficient to show and axplain the
Company's transactions and disclese with reasonabla accuracy at any tima the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with The Compantes {Guemsey) Law, 2008 and with The

Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guemsay) Law, 2020. They are also responsible for safeguanding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonabls steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors confirm that:

« 50 far 85 each Dweclor is aware, thera is no relavant audil information of which the Company’s auditor s
unaware;

« aach Director has taken all the steps he ought to have taken es a Direclor to maks himseil awara of any relevant
audit information and {o astablish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information; and

s the financial statements give 8 true and fair view and have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Slandards, with The Companies (Guemsay}) Law, 2008 and with The Protaction of Investors
(Bailivack of Guamsey) Law, 2020.

Independent Auditor

Granl Thomton Limited ('GT'} has axprassed its willingness to ocontinue in office and a resolution to re-appoint GT as
auditor to the Company will be proposead at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of tha Board

Janine Lewis
Director
20 January 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the members of Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited

Opinion

We have sudited the Rnancial siatements of Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited (the “Company”) for
the year endad 30 Seplember 2022 which tomprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Financial Position, Slatement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, and notes lo the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework thal has
been applied in their preparation is spplicable law and Intemational Financial Reporling Standards {IFRSs) as
issuad by the Internationsl Accounding Standards Board {IASB).

in our opinion, tha financial stalements:

¢ gie a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 September 2022 and of its prafit
for the year then ended,

e«  arein accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the tASB: and
¢« comply with tha Companies (Guemsey) Law, 2008

Basis for opinlon

We conducted our audd in accordance with International Standards on Auditling (ISAs) and applicable law. Our
responsibifities under those slandards are further desaribed in the “Auditors responsibiliies for the audit of the
financial statements’ section of our report We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
intsrmational Ethics Standarnds Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including Intemational Independence Slandards) (IESBA Code), together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant 1o our audil of the financial statemants in Guemssy, and wa have fuffiled our
other ethical responsibitities in sccordance with these requiremants and he IESBA Code We befiave that the
audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and apprapriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, athar than the financial staternents 2nd our auditor's report thereon. Our gpinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
statad in our repor, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connaction with ous audit
of the financial staternents, our responsibility is 1o read the ather information and, in doing so, consikder whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statamaenis or our knowledge oblained in the
audit or otherwise appears to ba matesially misstated. If we identify such materia) inconsistencies or apparent
matérnial misstaternents. we are required to detarmine whether thera is a malenal misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstaternent of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there Is a material misstatermant of this other information, we ara raquired to report that fact. Wa
have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies {Guernsey)
Law, 2008 requires us to raport to you if, in our opinion:

= proper accounting records have not bean kept by the Company; or
* the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

s  we hava nat obtained al tha informetion and explanations, which to the besi of our knowledge and befist,
are necessary for the purposes of our audit.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the members of Optimal investment Growth Basket Limited (continued)

Respansibilities of the Directors for the financial stataments

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the Direclors are
responsihle for the praparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as the Direclors datermine is necessary {o enable the preparstion of
finaneial stataments thal are free from material misstalement, whether dus to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
cantinue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, malters relaled to going concem and using the going
concarmn basis of accounting untess the Drectors elther intend o liquidate the Company or to cease aperations,
or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of tha financial statements

Our objectivas are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements as a whole ere free
from materizl misstalernent, whether due to fraud or error, ang to issue an suditor's reporl that includes our
opinion. Reasonsble assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not 8 guarantes that an audit conducted in
acoordance with iISAs will always detect a material misstatament whan it axists. Misstatermants can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in lhe aggregate, they oould reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of thesa financial stataments.

As part of an audit In accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audil. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of mataria) misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenca that is
sufficient and sppropriate to provide a& basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materal
misstatemant resulting fform fraud s higher than for one resulling from armor, as frsud may involve
collusion, forgery, ntentional omissions. misrepresentalions, or the override af internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contral rablevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecliveness
of the Company's internal control

s Evaluate the appropristenass of accounting poficies used and the reasonabtensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemsant.

+ Condude on the appropnalensss of managament’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit avidence abtained, whether a material uncenainty exists refated to evaents or conditions
that may cast significant doubl on the Campeny's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conctude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the retaled
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions am based an the sudit evidence obtained up to the date of our audilor's reporl. Mowever,
fulure events or condilions may causa the Company ! cease to continus as a going concem.

» Eveluate the overall presentation, structure and conteni of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial slalemants represent the undarlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, induding any significant defliciencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Wb also provide those charged with governanca with a statemeant thal wa have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independences, and o communicate with them all relationships and othar matters thatl
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, relatad safeguands.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the members of Optimat Investment Growth Basket Limited {(continued)

Use of gur report

This report is made solely o the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the
Companies (Guamsey) Law, 200B. Our audit work has baen undertaken so that we might state lo the
Company's members those matters we are required lo state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extenl permitted by law, we do nol accepl or assuma responsibility to gnyone other
than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions
we have farmed.

Grant Thornton Limited
Charlered Accountants
St Paler Ponl

Guemsay
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2022

INCOME
Interast income

{LOSSES)MGAINS ON INVESTMENTS
Unrealised (loss ¥gsin on investmants al fair value through profit or foss

Operating expenses
Faraign exchanga (losses)pains

(LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/X1.08S)
{tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign axchange transislion gains/{losses)

Othet comprehensive income/{loss) for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

{Loss)learnings per ordinary share
Basic and diluted (loss)earnings per A Class share

Basic and dikted (lossVaamings per B Class shars

Optimal investment Growth Basket Limited Prospectus [2023/2024]

Notes

10
10

2022 2021
£ £
3,317,151 2,957,558
(5948,099) 9,307,386
{2,620,948) 12265045
(845,885) (811,085)
{17,088) 4,857
(3493,731) 11,458,807
14,732,801 (2,624,641)
14,732,601  (2,624.841)
11,238,870 8,834,168
117.41) 385.10
{117.41) 385.10
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 September 2022

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
tnveaiments at fair velue through profit and loss
tnvestments at amortised cost

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other recelvablea

Long-term deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and athes payables

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Ehare capital

Share premium

Retained earings
Teanslation reserve

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Number of fullty pald Class A shares
Number of fully pald Class B shares

Nel Assel Value per Class A share
Net Assal Velue per Ciass B share

Nates

"

12

12

13
14
15
16

2022 2024
£ £
19,031,627 21,430,505
64,861,812 50,626,414
83,863,439 72,056,919
153,516 130,816
271,811 1,456,195
194,482 310,815
1,310,809 1,897,926
{24,650) {17.375)
1265150 1,880,551
{43.962) (31,704)
85,144,636 73,905,766
279 279
45,524,460 45,524,460
28.192,851 31,686,582
11,427,046 (3,305,558)
BS5,144,636 73,905,766
16.752.948 16,752,946
13.002.754 13,002.754
E2,861.45 £2,483.75
US$3,196.25 USE3.346.61

The financial siatements were approved and authorised for issus by the Beard on 20 January 2023 and signad on it

behalf by:

Janine Lowls
Diractor

The notea an pages 14 1o 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT Of CASH FLOWS
For the year endad 30 September 2022

Notes
Cash ficws from operating activities
{Loss)¥profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Intarest income 6
Interast expense 9
Lossi{gain) on Investments at fair vatue through profit and boss 7
Foreign exchange losseaigaing)

(increase)/decrease in trade and othes recelvablas (axcluding inlerest receivable)
tncrease/{decrease) in rade and other payabies (axcluding intesest payabie)

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Cash flows from Investing activities

Bank tnterest
Transfer from long-term depoelts

Net cash inflow from inveating activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash squivaients at the baginning of the year
Forelgn exchange translation gains/(loases)

Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year

2022 2021

£ £
(3.493,731) 11,458,807
(3.317,151) (2,957,659}
4,988 1,724
5,048,000  (9,307.386)
17,008 {4,857}
{21,769) 450
7.275 {25.408)
{855,191) (834,3682)
8.017 0.528
484,384 671,651
492.401 681,179
(362,790) {153.203)
310,815 £77.526
246,457 {113.508)
194,482 310.815

The notes on pages 14 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statemants,



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 30 Septembaer 2022

. GENERAL INFORMATION

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited (*the Company™} is a company incorpomated and domidled in Guemszey
under The Companies {Guemsey) Law, 2008. Tha address of the registered office ia glven on page 3. The principal
activity of the Company and iis opesations are detelled on page 4. These finandal statements are preserted in
Sterding. The functional currency of the Company ts US Dollars.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foltawIng accounting policies have been applied consistantly in deaing with itema which sre considersd material
in retation to the Company's financlal statemants_

Baala of preparation

The financial stataments of the Company, have been prepared in aocordance with Internationsd Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS'). The financia! statements comply with IFRS as iasved by the Intematicnal Accounting Standards
Board ("IASE").

The financlal siatements have been prepared on the histodcal cost basis, excapl for the ravatuation of cerlain
financial Instruments maesured at {air value.

Galng concern

Under the tetms of the Company's prospectus, following 8 successaful fund ralsing in November 2013, the Ife of the
Company wes extaended for 2 period of betwesn 5 and 10 yeare from 26 Novamber 2018, subject to exercise by the
Issuer of the Company's debt Instrument of it call option ovar the dett. in the opindon of the Board, it is highty likaly
that the call option will be exerdsed on the firat call date of 4 December 2023. At an Extraordinary Generat Meeting
of the Company i be held during 2023, shamholders will ba asked to approve 8 spedal resolution to axtand the kfe
of the Company for a further pariod from the Company's current expected termination date of 4 Decamber 2023, and
to suthonise the Direciors to seek lo raise additionat capital through a sscondary fund mising. Should shareholders
not epprove the spedal resolution, or if Insufflclent capital can be raised for the proposed new nvestment term, the
Company will ferminate between 4 December 2023 and 4 December 2026, subject to exarclse of the debt issuer's
call option, and its shares be redeemed. However, in the view of the Directors, the likelihood of sharehoiders
appeoving the speclad resalution, and of sufficient capital subsequently being ralaed. and herefore the Company
continuing In exislence beyond 4 December 2023, is extremaly strang.

Tha Bosard considers that the Cavid-19 pandemic has not had a significant impact on the Company's abdity 10
continue as a golng concem.

During the yesar, there haa been considarable economic disruption ag a result of geopofitfcal factora, peincipally the
Rutasian invasion of Ulraine. This has affected national economies globally, and has had & significant impact upon
financial markets, which has in tum impacied the valuation of the Company's equity-linked option investment.

However, the Board does not conaider that there wilt ba any significant Impact on the Company's ability to conlinue
as & golng concem, for the following reasons:

= The Company is dosed-anded, as a reault of which the Board has the power % decline requests to redeem
sharehoidings i it belleves that such redemptions are not in tha best intarests of the Company:

= Should the Board agree to a redemption, i would be offered to the Invesior at a price thal the assets can be
redeemed in the markat. The Company iself would not be expased 1o any iossea that may anise;

« Tha Company Is less exposed to the risk of widespread investor sell-off, because of the defensive nature of the
Company's investment profiie. Other than through defaull or insoivency of the debt provider, investora will be sweare
that a kay element of the Company's investmant strategy is to provide capilal protaction, therefore [imiting thelr
exposure 1o falls in the markets of the kind that are currently being experienced; and

« During the year and subsequent to the reporting date, the Board has recelved no enqulties, either directly or via the
Investment Adviser, from invesiors wishing to redeem their shareholdings at any ather time other then at the
predatermined planned date of redermption.

As a result of the above considerations, and as the Company has sufficient working capital and adequate resourcesa
to continue in opesations and maet its Eabliies as they fll dus for the foreseeable future, the Directors have
determined that thase financial statements should be prepared on a going concem basia.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
For the year andad 30 September 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Adoption of amended standards

In August 2020, the IASB completed its "Replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform’ projact, which
amended certain existing standards effective for periods cammencing on or afier 1 January 2021. In the opinion of
the Directors, the adoption of these amended standards has had no matsrial impact on the Financial Statements of
the Company.

Amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following relevant standards, which have not been applied in these Financial Stataments, ware in issue at the
reporting date but not yet effective:

+ IAS 1 (amended), 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ — (amerdmeants relating to the classification of zbiities
and disclosure of accounting policies, effactive for ancounting pariods commencing on or after 1 January 2023);

* IAS 8 (smended). ‘Accounting Polides, Changes in Accounting Estimatss and Efrors’ — ({clarifying how
companies should distinguish changes in accounting poficies from changes in accounting estimates, effective for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023); and

+ 1AS 37 (smanded), 'Provisions, Contingent Linbifiies and Contingenl Assets’ - (ralating to the costs to include
when asaessing whether a contract ts onewus, effective for accounting perinds commencing on or after 1
January 2022).

In addition, the IASBE has issued ite publication "Annual Improvements 1o IFRS Standards 2018-2020°, which has
amended certain existing standards, effective for accounting periods commencing on of after 1 January 2022,

In the apinion of the Directars, the adoption of these smended standards will have no material impact on the
Finarcial Statements of the Company.

Financial assets - classification
Under IFRS 9, the classification and measwement of financial agsets is driven by the entity's businass madet for
managing the financial assets and the contractuat cash flow characteristic of thosa financial assets.

The Company has determined that it has two distinct business models, as follows:

(i) To nvast in a holding of Investec Bank Limitet Unsecured Subosdinated Callable Notes {the ‘Mates’). Under IFRS
B, financial assats that are debt instruments may be classified as either (a) amortised cost, (b) fair vatue through
ather comprehensive income or () fair value through profit and loss "FVTPL®). The purpose of the Company’s
investmeant in the Notes is to collect the contractual cashflows of solely payments of principal and intsrest arising on
maturity, which will provide capital protection for investors in the Company, and aocordingiy. the Company has
datermined that this investmant should be classifiad as an investmeni at amortised cosL

(i) To invest in an option knked to a basket of mdices, in order to provida mvestors with a potential upsida on their
investment. Under the terms of IFRS 9, the optian is automatically dlassified as an investment at FVTPL.

Financial assets - recognition and subsequent mezsurement
Purchased financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Company irrevocably commits
to purchase the asset.

All investments are measured initially at fair value net of transaction costs, except whera the investmant will
subsequanily be measured at FVTPL. Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of investments al FVTPL are
expensed as incumed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Afier initial recognition, the Company's Option investment s measured at FVTPL. Fair value is calculated using
quoted market prices, independent appraisals, discounted cash flow analysis or other appropriate valuation modsls
at the reporting date. Changes In tha fair velue of financial assets at FYTPL are recognised in other gains/{losses) in
profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as applicable.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad}
For the year ended 30 September 2022

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({continued)

Financlal sssets - recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Afler inttial recognition, the Company's Notes are measured at emortisad cost using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income fromn this financial essel is included in proft or loss. Any gain or loss ansing on
derecognition s recognised directly in profit or loss end presented in other gainsf{loeses) together with foreign
exchange gaine and losses. Impaimment losses, mcluding expected credit losses at initia! recognibon and changes to
expecied credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition, are presented
as a separate lne e in profit or loss in the Staternant of Comprehensive Income.

All gaina or losses are recognised in the period in which they arfse.

investments are derscognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the invesiments have expired or the
Company has fransferred substantially all risks and rawards of ewnership.

Liquid resources

Liquid resourcas comprise cash and cash equivalents and long-term deposits. Cash and cash equivalents comprises
bank balances and short term deposits with an criginal matunity of three months or lsss. Depaosits with an original
maturity of greater than three months are classified as long-term deposits.

Trade and other receivablea

Trade and other receivabtdes are recognised mitially at the amount of cansideration that is unconditional. unless they
contain significant financing components, when they ame recognisad el fair valve. The Company holds lhe
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amaortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 sanplified spproach o measuring expacted wedil losses which uses a lifetime
axpectad loss allowsnoe for all trade receivables and contract assets.

Financial Habllities

Financial tiabifities, other than those at FYTPL, am measurad at amortised cost using the effective interest mte
method.

Interest income

interest inoome on financial assets al amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rete method and
recognisad in profit or loss.

Foreign axchange

Itermns induded in the financial statements of the Company sre messured in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates {the “functicnal cummency”™). The Directors have determined that the
functionad cumency of the Company is US Dollars, as it is the cumency in which the Company's investments are
denominated, a significant proportion (aithough not the majornity) of capital raised, and m which the majority of the
Company's expenses are incurred. The Diractors have selected Sterding as the presentation currency of the
Company.

Foreigh currency assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the reporting date.
Foreign currency transacfions are transiated into the functional curmency of US Dotlars at the rate of exchange nding
at tha date of the transaction, and then franslated inip Sterfing at the sverage exchangs rate for the reporting penod.
Faoreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statament of Comprahensive Income in the pericd n
which they arise. Differences arising on tanslation from the functional currency to the presentation cumency are
racognised in other cornprahensiva income in the period in which they anse and are taken to the trensiation reserve.

Expenses

Expenses sre accourded for on an accruals basis. All expenses are charged to the Staterment of Comprehensive
Incoma, except for expenses incumed in relation to the launch of the Company, which have been charged against
share premium.

Taxation

The Company is exempt from Guemsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exampt Bodies) (Guernsay) Ordinance
1889 and is charged an annual exemption foe af £1,200 {2021: £1,200).



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 Septomber 2022

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Board of Directors considers that the Company is engaged in a single segment of businass, being the holding of
investments. The Board considars that it is the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimetas and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lisbifities and disclosure of contingent
assels and Labifities at the date of the finandal statemants and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporiing period. The estimates and associatad assumplions are based on historical experiance and other
factors that are congidered to be relavant. Actual results could differ from such estimatas.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to acoounting estimates
are recognised in the penod in which the estimate was revised if the revision sffects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas mvolving significant estimates of judgemenis are:

¢ Classification of and subsequent measurement basis of financial instruments - see note 2 (Financia! assets —
dassification);

* Determination of the functional currency - see note 2 (Foreign exchange;

* Estimated fair valus of financial assats measured at FVPL - see note 7: and

* Impairment of fimanctal assets messured at amortised cost - sea notes B and 11.

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
Tha following sign#ficant agresments have been entared into by the Company:

Administration, Custodian and Secretarial Agreement

Under the Administration, Cusiodian and Secratarial Agresment, with effect from 28 November 2018, the Company
has agreed to pay or procure to be paid to the Administrator, for its services as administrator, secretary, custodian
and registrar, a fee of (.135% (2021: 0.135%) per annum of the Company’s funds {as reduced by any redemptions
of shares prior to the Redemption Date, for which the Administrator may receiva a settiement and registration fee of
up to 0.5% of the value of the redemption). In addition the Adminisirator is entifled to recelve interest eamed by the
Company on the unpaid elament of the fees. See notes 9, 11, 12 and 17 for details of administration fees and
interest paid in the year and balances outstanding at the year end.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Under the Investment Advisory Agreement, with effect from 28 November 2018, the Company has agreed to pay or
procure to be paid to the Advisor, for its services as advisor, a fae of 0.65% (2021: 0.65%) per annum of the
Company's funds (as mduced by any redemptions of shares prior to the Redemption Date, for which the Investment
Advigor may raceive 8 settlement and ragistration fee of up to 0.75% of the value of the redemption). In addition the
Adwvisor ts entitted to receive interest eamed by the Company on the unprid element of the fees. See notes 9, 11, 12
and 17 for details of invastment advisory fees and interest paid in the year and balances outstanding st the year end.

Distribution Agreement

Under the Distribution Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay of procura to be paid to the Distributors a fee of
0.65% (2021° 0.65%) per znnum of that partion of the Cempany's funds that is derived from the subscription amount
subscribed for by Subscribers introduced by the Distributor (s reduced by any redemptions of such shares prior to
the Redemption Date), ar hoiders of exsting issued shares introduced by the Distrituior and who elect to remain
invested in the Company (as reduced by any redemplions of such shares pricr to the Redemption Date). Investec
Corpomte and Institutional Banking. the Company’s Investment Advisor, is also a Distibutor for the Company. See
notes 9. 11 and 12 for details of distribution fees paid in the year and balances cutstanding st the year and.

All fees described above are payable annually in advance on the anniversary of tha Trade Date (the date of
investmant of the Company’s funds) each year until the Termination Date.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 Soptember 2022

INTEREST INCOME 2022 2021
£ E

Intergst on investments &t amortised cost 3,308,303 2,847 342

Bank interest 8,848 10,317

3,317,151 2,957 659

The aeffactive interast rate used for catcudating the interest an the Notes is 6£.2108% (2021: 8.2108%).

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 2022 2021

E £
uUBS AG index Option
Fair value brought forward 21,430,508 12,590,871
Fair value adjustment (5,948,099) 9,307,388
Translation difference 3,549,221 {476.752)
Fair value carried forward 19,031,627  21.430,505

On 28 November 2018, the Company acquired an option issued by UBS AG (the “Option®} inked to a basket af
indices camprising the following:

« S&P 500 Index 40%
 Euro Stoxx 50 Index 25%
« Nikkei 225 Index 20%
+ iBhares MSCI Emerging Markets Index 15%

Tha Direciors determina the fair value of the Option based on vahuations provided by UBS AG. The valuation/price of
the Option is calculated by UBS AG using an option pricing model and a bid/ask price spread is published daily on
Reuters.

The Option has boen classified as a iewvel 2 investmant in the fair value hierarchy as the valustion is derived from
observable inputs other than quoted prices in an active market (see note 18(iv)). The kay inputs to the valuation were
the notional value of tha Option of USD 74,0968,643.48 (2021: USD 74,096,643.48) and tha published bid price of the
Option of 2B.69% (2021: 38.97%) as at 30 September 2022. The kay inputs io tha published bid price of the Option
were the closing prices as st 30 September 2022 of the S&P 500 index {3,585.62 (2021: 4,307 .54)), Euro Staxx 50
index (3.318.20 {2021: 4,048.08)). Nikkei 225 index (25,937.21 (2021: 28.452.66)) and iSharas MSCI Emerging
Markets index (34.88 {2021: 50.38)).

INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 2022 2021

£ E
Investec Bank Limited Unsecured Subordinated Callable Notes
Carmrying value broaght forward 50,626,414 49,709,874
Interast 3,308,303 2,847 342
Translation difference 10,927,093 {2.030,802)
Canrying value camied forward 64,861,812 50,626,414

The lovestec Bank Limited Unsacured Subordinated Caltable Notes {the "Notes®) wera acquired on 3 Dacember
2018. The Notes function as zero coupon notas for a pariod of five yaars, and are radeemable at the option of the
issuar on 4 Dacermber 2023. Should the Notes not be redeamed on 4 December 2023, they will subsequantly be
reciassified as Floating Rate Notes, paying interest quarierly at a rate of 3 month USD LIBOR plus 3.413%, with an
ultimate compulsory matunty date of 4 Decamber 2028.



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 Saptember 2022

INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

The Notes are measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest rate method. The effactive intarest used for
calculating the interest income is disdosed in note 6.

The calculation of impairment, induding expectsd credit losses, s based on assumpiions about risk of default and
expected loss retes. The Company uses judgments in making this assumption and selecling the inpuis to the
impairmeni calculation based on pas! history and existing markat conditions (see note 18(i)). The Company has
assessed the investment in the Notes for impairment and expected oradit losses at the reporting date and has
condluded that as at the year end no impairment or credit iossas are expected aver the fife of the investment {2020:
no Impairment or credit lnssas were expected ovar the life of the investment).

The fair value of the Notes, calcutated by ICIB at 30 Septembar 2022, was £60.916,470 (2021: £48,863,206).

OPERATING EXPENSES 2022 2021

£ £
Investment advisory fees 376,095 355,870
Dasinbution fees 361,967 363,713
Administration fees 79,818 75,077
Auditor's remuneration 7.109 8,227
GFSC Licance faas 3702 3,448
Listing and sponsor fees 8,687 8,220
Statutory feas 1.57% 1,724
Interest expense 4,888 1,721
Sundry expenses 1.74) 3,005
845,635 811,695

. {LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Tha calautation of basic and diluted (loss)earnings per share is basad on the following data:

{Loss)earnings attributable la shares: 2022 2021
{Loss)eamnings for purpose of basic and diluted (loss)feamings per share being

{loss)profit for the year attributable to shareholders €(3.493,731) £11,458.807
Number of shares:

Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic and d@uted

{loss}/eamings per share 29,7585.700 29,758.700
Earnings per share aliributable to A Class shares £{117.41) £385.10
Earnings per share attributable to B Class shares £{117.41) £385.10

A weighted avarage number of shares has been calculated to ensble users to gain a fairer understanding of the
eamings genarated per share through the year. The weighted avarage has besn calculated with reference to the
number of days shares have actually been in issue and hence their ability to influance mcoms generated.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 Septomber 2022

11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2022 2021

£ £
Bank interest receivable 1.620 788
Prepaid administration feas 14,475 12,000
Prepaid distributor fees 66,655 57.431
Prepaid investment advisory fees 69,698 57,779
Other prapaymants 1.088 2m7
154,518 130,916

The bslance of trade and other receivables principally comprisas prepayments, therefore a provision for expected
credit losses is not required.

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2022 2021
£ E
Cumvent
Audit fae 8,100 8,000
Interest payable 9.375 9,375
Other accruals 7478 -
24,650 17,375
Non-current
Interast payable 43,962 31,704

13. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Faollowing the adoption of the Company’s amended Articles of Association cn 18 May 2018, the Company ne lenger
has any defined authorised shara capital.

2022 2021
£ £
Issued and fully paid:
10 Management shares of £1 each 10 16
16,752.946 A Class shares of £0.01 each 168 168
13,002.754 B Class shares of U550.01 each 101 101
2719 rijl

A (lsss and B Class shares are antitfed to 1 voto each &t & general meeting of the Company. Under the tarms of the
Company's prospectus, and in tha absence of & further specisl resolution to extand tha life of the Company, the
Company's shares will be redesmed and the Company will terminats between December 2023 and December 2028.
A Class and B Class shareholdars are entitled to receive any dividends or distributions from the Company and any
surplus arsing on the winding up of the Company afler the payment of creditors and redemption of the Management
shares at their nominal vadue.

Management shares ara entitled to 10.000 voies each al a general meeting of the Company. Management shares
may only be owned by The Basket Trust {see note 17) or its nominea. Management shareholdars are not entitled to
recaive any dividends or distributions from the Company nor sny surplus arising on the winding up aof the Company in
excess of the nominal value of the Management shares.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the yoar anded 30 Saplembar 2022

14.

15.

16.

SHARE PREMIUM
Movements in share premium are attributable to A Class and B Class shareholders as follows:

2022 A Class B Ctass Total
£ £ £
Balance brought forward and camied forward 20,213,186 25,311,274 45,524,460
2021 A Class B Class Totat
Balance camed forward 20,213,186 25311274 45524,460
RETAINED EARRINGS
Movements in retained earnings are atiribulable bo A Class and B Class shareholders as follows:
2022 A Class B Class Totat
£ £ £
Balanca brought forward 21,252 667 8,433,918 31,686,582
Net lass far the year (1,967,028) {1,526,703]) (3,493,734}
Balance camied forward 21,285.610 6,807,212 28,192 85¢
2021 A Class B Ciass Totat
E E £
Balance brought forward 16,801,171 3426604 20,227,775
Met profit for the year 6,451,496 5,007,311 11,458,807
Balance camied forward 23,252 667 8433915 31688582
TRANSLATION RESERYE
Movements in the tmnsiation reserve ara attributabla to A Class antd B Class shareholders as follows:
2022 A Class B Class Total
£ € £
Balance brought forward (1,861.082) {1,444 473} (3,303,555)
Foreign exchange translation gains 8,204,695 6,437,006 14,732,601
Balance camed forward 6,431,614 4993432 11,427,046
2021 A Class B Class Total
£ E E
Balance brought forward (383,366) {287.548) (680,914}
Foreign exchange translation losses (1.477.716) {1.146,925) (2,824,841}
Balance camred forward (1,861,082) {1.444.473) (3,305,555}
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
For the year anded 30 Septomber 2022

17.

18.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY & RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Tha immediate cantroling party at the year end date is Praxis!FM Trust Lomited as trustea of The Basket Trust,
which owns the Managamenl shares in the Company. Thera is no ullimata controlling party of tha Company.

The uttimate controtfing party of PraxisiFM Trust |imited is PraxisiFM Group Limited (PGL’). Until 3 December 2021,
PGL vras slso the ultimate controlling party of Sanne Fund Services {Guemsey) Limited (SFSGL" (formerty Praxis
Fund Servicas Limited), the administrator of the Company. SFSGL is deemed to ba g relatad parly, as Janina Lawis
{a Director of the Company) is a director of SFSGL; David Stephanson (a Direcior of the Company) is an empioyee
of SFSGL; and Ker Lencaster-King {a Director of the Company) is a director of SFSGL. During the year SFSGL
earned £79.818 (2021: £75,007} for their services as edministrator. At the year end date administration fees of
£14,475 had baen paid to SFSGL in advance (2021: £12,000) and interest of £7,543 on outstanding fees (2021:
£5,438) was payable to SFSGL.

The Investment Advisor, Investec Corporate ard Institutional Banking (TICIB"), a division of investac Bank Limited,
and Investec Bank Limited itsalf, are deemed tn be related parbes. During the year ICIB earned £376,085 (2021:
£355,870) for their services as investment advisor. At the year end date advisory fees of £89.688 (2021: £57 778}
had been paid {o ICIB in advance and inferest on oulstanding fees of £45,785 (2021: £35,641) was payable to ICIB.
The balances and transactions during the year with investec Bank Limited related to the investments at amortised
cost are disclosaed in nole B.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS

The Company is axposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk from the finencial instruments & holds. Tha
Company has a fixad modus operandi, as stated in its prospactus, which is to invest its capital in a zem coupon bond
{or cther structured product with similar characteristics) and en option or opbons on a specified mdex or basket of
indices; and to retain a cerntain alement of cash to cover expenses to be incurred over the specified period of its kife.
As a result of this, the Compeny’s flexibifity in dealing with the nisks associaled with these instruments is somewhat
limited. However, the risk managemen! pobcwn that are employed by the Company o manage these risks are
discussed below. There have been no changes to the Company's exposure to marke! risk, cred® sk and liquidity
risk; or its objectives, polices and procadures for managing such risks, since the pnor year.

{i) Market risk
{a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the valua of finandal instruments will fluctuata due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Cumency risk arises when future commercial bransactions and recognised assets and lbilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency of US Doflars. As at 30 Saptember
2022, the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to the following assets and lisbdities:

2022 2021
Source currency £ £
Cash and cash equivalents Sterfing 100,584 112,426
Trada and other payabies Sterfing {18.603} {17.375)
Cash and cash equivalents South African Rand - 10,151
20,981 105,196

Al 30 Seplember 2022, the foreign currency exposure of the Company against the functional currency of US
Doltars, pnncipally to Sterling, represented 0.1% of Equity Shareholdar's Funds {2021: 0.1%). The Company's
policy is not to manage the Company's exposure to foreign exchange movements by entering into any foreign
exchange hedging transactions. if the exchange rate of the US Doflar against Sterling at the ysar end dats had
baen 10% higherlower, this would have resulted in an increasaldacrease in the year end net asset vatue af
£8,048 (2021: increase/decreasa of £10,520). The sensitivity rate of 10% is regarded as reasonable as this & the
approxdmate volstility of Sterling against the US Dollar in the year.



OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 30 Saptamber 2022

1B8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS {continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of g finzncial instrument will fluchuate because
of changes in market inferest rates. The Company is exposed to inberest rate risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and fixed deposits and on interest payable on outstanding future fees. At 30 September 2022, the
Company held cash and cash equivalents of £184.482 (2021: £310,815), which eamad interest at a8 weighted
average rale of O% (2021: 0%), and held s long-term deposit of £971,811 (2021: £1,456,195), which earnad
inlerest at a rate of 2.70% (2021: 0.65%). At 3D September 2022, the Company had culstanding future fees an
which interest &5 payable of £681,657 (202%: £1,163,075), on which interest st a rate of 2,70% is payable (2021:
0.85%).

Had these balances existed for the whole of the year and all other factors remained the same, the effect on the
Statemant of Comprehensive Income of an increase of 1.0%/decrease of 0.5% in shor-term interest raies (2021:
increase/decreasa of 0.25%) per annum would have been an increase of £5.846/decrease of £1,951 in total
comprehensive incoma for the year (2021: increase of £1,510Vdecrease of £733) The sensitivity rates of 8 1.0%
increase and 0.5% decrease are regarded as reasonable following the recent brand of significant hikes in interest
rales glabally.

The Company had no other malerial interest rate exposures as at either 30 Septembar 2022 or 30 Seplember
2021. The Company’s Notas are not interest-baaring, however the Notes are measured using amortised cost and
the unwind of the discount over the iife of the Notes is charged as interast to the Statement of Comprehansive
income.

{c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of @ financial instrumant will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from interest rate risk of currancy risk), whether caused by factors spacific to an
individual investmant, its issuer or all factors affecting all mstrumants traded in the market. The Company's
investment in lnvestec Bank Limited Callable Notes is measured at amortised cost, and is therefore not subject to
price risk. The Company's Opbion is directly affecied by changes in market prices.

Price risk is managed =t inception by investing in a combination of two financial insiruments: a hokding of zero
coupan bonds (or ather structured product with similar charectenstics) that shauld provide capital protedtion for
investors; and a call option an a basket of indices that the investment advisor believes is most likely to provide
positive performance during the life of ihe Company. In order to provide capital protection, the amount of Notes
acquired is caladated with the intention that the maturing amaunt will ba sufficant to guarantea that all investors
who remain in the Company to maturity will at minimum get back the amaunt that they invested plus a returmn of
5%. The call option provides the polential for significant upside perfarmance, should the relevant indicas perform
wedl, with the downside limited 1o loss of the initial option premium.,

The investment premise of tha Company involves participation in the potentisl upside afforded by the Option,
whilst enjoying the capital protection afforded by the Notes. Therefore, whilst the Board monitora the performance
of the Option and Notes, it is unlikely that the Board would consider redeeming these at any siage, other than in
redation {0 the redemption of invesiors’ shares. As a rasult, the management of price nsk effectively occurs at the
incaption of the Company in the selection of investments, and is not an active ongoing process during tha
remainder of the lifa of the Company.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 Septomber 2022

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS {continued)
() Market risk (continued)
{c) Price risk {continuad)
The investments at FVTPL axposs the Company o price risk. The details are as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
UBS AG Index Option 19,031,627 21,430,505

19,031,627 21,430,505

A 50 per cent increaseldecrease in ihe published grice of the Option at 30 September 2022 would have
increasedidecreasad the Net Asset Value of the Company by £9,515,814 (2021: a8 50% decrease in the published
price of the Option wouldd decrease the Net Asset Value of the Company by £10,715,253, but dus Ip the cap on
the option contract, a 50% increass in the published price of the Option would incraasa the Net Asset Value of the
Company by £8,828,328} The sensitivity rate of 50% is regarded as reasonable dus to the potential volatility of
the indices to which the UBS AG Option is Enked, magnified by the paricipation rate of 244.55% attachex to the
Option.

{Ki) Credit risk

Credi risk arisas when a failure by counter-parties to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount of future
cash inflows from financial asseis on hand &l the yaar end data. These financial assefs incdude cash and cash
equivalents, long-term deposits, debtors, investments at amortised cost and investments al FVTPL. Tha Campany's
exposure (o credil risk arises from default of the counterparty with a8 maximum exposure equal to the canying value
or fair value of these instrumants.

The Company states in its Prospectus that it will invest in subordinated debt instruments issued by Investec Bank
Limitad ("IBL") ard an option linked to a specifiad indax. and provides extansive disclosure to shareholders of thase
instruments and tha risks attached thereto. As a result of this, the Company's policy for managing the oredi risk
attached to the Company’s financial assets is to monitor the credit mting of the relevant counterparty for any
significant deterioration, without referenoe to an absohute range of credit ralings. in the event of there beng any
significant detarioration in the perceived creditworthiness of the caunterparty to 8 point where shareholders” interest
may be at nsk, the Directors in their absolute discretion would consider the following courses af aclion: selling the
relovant securiies (o third party purchasers and reinvesting the proceads in the purchasa of securitiea of anaother
tssuer, such that the new sacuriiies would replicate as dosely as possible the terms and conditions of the originat
securifies; and transferring cash to another banking institution. At nitial recognition of the Notes and the Option, the
Dwrectors considered the credit risk sttached to these instrumenis to be low, and this remains their view. The
Diractors would only seek to sell the relavant securities or transfer cash if they (in consultation with the investmant
advisor} congider on the advice of the investment advisor that such would be n the bast mierests of the Company
and its shareholders.

In accordance with this policy, the Boerd (in consultation with the nvestment advisor) has noted that the Fitch long-
ferm credd rating of IBL as at 30 Septembaer 2022 was BB- (30 Septernber 2021; BB-). The year end rating of
Invesiec plc, a sister company to IBL, which holds the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, is BBB+ (2021: BBB+).
As B resull, the Directors and the investment advisor befieve thst it is not n the best interest of shareholdars to
attempt 10 unwind the Notes prior to thelr maturity date on 4 December 2023, as they bulieve firsily that there has
been no significant deterioration in the creditworthiness aof IBL, and secondly that obigining an sBernative investment
with an institubion with a higher credit mting could only be achieved on less favoursble terms than those offared by
the Notes, which could affect the Company’s ebdity to offer capital protection to shareholders on their investment.

The Company monitors the creditworthiness of its counterparties on an ongoing basis and considers a financial asset
1o ba in default when the counterparty fails to make contractusl payments within 80 days of when they sl dua. No

mstances of default or significani changes to the Company's credit risk or expectad loas rates have baen identified n
the last 12 months.
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year endad 30 Septomber 2022

18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS (continued)

() Credit risk (continued)
The majority of the Company's trade and other receivablas consists of prepayments and there is no credit risk
assodated with these balances.

The Option is held with UBS AG, which has a Fitch long-tarm rating of AA- (2021: AA-). The cash and cash
equivalents are beld with Investec Bank (Channel Islands) Uimited, whiach has a Fitch long term rating of BBB+ (2021:
BBB+).

{ili} Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk is the nsk that the Company will not be able to meet financial Babdity obligations es they fall due, which
may cause financial losses 1o the Company. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with firancial
institutions on a shon-term basis m crder fo maintain a high lavel of liquidily. This ensures that the Company is able
{0 complste trangactions in a fimely manner, thus minimising the Company’s exposure (o such losses.

The Board reviews the cash resourcas of the Company on an ongoing basis to ensure that sufficient monies are held
on cafl account to maet the Company's short-term obligations. At 30 Septambar 2022 the cash on call was £194,482
{2021: £310,815). which is considered by the Board to be sufficient to meet all of the Company's shoet term
obligations.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities, which will be settied on a nat basis, into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining perod from the period end date to the coniractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the oontractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
camying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

tess than 6

months 6-12 months 1-5 years
2022 £ £ £
Trade and other payables 24,650 - 43 962
Net exprosure 24,650 - 43,962

Less thand

months 6-12 months 1-5 years
2021 £ E £
Trade and othar payables 17,375 - 31,704
MNet exposure 17,375 - 31.704
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OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year anded 30 September 2022

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACYORS (continued)

{iv) Fair value hierarchy

The following tabla analyses nstruments carried at fair vakie, by level of the fair value hierarchy. The different
levels have hean defined as follows:

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or ab#ites;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Laval 1 that are observable for the assat or ligbility, either
diractly (i.e. s prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

+ Level 3: mputs for the asset or liabdity that are not based on observable markst data (unobservable inputs).

2022 Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
£ £ £ £
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss - 19,031.627 - 19,031,627
- 19,631,627 - 19,031,627
2021 Levet 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Toial
£ E E E
tnvesimenis at fair value through profit or
loas - 21,830,505 - 21,430,505
- 21,430,505 - 21430505

There heve been no transfers between levels of the {arr value herarchy dunng the year.

19. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's capital comprises the funds it has raised through the issue of share capital.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a gaing
concern in order to provide returns for shammholders and to maintain an optimal capitaf structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order tn ansure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern, the Board continuoksly monitors
forecast and sctual cash flows and maiches the maturity profiles of assets and fiabiliies. The Board has also
considared the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic subsagquent to the year end, and doea not believe that thia wilt have
significant impact on the Company's capital or its ab#ity to continue as a going concern. The Company has no
external borowings.

Shareholders may be able to redeem their Shams prior to the Redemption Data, however such redempiions ara
wholly at the discretion of the Directars, and any request for redempbion may be refused in whole or in pari. No sarly
redemplions will be permitted unless the Directors ame satisfied that they hava complied with sll applicable law,
including satisfaction of the solvency test as required by the Companies (Guemsey) Law, 2008. There have been no
changsas to the Company’s objectives or poficies and proceduras for managing capitat since the previous year end.

20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Thare were no significant post balance sheet events requring disclosure in these financial statements.
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THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW 2008, AS AMENDED

NON-CELLULAR COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

ﬂ‘

OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

Registered on 13 September 2004

(as amended and restated by special resolutions dated 8 August 2014, 18 May 2018 and 18 August 2023)



2.1

THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW 2008

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

of

OPTIMAL INVESTMENT GROWTH BASKET LIMITED

Registered on 13 Saptember 2004

{as amended and reslated by special resolutions dated 8 August 2014, 18 May 2018 and 18 Augusl 2023)

STANDARD ARTICLES

The standard articles of incorporation prescribed by the States of Guernsey Commerce and Employment
Department pursuant to Section 16(2) of the Law shall be excluded in their entirety.

INTERPRETATION

In these Articles the foflowing words shall bear the following meanings if nat inconsistent with the subject

of context;-

Words

“A Class Shares”

"accounts®

“Adminisirator or
Designated
Administrator”

"Articles”®

"at any time"

"Auditor”

Meanings

An ordinary share in the capital of the Company of GBP 0.01 nominal
value designated as an A Class Share and having the righls reserved
under these Articles.

Either individual accounts prepared in accordance with Section 243
of the Law or consotidated accounts prepared in accordance with
Seclion 244 of the Law.

Such designated person, firm or corporation appointed for the time
being and acting as administrator of the Company,

These Arlicles of Incorporation as amended or replaced from time to
time.

Al any lime or times and includes for the time being and from time to
lime,

The Auditor of the Company for the time being who shall be or include
members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.



"B Class Shares”

"Board"

"Business Day”

“Calt Date”

“Call Option”

"clear days”

*Closing Date”

"Company”

"Company’s Funds”

"Debt Instruments”

"Debt Issuer”

"Director”

"dividend”

"executors”

"EIS Price”

"Electronic Means”

“Existing Issued Shares”

An ordinary share in the capital of the Company of USD 0.01 nominal
value designated as a B Class Share and having the rights reserved
under these Articles.

The Directors at any time or the Direclors present at a duly convened
meeling of Directors at which a quorum is present.

Any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday, on which
banks are normally open for full banking business in Guemsey.

The First Call Date and every quarterly date thereafter,

The Debt Issuer's right to elect to redeem the Debt Instruments on the
Call Date.

In relation to a period of notice means that period excluding the day
when notice is given or deemed to be given and the day for which it
is given or on which it is to take effect.

The date stiputated in the applicable Prospectus as the closing date
for investments in respect of the applicable Investment Term

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited.

The total subscription monies received from investors on the
applicable Closing Date, less alt Front End Fees, plus the aggregate
EIS Price of the Existing Issued Shares retained by existing
Sharehclders in the Company

Unsecured, USD-denominated subordinated or senior debt
instruments issued by a Debl Issuer. which instruments may contain
a Call Option, as further described in the applicable Prospectus.

IBL or another debt issuer {o be selected by the Investment Adviser,
which debt issuer will have a long-term rating equal to or better than
IBL's rating.

A director of the Company for the time being or, as the case may be,
the directors assembled as a Board or committee of such Board.

Includes bonus.

Includes administrators.

The Fair Market Value per Share as reviewed by the Auditor on the
applicable Termination Date. Each new B Class Share shall be
issued at the EIS Price. Each new A Class Share shall be issued at

an amount that is the GBP equivalent of the EIS Price as calculated
at the applicable Termination Date.

Shail have the meaning ascribed to it by Law.

The issued Shares in the Company as at the date of the applicable
Prospectus.



"Fair Market Value
per Share™

“FATCA”

"Financial Year"

“First Call Date”

"Front End Fee"

“GBP”

“BL"

"Investment Adviser”

“Investment Term"”

"Investor”

“Law”

“Liquidator”

"Management Share

“Memorandum”

"month”

The fair market value of each Share as delermined by the
Investment Adviser on the first Business Day of each month {(as
reviewed by the Auditor on the applicable Termination Date or the
liquidator on a winding up) acting in good faith and in a fair and
reasonable manner,

Sections 1471 to 1474 of the Uniled States Internal Revenue Code of
1986, United Slates Treasury Regulations made thereunder, any
agreemsnt relating thereto and any legislalion or guidance
implementing or relating to such agreement, including in each case
any amendments, modificalion. consolidation, re-enaciment or
replacement thereof from time to time.

An accounting reference period of the Company.

The date that is 5 years after the issue date of the applicable Debit
Instruments.

An amount not exceeding 2% (plus South African value added tax
where applicable) of the amount subscribed for per Inveslor pursuant
to this Prospectus as descnbed in the Prospeclus.

The lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Noarthern reland

Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of Investec
Bank Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
(registration number 1969/004763/06)

The person or entity appointed for the time being and acting as
invesiment adviser of the Company

The ‘Investment Period’ as defined in the applicable Prospectus,

Any person who may potentially subscribe far Shares in the
Company. being a sophisticaled or professional investor who can
afford to take a higher degree of risk, which may include the risk of
the loss of his entire investmenl, and who has extensive knowledge
and experience in financial and business matters and is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks associated with an investment in the
Company.

The Companies {Guernsey) Law 2008 as amended, extended or
replaced and any Ordinance, statutory instrument or regulation made
thersunder

Includes joint Liquidators

A management share of GBP1.00 each having the rights described
in these Articles

The Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company.,

Calendar manth.



“Otering”

"Office™

“Opening Dale”

“Ordinary Resolution™

"Permitted Transferee®

"Prospectus”

"proxy”

"Redemption Date”

‘Register”

"Relevant Electronic
Address”

“Seal”

"Secrelary”

"Shares”

"Shareholder”

“Special Resolution”

"Tax
Reporting Regime”

The offering of Shares in the Company in respect of the applicable
Investment Term, commencing on the Opening Date

The registered office of the Company.

Means the date specified in the Prospeclus for the opening of an
Offering related to an investment Term,

A resolution passed by a simple majority in accordance with Section
176 of the Law

Any person other than a person in breach of any restrictions imposed
by or pursuant to Article 12.1.

Means the prospectus of the Company issued in refation to the
applicable Offering of its Shares and the listing of the Shares an the
Bermuda Stock Exchange, as amended from time to time.

Includes attorney.

The date that is 5 (five) Business Days after the applicable
Termination Date

The register of Shareholders to be kept pursuant to the Law.

Shall have the meaning ascribed to it by Law.
The Common Seal of the Company

Any person appointed by the Directors to perform any of the duties
of Secretary of the Company (including a temporary or assistant
secretary) and in the event of two or more persons being appointed
as joint secrefaries any one or more of the persons so appointed.

A share of whatever description in the capital of the Company being
either a Share or a Management Share and having the righls
described in these Articles,

Together the A Class Shares and B Class Shares and each a
"Share”.

A person who is registered as the holder of Shares in the Regster for
the time being kept by or on behalf of the Company.

A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 75% in accordance
with Section 178 of the Law

Means FATCA, any intergovernmental agreement between any
two or more jurisdictions {or government bodies thereof) and any
legislation, rules, regulations, and other guidance enacted or
issued in any jurisdiction in each case which seeks to implement
tax or financial account information reporting and/or withholding
tax regimes and all administrative and judicial interpretations
thereo! or practice in connection therewith, including without
Imitation any ntergovernmental agreement entered into in

5



2.2

connection with the automatic exchange of tax informalion, the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development's
Common Reporting Standard, the Council of the European
Union’s Directives 2011/16/EU or 2014/107/EU, and any
legislation, rules. regulations, and other guidance enacled or
issued in any jurisdiction in connection with any of the foregoing
and all administrative and judicial interpretations thereof or
practice in connection therewith.

"Termination Date™ Means, in relation to an Investment Term, either:
(i} the Call Date if the applicable Debt Instrument contains a
Call Option and the Debt Issuer exercises the Call Option in
accordance with the terms of the Debt Instrument; or

(i) the maturity date of the applicable Debt Instruments if the
Debt Issuer did not exercise a Call Option in accordance
with it terms;

as the case may be

"Trade Date” Any date that is no later than 20 Business Days afler the
applicable Closing Date, being the date on which the Company
will invest the Company’s Funds.

“Trust” The trust known as The Basket Trust constituted by a declaration
of trust dated 2 September 2009 and made by Praxis Trustees
Limited (registered number 16783).

“Unanimous Resolution” A resolution agreed to by every Shareholder of the Company
in accordance with Section 180 of the Law.

"UsSD"/ The lawful currency of the United States of America
“United States Dollars™

“Waiver Resolution” A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 90% in accordance
with Section 179 of the Law.

In these Arlicles unless there be something in the subject or context inconsistent with such construction:-

221

222

223

224

225

226

words importing the singular number shall be deemed to include the plural number and vice
versa;

words importing the masculine gender only shall include the feminine gender,;

words importing persons shall include companies or associations or bodies of persons, whether
corporate or not;

the words -
{a} "may” shall be construed as permissive; and
{b) "shall” shal be construed as imperative;

any reference to a share shall, where the Board has resolved to altot and issue fractions of
shares, include such fraclions,

words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Law and
The Interpretation (Guemsey) Law 1948; and



41

4.2

4.3

2.27 where a Section of the Law is referred to and that Seclion is amended or renumbered or
supplemented, then the reference shall be deemed to refer to the same Section as amended,
renumbered or supplemented.

BUSINESS

Any branch or kind of business which by the Memorandum or by these Articles is either expressly or
impliedly authorised to be undertaken may be underiaken or suspended at any time by the Board whether
commenced or not

SHARES

Save as specifically provided in these Articles, the Shares and the Management Shares shall rank pan
passu in all respects. The Management Shares were issued to and are held by the Trust or its nominees
and shall not be capable of being transferred excepl to the Trust or its nominees.

The holders of Management Shares shall have the following rights:

421 Dividends

The holders of Management Shares shall have no nights to receive nor participate in any distributions of
the Company. subject to Article 40.

4,22  Winding up

Subject to Arlicle 40, on a winding up and after satisfaction of the cosls associated with the liquidation and
payment of all the creditors of the Company and after payment of the nominal amount of the Shares has
been paid to the Shareholders, the nominal value of the Management Shares shall be paid to the holders
of the Management Shares. )

423 Voling

(a) The holders of the Management Shares will have the right to receive notice of and to
attend and to vote at any general meeting of the Company, subject to {b) and {c) below
Each holder of a Management Share who is present in person or by proxy {or being a
corporation, by a duly authonsed representative) at a general meeting will have on a
show of hands one vote and on a poll every such holder who is present in person or by
proxy (or being a corporation, by a duly authorised representative) will have 10,000
votes in respect of each Management Share held by them.

(b) The Management Shares exist for the sole purpose of voting on purely administrative
matiers at the Company's annual general meeting if there is no quorum of Shareholders
on such date, to enable the Company to function effectively.

{c) Prior to redemption of all the Shares, the holders of Management Shares can only vote
on Ordinary Resolutions relating to administrative matters such as the appointment the
Auditor, approving the financial statements and the Directors appointments. After the
redemption of ali the Shares, holders of the Management Shares may vote on any
matters under Ordinary and Specia! Resolution.

424  Transfer

The Management Shares shall be issued to and held by the Trust or its nominees and shall not be capable
of being transfemred except to the Trust or its nominees

The Shareholders shall have the following rights:
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431 Dividends

The Shareholders are entitled to receive, and participate in, any distributions that are resolved to be
distributed in respect of any financial year or other income or right to participate therein

432 Winding up

Subject to Article 40, on a winding up and after salisfaclion of the costs associated with the liquidation and
payment of all the creditors of the Company, the nominal value of the Shares shall be paid to the
Shareholders. After payment of the nominal amount of the Management Shares has been pald to the
holders of the Management Shares, the Shareholders shall be entitled to any surplus.

433 Voling

The Shareholders will have the right to receive nolice of and to attend and to vote at any generat meeting
of the Company. Each holder of a Share who is present in person or by proxy (or being a corporation, by
a duly authorised representative) at a general meeting will have on a show of hands one vole and on a
poll every such holder who is present in person or by proxy (or being a corporation, by a duly authorised
representative) will have one vote in respect of each Share held by them.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may at the discretion of the Board purchase any of its
own shares (including redeemable shares) in any manner permitied by the Law, Shares repurchased by
the Company may be cancelled or held as treasury shares and dealt with by the Directors to the fullest
extent permitted by the Law.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may at the discretion of the Board give financial
assistance directly or indirectly for the purpose of or in connection with the acquisition of shares in the
Company or in connection with reducing or discharging any liability incurred in connection with the
purchase of shares in the Company.

Subject lo the provisions of the Law, the Company may convert all or any of its fully paid shares the
nominal amount of which is expressed in a particuiar currency into fully paid shares of 2 nominal amount
of a different currency. the conversion being effected at the rate of exchange {calculated to not less than
three significant figures) current on the date of the resolution or on such other date as may be specified
therein.

The rights attached to A Class Shares and B Class Shares shall be identical and the rights of the Shares
may only be altered, abrogated or varied with the consent in writing of the holders of nat less than three-
fourths of the issued Shares of both classes or with the sanction of a Special Resolution of the holders of
the Shares of both classes. To any separate general meeting of a class the provisions of these Articles
relating to general meetings shall apply but so that the necessary quorum shall be:

471  forameeting other than an adjourned meeting. two persons presentin person or by proxy holding
at least one-third of the voting rights of the class in question,

4.7.2  for an adjourned meeting, one person present holding shares of the class in question: or

4.7.3  where the class has only one shareholder, that shareholder,

and that any holder of shares of that class present in person or by proxy may demand a poll.

Subject to the Law and the provisions of these Adicles, the unissued shares shall be at the disposal of
the Board which may aflot, grant oplions over, or otherwise dispose of them to such persons on such
terms and conditions and at such limes as the Board determines. Fraclions of shares may be issued or

purchased by the Company.

Where an authorisalion to issue shares or grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into
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6.1

6.2

6.3

shares specifies and expires on any date, event or circumslance, the Directors may issue shares or grant
rights to subscribe for or to converl any securily into shares after the expiry of such authorisation if the
shares are issued or the rights are granted, in pursuance of an offer or agreement made by the Company
before the authorisation expired and the aulthcnsation allowed the Company to make an offer or
agreemant which would or might require shares to be Issued, or rights to be granted, after the authorisation
had expired.

The Company may pay commission in money lo any person in consideration of his subscribing or agreeing
to subscribe whether absolutely or conditionally for any shares in the Company or procuring or agreeing
to procure subscriplions whether absolute or conditional for any shares in the Company PROVIDED THAY
the rate or amount of commission shall be fixed by the Board and disclosed in accordance with the Law
The Company may also pay brokerages

REDEMPTION OF SHARES PRIOR TO THE REDEMPTION DATE

Prior to the applicable Redemption Date there is no entilenent in favour of the Shareholders to have their
Shares redeemed by the Company. Redemptions are wholly at the discretion of the Directors and any
request for redemptions may be refused in whole or in part at the discretion of the Directors.

Redemption requests should be made in the manner set out in the Prospecius and are subject to the
terms and conditions applying to redemptions as set out in the Prospectus (including, in particular, the
redemption poficy).

No redemption prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be considered by the Directors, where:

5.3.1  such redemplion would or might leave the Company with insufficient funds to meet any future
contempiated obligations or contingencies: or

53.2  such redemption would render the Company insolvent; or

53.3 such redemption may in the opinion of the Direclors be prejudicial to the Company or other
Shareholders.

All redemptions of Shares prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be subject to a seitlement and
registration fee of up to 1.25% of the total value of the applicable transaction of which 0.75% is payable
to and for the account of the Investment Adviser and 0.5% of the total vatue of the applicable transaction
is payable to and for the account of the Administrator. This fee will be deducted by the Administrator from
the redemption proceeds due to the applicable Shareholder.

REDEMPTION ON A REDEMPTION DATE

Prior to the applicable Redemption Date, and subject to the Debt Issuer or any relevant counterparty(ies)
having fulfilled its/their repayment obligations to the Company as descnbed in the applicable Prospectus.
the Company shall make an offer to each Shareholder in terms of which each Shareholder may elect to
remain a Shareholder in the Company for a subsequent Investment Term. To be valid such acceplance
must be made on such terms and by such date as the Directors shall determine, save that, the Company
shall not be obliged to make an offer to Shareholders to remain a Shareholder in the Company if the
Directors, acting on advice from the Investment Adviser, are of the view that a subsequent Investment
Term is not desirable because of market conditions or legat constraints.

On the applicable Redemption Date, and subject to the Debt Issuer or any relevant counterpartyiies)
having fulfilled its/their repayment obligations to the Company as described in the Prospecius, the
Company shall be obliged to redeem Shares to the extent that the hotders of the Existing Issued Shares
have elected not to remain a Shareholder in the Company and payment shall be effected by the
Administrator to the relevant Shareholder no later than 10 Business Days after the applicable
Redemption Date.

The redemption price shall be determined by the Investment Adviser. acting in good faith and in a fair and

9
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reasonable manner (as reviewed by the Auditor on the Termination Dale or the liquidator on a winding
up), which price shall represent the Fair Market Value per Share.

No settlement and registration fees will be payable in respect of redemptions effected on a Redemption
Date. The Administrator will pay the redemption proceeds to the relevant Shareholder, by no later than
10 Business Days after the Redemption Date, by electronic lransfer into an account in the name of the
relevant Shareholder.

In the event that the redemption proceeds cannaot for any reason be paid to the relevant Shareholder by
telegraphic transfer within 10 Business Days afier the Redemption Date, the money will be transferred to
the Trust which will hold it until claimed by the relevant Shareholder or until three years after the
Redamption Date, whichever is the earlier, and if not claimed by the refevant Shareholder on such date,
then it will be paid to a registered charitable institution in Guemsey.

INTERESTS IN SHARES

Without prejudice ta Part XXIX of the Law, except as ordered by a court of competenl jurisdiction or as
required by law the Company shall not be affected or bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise
{even when having notice) any equitable, contingent. fulure or partiat inlerest in any share or fraction or
{except only as by these Asticles or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share
except an absolute right to the entirety in the registered holder and whether or not such share shall be
entered in the Register as held in trust nor shall the Company be bound to see 1o the execution of any
trust to which any share may be subject.

The Board shall have power by nolice in writing to require any Shareholder to disclose o the Company
the identity of any person other than the Shareholder (an interested party) who has any interest in the
shares held by the Sharehoider and the nature of such interest,

Any such notice shall require any information in response to such notice to be given in writing within such
reasonable time as the Board shall determine

If any Shareholder has been duly served with a notice given by the Board in accordance with Aricle 7.2
and is in defauit for the prescribed period {which is 28 clear days after service of the notice) in supplying
to the Company the information thereby required, then the Board may in its absolute discretion at any
time thereafter serve or cause to be served a notice (a “direclion notice™) upon such Shareholder which:-

741  may direct that, in respect of -

(a) any shares in relation to which the default occurred (all or the relevant number as
apprapriate of such shares being the "default shares™) and

(b) any other shares held by the Shareholder.

the Shareholder shali not be entitied o vole al a general meeting or meeting of the holders of

any class of shares of the Company either personally or by proxy to exercise any other right

conferred by those shares in relation to meetings of the Company or of the holders of any class

of shares of the Company; and

7.42  may additionally direct that in respect of the default shares.-

(a) any dividend or part thereof which would otherwise be payable on such shares shall be
retained by the Company without any liability to pay interest thereon when such money
is finally paid ta the Shareholder;

(b) no transfer of the default shares held by such Shareholder shali be registered unless:-

{i} the Shareholder is not himself in default as regards supplying the information
requested; and

10
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{} when presenled for registration the transfer is accompanied by a certificate by
the Shareholder in a form satisfactory to the Directors to the effect that afier
due and careful enquiry the Shareholder is satisfied that no person in default
as regards supplying such information is interested in any of the shares the
subject of the {ransfer,

The Company shall send to each other person appearing to be interested in the shares the
subject of any direction notice a copy of the notice, but failure or omission by the Company o do
g0 shall not invalidale such notice

CERTIFICATES AND JOINT OWNERSHIP
The Company dees not issue certificates in respect of the shares in the Company.

The Company shall not be bound to register more than four persons as the joint holders of any share or
shares.

Where lwo or more persons are registered as the holders of any share they shall be deemed to hold that
share as joint tenants, subject to the following provisions:-

8.3.1  thejoint holders of any share shall be Jointly and severally liable for all amounts payable in respect
of that share;

8.3.2 any joint holder of a share may give an effectual receipt for any dividend or return of capital
payable on that share to the joint holders of the share,

8.3.3 only the first named joint holder of any share shall be entitled to receive notices from the
Company to attend any general meeting and any notice given to the first-named joint holder of
the share shall be deemed to be nolice given to all joint-holders of the share;

8.34  the vote of the first-named joint holder of a share who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the voles of the other joint holders of the share; and

8.3.5 for the purpose of this Article the first-named joint holder shall be the person whose name first
appears in the Register in respect of the share,

LIEN

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien {extending to all dividends payable) on ail shares {not
being fully paid) for all moneys whether presently payable or not called or payable at a fixed time in respect
of those shares and for all the debts and liabilities of the holder to the Company and that whether the
same shall have been incured before or after notice to the Company of any equitable or other interest of
any person (other than such holder) and whether the time for payment or discharge shall have arrived or
not and notwithstanding that the same are joint debts or liabilities of such holder and any other person
{whether a Sharehcider or not)

For the purpose of enforcing such lien the Company may sell, in such manner as the Directors think fit,
any shares on which the Company has a lien, but no sale shall be made unless some sum in respect of
which the lien exists is presently payable, nor until the expiration of fourteen clear days after a notice in
wriling, stating and demanding payment of the sum presently payable, and giving notice of intention to
sell in default, shall have been served on the holder for the time being of the shares or the person entitlied
by reason of his death or bankruptcy to the shares. For the purpose of giving effect to any such sale the
Directors may authorise some person to transfer to the purchaser thereof the shares so sold.

The net proceeds of such sale. after payment of the costs of such sale, shall be applied in or towards

payment or satisfaction of the debt or liability in respect whereof the lien exists, so far as the same is
presently payable and any residue shall (upon surrender to the Company for cancellation of the certificate

11
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for the shares sold and_subject to a like lien for debts or liabilities not presently payable as existed upon
the shares prior to the sale) be paid to the person enfitied to the shares at the lime of the sale, The
purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares so transferred and he shall not be bound to see
to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any iregularity or
invalidity in the proceedings in relation to the sale,

CALLS ON SHARES

The Board may at any time make calls upon the Shareholders in respect of any moneys unpaid on their
shares (whether on account of the nominal value or by way of premium and not by the conditions of
allotment made payable at fixed times} and each Shareholder shall pay 1o the Company at the time and
place appointed the amount called. A call may be revoked or postponed in whole or in part. A call may be
required to be made by instalments. A person on whom a call is made shall remain liable for calls made
upon him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the shares in respect of which the call was made,

Joint holders shall be jointly and severally liable to pay calls.

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed the person from whom the
sum is due shall pay interest from the day appointed lo the time of actual payment at such rale as the
Board may determine.

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on aliotment or at any fixed date shall
for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by
the temms of issue the same becomes payable and in the case of non-payment all the relevant provisions
of these Articles as to payment of interest and expenses forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum
had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified,

The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any Shareholder willing to advance the same all or any
part of the money uncalled and unpaid upon the shares held by him beyond the sums actually called up
thereon as payment in advance of calls, and such payment in advance of calls shall extinguish, so far as
the same shall extend, the liability upon the shares in respect of which it is advanced, and upon the money
so received or so much thereof as from time to time exceeds the amount of the calis then made upon the
shares in respect of which it has been received, the Company may (until the same would, but for such
advance, become presenlly payabile) pay interest at such rate as the Shareholder paying such sum and
the Direclors agree upon PROVIDED THAT any amount paid up in advance of calls shall not enlitle the
holder of the shares upon which such amount is paid to participale in respect thereal in any dividend until
the same would but for such advance become presently payable

The Board may on an issue of shares differentiate between holders as to amount of calls and times of
payment.

FORFEITURE AND SURRENDER OF SHARES

If a Sharehotder fails lo pay any calt or instalment on (he day appointed the Board may at any time during
such period as any part remains unpaid serve notice requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment
as is unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued and any expenses which may have been
incurred by the Company by reason of non-payment.

The notice shall state a further day on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made
and the place where the payment s to be made and that in the event of non-payment the shares in respect
of which the call was made or instalment is payable shall be liable to be forfeited. If the requirements of
any such nolice are not complied with any share in respect of which the notice has been given may at any
time before payment has been made be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. Such forfeiture
shall include all dividends declared in respect of the forfeited share and nol actually paid before the
forfeiture,

12
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Notice of forfeiture shall forthwith be given to the former holder and an entry of such notice and forfeiture
shall forthwith be made and dated in the Register opposite the entry of the share; but no forfeiture shall
be in any manner invalidated by any omission or neglect to give notice or to make entry.

A forfeited share shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may be sold re-allotted or
otherwise disposed of on such terms as the Board shall think fit with or without all or any part of the amount
previously paid on the share being credited as paid and at any time before a sale or disposition the
forfeiture may be cancelled.

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a Shareholder in respect of those shares
but shall notwithstanding remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture
were payable in respect of the shares with interest at such rate as the Board may determine. The Board
may enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time of forfeiture or for any
consideration received on their disposal.

The forfeiture of a share shall extinguish all interest in and all ctaims and demands against the Company
in respect of the share and all other rights and liabilities incidental to the share as between the holder and
the Company.

The Board may accept from any Shareholder on such terms as shall be agreed a surrender of any shares
in respect of which there is a liability for calls. Any surrendered share may be disposed of in the same
manner as a forfeited share

A declaration in writing by a Director or the Secretary that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendered
on the date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein as against all persons
claiming to be entitled to the shares.

The Company may receive the consideration given for any share on any sale or disposilion and may
execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the same is sold or disposed of and he
shall thereupon be registered as the holder and shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money not shall his litle be affected by any imegularity or invalidity in forfeiture sale re-allotment or
disposal.

COMPULSORY TRANSFER OR REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Board shall have power (but shall nol be under any duty) to impose such resliictions as it may think
necessary for the purpose of ensuring that no share is acquired or held by:-

12.1.1 any US person other than pursuant to an exemption available under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act") and any other relevant securities law of lhe United
States; or

12.1.2 any person whose holding of shares would or might result in the Company having more than 80
beneficial owners of shares (whether directly or by atiribution pursuant to Section 3 (c){1)(A) of
the United Siates Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company
Act®) who are US persons or any person whose holding would require the Company to register
as an "investment company™ under the Investment Company Act, or

12.1.3 any person subject to the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended or
Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; or

12.1.4 any person in breach of any law or requirement of any country or governmental authority or by
virtue of which such person is not qualified to hold such shares or any money laundering
regulations; or

12.1.5 any person or persons in circumstances which (whether directly or indirectly affecting such

person or persons and whether taken alone or in conjunction with any other person or persons
connected or not, or any other ¢ircumstances appearing to the Board to be relevant), in the

13
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opinian of the Board, might cause or be likely to cause the Company or Shareholders as a whole
some fegal, regulatory, pecuniary, tax or matenal administrative disadvantage which the
Company or Shareholders might not otherwise have incurred or suffered; or

12.1.6 any person where the total subscription monies in GBP, received in relation to the subscription
for Shares, from such investor does not amount to at least the amount stipulated in the
applicable Prospectus on the appiicable Closing Date, however the Directors may at their sole
discretion accept a subscription amount which is less than the stipulated subscription amount;
or

1217 any person whose holdings of shares would or might result in a South African resident holding
5% or more of the issued shares in the Company.

In this connection, the Board may: (i} reject in its discretion any subscription for shares or any transfer of
shares to any persons who are so excluded from purchasing or holding shares; and (ii) pursuant to Article
12.4 below at any time repurchase or require the transfer of shares held by persons who are so excluded
from purchasing or holding shares.

For this purpose the terms "US person™ and "Uniled Stales” as used herein shall have the meanings
ascribed such terms in Section 902 (g) of Regulation S under the 1933 Act.

The Board shall, unless any Director has reason to believe otherwise. be entitled to assume without
enquiry that none of the shares is held in such a way as to entitle the Board to give a nolice in respect
thereof pursuant to Article 12.4.1 below. The Board may. however, upan an application for shares or at
any other time and from time to time require such evidence andfor undertakings to be fumished to it in
connection with the matters stated in Article 12.1 above as it shall in its discretion deem sufficient or as it
may require for the purpose of any restriclion imposed pursuant thereto. In the event of such evidence
andfor undertakings not being so provided within such reasonable period (not being less than 21 clear
days after service of nolice requiring the same) as may be specified by the Board in the said nolice, the
Board may., in its absclute discretion, treat any shares held by such a holder or joint holder as being held
in such a way as to enfitle them to give a notice in respect thereaf pursuant to Article 12.4.1 below,

12.4.1 If it comes to the notice of the Board that any shares are or may be owned or held directly or
indirectly or beneficially by any person or persons in breach of any restrictions imposed under
Article 121 above or who have failed to provide or keep up-to-date the information,
representations, certificates or forms referred to in Article 12.4.6 below (the “Relevant shares®),
the Board may give notice to the person or persons in whose names the Relevanl shares are
registered requinng him to transfer {(and/or procure the disposal of interests in) the Relevant
shares to a person who is in the opinion of the Board a person who is eligible to hold them, andfor
has provided or will provide the information, representations, certificates or forms referred to in
Article 12.4.6 below, or (in the Board's discretion} to give notice in writing accepling the
repurchase of the Relevant shares in accordance with these Articles. If any person upon whom
such a notice is served pursuant to this Article 12.4.1 does not within 21 clear days after the
giving of such nolice {or such extended lime as the Board in its absolute discretion shall consider
reasonable) transfer the Relevant shares to a person who is eligible to hold them or (as
appropnate) give notice as to the repurchase of the Relevant shares or establish to the
salisfaction of the Board (whose judgement shall be final and binding) that he is not subject 1o
such restrictions, or, as the case may be, provide to the satisfaction of the Board (whose
judgement shall be final and binding) the information, representations, certificates or forms
referred to in Article 12.4.6 below, the Board may in its absolute discretion upon the expiration of
such 21 clear days arrange for the repurchase of all the Relevant shares or arrange and approve
the transfer of all the Relevant shares to a person who is eligible to hold them(and/or has provided
or will provide the information, representations, cerificates or forms referred to in Article 12.4.6
below) in accordance with Article 12.4.3 befow and the holder of the Relevant shares shall be
bound forthwith to deliver his share certificate or cerlificates (if any) to the Board and the Board
shall be enlitled to appoint any person to sign on his behalf such documents as may be required
for the purpose of the repurchase or transfer of the Relevant shares by the Company.

14
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A person who becomes aware that he is holding or owning Relevant shares shall forthwith unless
he has already received a notice pursuant to Article 12.4.1 above either transfer all his Relevant
shares to a person who is eligible to hold them or give a request in writing for the repurchase of
all his Relevant shares in accordance with these Arlicles

A transfer of Relevant shares arranged by the Board pursuant to Article 12.4.1 above shall be by
way of sale a the best price reasonably obtainable and may be of all or part only of the Relevant
shares with a balance available for repurchase or transfer to other persons who are eligible 1o
hold them. Any payment received by the Company for the Relevant shares so transferred shall
be paid to the person whose shares have been so transferred subject to Article 12.4.4 below.

Payment of any amount due to such person pursuant to Articles 12.4.1, 12.4.2 or 12.4.3 above
shall be sublect to any requisite exchange control consents first having been obtained and the
amount due to such person shall be deposited by the Company in a bank for payment to such
person upon such consents being obtained against surrender of the shares previously held by
such person. Upon deposit of such amount as aforesaid such person shall have no further
interest in such shares or any of them or any claim against the Company in respect thereof except
the right to receive such amount so deposited {without interest) upon such consents as aforesaid
being obtained. Payment of any amount due to such person pursuant to Adicles 12.4.1, 12.4.2
or 12.4.3 above shall also be subject to any withholding or deduction under any Tax Reporting
Regime.

The Board shall not be required to give any decisions, determinalion or declaration taken or made
in accordance with these provisions. The exercise of the powers conferred by these provisions
shall not be questioned or invalidated in any case on the grounds that there was insufficient
evidence of direct or beneficial ownership of shares by any persons or that the true, direct or
beneficial owner of any shares was otherwise than appeared to the Board at the relevant date
PROVIDED THAT the powers shall be exercised in good faith

The Board may upon an application for Shares or at any other time and from time to time call
upon any Shareholder {or any person who may acquire or hold Shares) by notice in writing to
provide the Board with such information, representations, certificates or forms relating to such
Shareholder or such person {or in either case its direct or indirect beneficial owners or account
holders) that the Board determines are necessary or appropriate for the Company to:

{a) satisfy any account or payee identification, documentation or other due diligence
requirements and any reporling requirements imposed under any Tax Reporting
Regime, or

(b) avoid or reduce any tax otherwise imposed by any Tax Reporting Regime (including
any withholding upon any payments to such Shareholder or such person by the
Company): or

{c) permit the Company to enter into, comply with, er prevent a default under or termination
of, an agreement of the type described in section 1471(b) of the US Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 or any Tax Reporting Regime.

In this conneclion, the Board may: (i) reject in its discretion any subscription for Shares or any
transfer of Shares to any person who does not comply with a notice referred to in Adicle 12.4.6
above; and (i) in the event of such informalion, representations, certificates or forms not being
provided within such reasonable pericd {nol being less than 21 days after service of notice
requiring the same) as may be specified by the Board in a notice referred to in Article 12.4.6
above. the Board may, in its absolute discretion, pursuant to the provisions of this Article 12.4
repurchase or require the transfer of Shares held by person who do not comply with such notice.
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12.4.8 Each Shareholder shall promptly notify the Company upon any change in circumstances that
could affect the accuracy or correctness of the information, representations, documents,
certifications or forms provided pursuant to Articte 12.4.6.

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

Al transfers of shares may be effected by transfer in wriling in any form as the Board may accept
PROVIDED THAT any such instrument of transfer shall state the transferors’ and transferees’ full names
and addresses and where deemed necessary by the Board their nationalities. Any instrument of fransfer
shall be dated upon execution and shall be signed by or on behalf of the transferor who shall be deemed
1o remain the holder unlil the name of the transferee is entered in the Register

Every instrument of transfer shall be left at the Office or such other place as the Board may prescribe and
such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to prove the titte of the lransferor or his right to
transfer the shares; and shall remain in the custody of the Board but shall be at all reasonable times
produced al the request and expense of the transferor or transferee or their respeclive representatives.

The Board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving a reason, refuse to register a transfer of any
share which is not fully paid or on which the Company has a lien, provided, in tha case of a listed share
that this would not prevent dealings in the share from taking place on an open and proper basis. In
addition, the directors may refuse to register a transfer of shares which is prohibited by a direction notice
given by the Board in accordance with Article 7.4 and may also refuse to regisler a transfer of shares
unless:-

13.3.1 itisin favour of a Permitted Transferee:

1332 itis in favour of a single transferee or in the case of a transfer to joint holders the number of joint
holders to whom the share is to be transferred does not exceed four; and

13.3.3 itis delivered for registration to the Company's Office or such ather place as the Board may
decide, accompanied by such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to prove title
of the transferor and the due execution by him of the transfer or, if the transfer is execuled by
some other person on his behalf, the authority of that person to do so.

If the Board refuses to register the transfer of a share it shall, within two months afler the date on which
the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company, send notice of the refusal 1o the transferor and
the transferee.

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such pericds (not exceeding 30
days in any one year) as the Board may decide and either generally or in respect of a particular class of
share

No fee shall be payable to the Company in respect of the registration of any transfer, probate, letters of
administration, certificate of marriage or death, power of attorney, instruction or other document relating
to or affecting the titfe to any shares.

The Company shall keep the Register in accordance with the Law. The Register may be closed during
such periods as the Board think fit not exceeding in all thirty days in any year.

On the dealh of a Shareholder the survivors where the deceased was a joint holder and the executors of
the deceased where he was a sole holder shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having
any litle to or interest in his shares; but nothing herein shall release the estale of a deceased joint holder
from any liabikty in respect of any share jonlly held

A person so becorning entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a
Shareholder shall have the right to receive and may give a discharge for all dividends and other money
payable or other advantages due on or in respect of the share, but he shall not be entitled to receive notice
of or lo attend or vote at meetings of the Company, or save as aforesaid, to any of the rights or privileges
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of a Shareholder unless and until he shall be registered as a Shareholder in respect of the share
PROVIDED ALWAYS that the Board may at any time give notice requiring any such person to elect either
to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the notice is not complied with within ninety clear
days the Board may thereafter withhold all dividends or other monies payable or other advantages due in
respect of the share until the requirements of the notice have been complied wilh.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL
The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:-

142 consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amounts than its existing
shares,

i4.3 subject to Arlicle 14.7 below, subdivide all or any of its shares into shares of a smaller amount
provided that the proportion between the amount paid and the amount, if any, unpaid on each
reduced share shall be the same as that proportion in the case of the share from which the
reduced share was derived,

14.4 cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken up or
agreed to be taken up by any person, and diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount
of the shares so cancelled;

145 convert all or any of its shares the nominal amount of which is expressed in a particular currency
or former currency into shares of a nominal amount of a different currency, the conversion being
effected at the rate of exchange (calculated to not less than 3 significant figures) current on the
date of the resalution or on such other day as may be specified therein;

146 where its share capilal is expressed in a particular currency or former currency, denominate or
redenominate it, whether by expressing its amount i units or subdivisions of that currency or
former cumrency, or otherwise.

In any subdivision under Article 14.3, the proportion between the amount paid and the amount, if any,
unpaid on each reduced Share shall be the same as that proportion in the case of the Share from which
the reduced Share was derived.

The Board on any consolidation of Shares may deal with fractions of Shares in any manner.

The Company may reduce its share capital in any manner and with and subject to any incident authorised
and consent required by the Law.

GENERAL MEETINGS

Save as provided in the Law, an annual general meeting shall be held once al least in every calendar
year but so that not more than 15 months may elapse between one annual general meeting and the next
Other meetings of the Company shall be called extraordinary general meelings. General meetings shall
be held in Guemsey.

A Shareholder participating by video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic
means of communication in a meeting at which a quorum is present shail be treated as having attended
that meeting PROVIDED THAT the Shareholders present at the meeting can hear and speak to the
participating Sharehclder.

A video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or ielephenic means of communication in
which a quorum of Shareholders participates and all parlicipants can hear and speak to each other shall
be a valid meeting which shall be deemed to take place where the Chair is present unless the
Shareholders resolve otherwise,
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Any general meeting convened by the Board unless its ime shall have been fixed by the Company in
general meeting or unless convened in pursuance of a requisition may be postponed by the Board by
notice in writing and the meeting shall subject to any further postponement or adjournment be held at the
postponed date for the purpose of transacting the business covered by the original notice,

The Board may whenever it thinks fit and shall on the requisition in writing of one er more holders
representing not less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company upon which all calls or
other sums then due have been paid forthwith proceed ta convene an extraardinary general meeting.

The requisition shall be dated and shall state the object of the meeting and shall be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the Office and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more of the requisitionists,

If the Board does not proceed to call a general meeting within twenty-one days from the date of the
requisition being sa depasited to be held within 28 days after the date of the nolice convening the meeting,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one hall of the total voting rights of the
requisitionists may themselves convene the meeting.

Any meeling convened by requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner (as nearly as possible)
as that in which meetings are convened by the Board.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Not less than ten clear days' notice specifying the time and place of an annual general meeting and not
less than fourteen clear days' nolice in respect of any olher general meeting shall be given by notice
(which may be published on a website in accordance with Section 208 of the Law) to every Shareholder
and every Director PROVIDED THAT with the consent in writing of alt the Shareholders entitled to attend
and vole, the meeting may be convened by a shorter notice or at no nolice and in any manner they think
fit. In every notice there shall appear:

16.1.1 the time and date of the meeting;
16.1.2 the place of the meeting;
16.1.3  a statement of the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting;

16.1.4 where the nolice contains a resalulicn o be passed as a Special Resolution, a Waiver Resolution
or an Unanimous Resolution, the text of the resolution and the intention to propose the resolution
as a special. waiver or Unanimous Resolution as the case may be).

16.1.5 contain a stalement that the Shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint
one or more proxies to attend and vole instead of him and that a proxy need not be a Shareholder,

The accidental omission to give notice of any meeting to or the non-receipt of such notice by any
Shareholder shall not invalidate any resolution (or any proposed resolution oltherwise duly approved)
passed or proceeding at any meeting

All Shareholders are deemed to have agreed to accept communications from the Company by Electronic
Means in accordance with Article 38,2

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The ordinary business of a general meeting shall be to receive and consider the financial statements of
the Company and the reports of the Directors and the Auditor to elect Directors and appoint the Auditor
in the place of those reliring to fix the remuneration of the Audilor to sanction or declare dividends (if
required by these Articles) and to transact any other ordinary business which ought to be transacted at
such meeting. All other business shall be deemed special and shall be subject to notice as hereinbefore
provided.
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17.10

The quorum for a general meeting shali be two (2) Shareholders present in person or by proxy, at least
one of whom shall be the holder of a Management Share provided that, if the Company shall have only

one (1) Shareholder entitled 1o attend and vole at the general meeting, that Shareholder shaft constitute
a quorum.

If within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present the meeting if
convened by or upon a requisition shall be dissolved. If otherwise convened it shali stand adjourned for
seven clear days at the same lime and place or to such other day and at such other time and place as the
Board may determine and (subject fo Arlicle 17.3) no notice of adjoumment need be given. On the
resumption of an adjourned mesting, those Shareholders entitled to attend and vote present in person or
by proxy shall constitute the quorum.

The Chair (if any) or, if absent, the Depuly Chair (if any) of the Board or, failing him, some other Direclor
nominated by the Directors shall preside as Chair at every general meeting of the Company, but if at any
meeling none of the Chair nor the Deputy Chair nor such other Director be present within fifteen minutes
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or if none of them be willing to act as Chair, the Direclors
present shall choose some Director present to be Chair, or if no Directors be present, or if all the Directors
present decline to lake the chair the Shareholders entitled to attend and vote preseni in person or by proxy
shali choose some Shareholder present to ba Chair

The Chair may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present and shall if so directed by
the meeting adjourn the meeling at any time and to any place but no business shall be transacted at any
adjourned meeling other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took
place. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given
as in the case of an ariginal meeting. Save as aforesaid it shail not be necessary to give any nolice of an
adjournment or of the business to be transacted al an adjourned meeting.

At any meeting a resclution put to the vote shall be decided by a show of hands or by a poil at the option
of the Chair. Nevertheless before or on the declaration of the result a poli may be demanded:-

17.6.1 by the Chair; or
17.6.2 a holder of a Management Share: or
17.6.3 by not less than five (5) Shareholders having the right to vote on the resclution; or

17.6.4 by a Shareholder or Sharehclders representing not less than ten (10} percent of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote on the resolution.

The demand for a pofl may be withdrawn,

Unless a poll be demanded a declaration by the Chair that a resolution has on a show of hands been
carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majarity or last and an entry to that effect in the minute
bock shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the voles
recorded.

A poll if demanded shall be taken at the meeting at which the same is demanded or at such other time
and place as the Chair shall direct and the result shal! be deemed the resolulion of the meeting.

If a poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in such manner and at such place as the Chair may direct
(including the use of ballot or voting papers or tickets) and the result of a poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. The Chair may, in the event of a poll appoint
scrutineers and may adjourn the meeting to some place and time fixed by him for the purpose of declaring
the result of the pall.

A poll demanded on the eleclion of a Chair and a poll demanded on a question of adjournment shall be
taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time and place as the Chair
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directs not being more than thirty days from the date of the meeting or adjoumed meeting at which the
poll was demanded.

In case of an equality of votes on a show of hands or on a poll the Chair shall have a second or casting
vole.

VOTES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Save as otherwise provided in these Articles and subjecl to any special rights or restrictions for the time
being attached to any class of share:-

18.1.1 On a show of hands every holder of a Share present in person or by proxy shall have 1 (one)
vote and every holder of a Management Share present in person or by proxy shall have 10,000
(ten thousand) votes.

18.1.2  On a poll every holder of a Share present in person or by proxy shall have 1 (one) vote for each
share held by him and every holder of a Management Share present in person or by proxy shall
have 10,000 (ten thousand) votes for each fully paid Management Share held by him.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share such persons shall not have the right of voting
individually in respect of such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote
whether in person or by proxy in their name. In default of such election the person whose name stands
first on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote

Any Shareholder being incapable or of unsound mind may vole by his curator or other legal guardian. Any
such persons may vote eilther personally or by proxy

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a Shareholder entitled to more than one
vole need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way. A proxy need not be a
Shareholder. An instrument of proxy may be valid for one or more meetings

No Shareholder shali ba entiled to be present or take pari in any proceedings or vote either personally or
by proxy at any meeting unless all calls due from him have been paid. No Sharehclder shal be entitied to
vote in respect of any shares unless he has been registered as their holder.

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voler except al the meeling or adjourned meeting
at which the vote objecled to is given or tendered and every vole not disallowed shall be valid for all
purposes, Any objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chair whose decision shall be final and
binding.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appoinlor or of his attomey
duly authorised in writing or if the appointor is a corporalion under ils common seal or under the hand of
an officer or attorney duly authorised

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other aulherity (il any) under which it is
signed or a notarised certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Office nat less than
48 hours, excluding any day or part of any day which is not a Business Day, before lhe time for holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the insirument proposes to vote and in
default unless the Board directs otherwise the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid,

The instrument appointing a proxy may be in any form which the Board may approve and may include an
instruction by the appointor to the proxy either to vote for or against any resolution to be puit to the meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authorily to demand or join in demanding a
poll and shall be as valid for any adjournment as for the meeting to which it relates.

Without prejudice to Seclion 226 of the Law, a vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument
of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or disability of the principal or revacation of the
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proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed PROVIDED THAT no intimation in writing
of such death disability or revocation shall have been received by the Company at the Office before the
commencement of the meeting or adjournment or the taking of the poll at which the proxy is used

Any corporation whichis a Shareholder may by resolution of its directors or other governing body authorise
such persen as it thinks fit to act as ils representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of
Shareholders of the Company or to approve any resolution submitted in wriling and the person so
authorised shall be entitled to exercise on behalf of the corporation which he represents the same powers
(other than 1o appoint a proxy) as that corporation coufd exercise if it were an individual Sharehofder of
the Company.

NUMBER AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The first Directors of the Company shall be appointed by the subscribers to the Memarandum. Unless
otherwise determined by Ordinary Resolution of the Company the Directors (disregarding alternate
Direclors}) will not be less than 3 {three) nor mere than 10 {ten). At no time shall a majority of Directors be
resident in either the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa.

The Board shall have power at any time to appoint any person eligible in accordance with Section 137 of
the Law to be a Direclor either to fill a casval vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors but so
that the total number of Directors shalfl not at any time exceed the number (if any) fixed pursuant to these
Articles. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annuat general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

No person other than a Director retiring at an annual general meeting shall unless recommended by the
Directors be eligible for election by the Company to the office of Direclor unless not less than four nor
more than twenty-eight clear days before the date appointed for the general meeting there shall have
given to the secretary of the Company notice in writing signed by a Shareholder duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
together with notice in writing signed by that person of his willingness to be elected. There i1s na provision
for the retirement of Directors on their attaining a certain age.

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires in manner aforesaid may fill the vacated office by
appointing a person thereto by Ordinary Resolution and in default the retiring Director shall, if willing to
act, be deemed to have been re-appointed unless at such meeting it is expressly resolved not to fill the
vacaled office or a resolution for the re-appoiniment of such Direclor shall have been put to the meeling
and lost. The Company at such mesting may also (subject to Article 19.1) fill any other vacancies

Without prejudice to the powers of the Board the Company in general meeting may appoint any person to
be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Direclor.

At a general meeting a motion for the appointment of two or more persons as Directors of the Company
by a single resolution shall not be made unless a resclution that it shall be so made has been first agreed
to by the meeting without any vote being given against it.

The Directors or Secretary shall cause to be maintained a register of Directors in accordance with Sections
143 and 147 of the Law

QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

A person musl nol be appointed as a Direclor unless he has, in wriling, consented 1o being a Director and
declared that he ts not ineligible to be a Director under the Law.

A Director need not be a Sharehoclder of the Company but shall be entitled to receive nolice of and
atiend all general meetings of the Company,

A Director shall be entitied to attend and speak at any general meeting and at any separate meeting of

the holders of any class of shares in the Company, regardless of whether that Director is a Shareholder
of the Company ar of the relevant class.
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Mo fee will be paid to the Directors save as provided in Article 20.5.

Notwithstanding Article 20.4, if any Director having been requested by the Board shall render or perform
extra or special services or shall travel or go to or reside in any country not his usual place of residence
for any business or purpose of the Company he shalil be entitfed to receive such sum as the Board may
think fit for expenses and also such remuneration as the Board may think fit either as a fixed sum or as a
percentage of profils or otherwise and such remuneration may as the Board shall determine be sither in
addition to or in substitution for any other remuneration which he may be entitled to receive.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Any Director may by nolice in writing under his hand served upon the Company appoint any person
{whether a Shareholder or not) as an alternate Director, other than a person resident in the United
Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa, unless the Director seeking lo appeint the alternate director
is himself resident in the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa (as the case may be), to attend
and vote in his place al any meeting of the Directors at which he is nol personally present or to undertake
and perform such duties and functions and to exercise such rights as he could personally and such
appointment may be made generally or specifically or for any periad or for any particular meeling and with
and subject to any particular restrictions. Every such appointment shall be effective and the following
provisions shall apply -

Every alternate Director while he holds office as such shall be entitted:-
21.21 if is appointor so directs the Secretary, to nolice of meetings of the Directors: and

21.2.2 toattend and to exercise (subject to any restrictions) all the rights and privileges of his appointor
al all such meetings at which his appointor is not personally present.

Every alternate Director shall ipso facto vacate office if and when his appointment expires by effluxion of
time or his appaintor vacates office as a Director or removes the altemate Director from office as such by
notice in writing under his hand served upon the Company

No alternate Directar shall be entitied as such to receive any remuneration from the Company but every
alternate Director shall be entiled to be paid all reasonable expenses incurred in exercise of his duties.

Director may act as alternate Director for another Director and shall be entitled to vote for such other
Director as well as on his own account but no Director shall at any meeting be enlitled to acl as alternate
Director tor more than one other Director,

BORROWING POWERS OF THE BOARD

Subject to the Company borrowing only up to 10 per cent of the value of its net assels and only for
temporary purposes, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Campany 1o borrow or raise money
and secure or discharge any debt or obligation of or binding on the Company in any manner, including,
subject to the Law, the issue of debentures and other securities and to secure the repayment of any
money borrewed raised or owing by guarantees mortgage charge hypothecate pledge or lien upon all or
any part of its undertaking property or assets {present or future) and uncalled capital and also by a similar
mortgage, charge, pledge or lien lo secure and guarantee the performance of any debt, obligation or
itability of the Company or of any third party.

OTHER POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD
The business of the Company shall be managed by the Board who may exercise all such powers of the
Company as are nol required o be exercised by the Company in a general meeting subject nevertheless

to these Articles and to the Law and to such regulations as may be prescribed by the Company in a
general meeting but no regulation so made shall invalidate any prior act of the Board. The general powers
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given by this Article shali nol be limited or restricled by any special authority or power given to the Board
by any other Article,

The Board may arrange thal any branch of the business carried on by the Company or any other business
in which the Company may be interested shall be carried on by or through one or more subsidiary
companies and the Beard may on behall of the Company make such arrangements as it thinks advisable
for taking the profits or bearing the losses of any branch or business so carried on or for financing assisting
or subsidising any such subsidiary company or guaranteeing its contracts obligations or liabilities.

The Board may estadlish any local boards or agencies for managing any ol the affairs of the Company
and may appoint any one or more of its number or any other persons to be members of such local Boards
or any managers or agents and may fix their remuneration and may defegate to any local board manager
or agent any of the powers authorities and discretions vested in the Board with power 10 sub-delegale and
may authorise the Shareholders of any lecal board to fill any vacancies and to act notwithstanding
vacancies and any such appoiniment or delegation may be made upon such terms and subject to such
conditions as the Board may think fit and the Board may remove any person so appointed and may annut
or vary any such delegation but no person dealing in good faith and without notice of any such annulment
or variation shall be affected thereby.

The Board may at any time by power of atterney given under the hand of such person or persons duly
authorised in that behalf appoint any person or any fluctuating body of persons whether nominated directly
or indirectly by the Board to be the attomey of the Company for such purposes and with such powers and
discretions and far such periods and subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit and any such
power of atltorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with
any attorney as the Board may think fit and may also authcrise any attorney to sub-delegate alf or any of
his powers and discretions.

All cheques promissory notes drafts bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments and all receipts
for moneys paid to the Company shall be signed drawn accepted endorsed or otherwise executed in such

manner as the Board shall at any time determine.

The Board shall cause minutes to be made and maintained at the Office in books provided for the
purpose:-

2361 of all resolutions and proceedings at meetings of the Board and of Board committees in
accordance with Seclion 154 of the Law, and

2362 of all proceedings at general meetings of the Company or otherwise and all decisions of a sole
Sharehotder in accordance with Sections 228 and 230 of the Law.

Any such minutes if purporting to be signed by the Chair of the meeting at which the proceedings took
place, or by the Chair of the next succeeding meeting, shali be evidence of their proceedings.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A Direclor must, immediately after becoming aware of the fact that he is interested in a transaction or
proposed iransaction with the Company, disclose to the Board in accordance with Section 162 of the Law,
the nature and extent of that interest.

Adticle 24.1 does not apply if:-

24.2.1 the transaction or proposed transaction is between the Director and the Company; and

2422 the transaction or proposed transaction is or is to be entered into in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business and on usual terms and conditions.

A general disclosure to the Board to the effect that a Director has an interest (as director, officer, employee,
member or otherwise} in a party and is to be regarded as interested in any transaction which may after
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the date of the disclosure be entered into with that panly is sufficient disclosure of interest in relation o
that transaction.

Nothing in Articles 24.1, 24.2 or 24.3 applies in relation to:-
2441 remuneration or other benefit given to a Director;
2442 insurance purchased or maintained for a Director in accordance with Section 158 of the Law; or

2443 qualifying third party indemnity provision provided for a Director in accordance with Section 159
of the Law

A Director who is interested in a transaction entered into, or to be enlered inlo, by the Company, may: -
24.51 vole on a matter relating to the transaction;

24.5.2 attend a meeting of Direclars at which a malter relating to the transaction arises and be included
among the Directors present at the meeting for the purpose of a guorum;

2453 sign a document relating to the transaclion on behalif of the Company: and
24.5.4 do any other thing in his capacity as a Director in relation to the transaction;
as if the Director was not interested in the transaction

Subject to Article 247, a Director is interested in a transaction to which the Company is a parly if the
director:-

24.6.1 is a party to, or may denve a matenal benefit from, the transaction;
24.6.2 has a material financial intereslt in ancther parnty to the transaction;

24.6.3 s a direclor, officer, employee or Shareholder of another party (other than a party which is an
associated company) who may derive a material financial benefit from the transaction;

24.6.4 s the parent, child or spouse of another party who may derive a malerial financial benefit from
the transaction; ar
24.6.5 is otherwise directly or indirectly materially interested in the transaction

A director is not interested in a transaction to which the Company is a parly if the transaction comprises
only the giving by the Company of security to a third party which has no connection with the Director, at
the request of the third party, in respect of a debt or obligation of the Company for which the Direclor or
another person has personally assumed responsibility in whole or in party under a guarantee. indemnity
or security.

A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company {(other than Auditor) in
conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such terms (as to remuneration and
otherwise} as the Board may determine and no Director or intending Director shall be disqualified by his
office from contracting with the Company, either with regard to his tenure of any such other office or place
of profit or as vendor purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contracl or any contract or arrangement
enlered into by or on behall of the Company in which any Director is in any way inlerested be fiable to be
avoided nor shall any Direclor so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Company
for any profits realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such Director holding that office
or of the fiduciary refalionship thereby established.

Any Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his fim
shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.
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DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL QF DIRECTORS
The office of a Director shall ipso faclo be vacated:-

25.1.1 if he (not being a person holding for a fixed term an execulive office subject to termination if he
cease from any cause lo be a Director) resigns his office by written notice signed by him sent to
or deposited at the Office , provided that the Company may agree to accept the resignation to
take effect on a later date as specified by the resigning Director:

25.1.2 if he shall have absented himself (such absence not being absence with leave or by arrangement
with the Board on the affairs of the Company) from meetings of the Board for a consecutive
peniod of twelve months and the Board resolves that his office shall be vacated:

25.1.3 if he becomes bankrupt, suspends payment or compounds with his creditors, or 15 adjudged
insolvent or has his affairs declared en désastre or has a preliminary vesting order made against
his Guemnsey realty;

25.1.4 if he becomes of unsound mind or incapable;

25.1.5 il he becomes insolvent suspends payment or compounds with his creditors

25.1.6 if he is requested to resign by written notice signed by all his co-Directors

25.1.7 if the Company in general meeting shall declare that he shall cease to be a Director;
25.1.8 if he becomes prohibited from acting as Director pursuant to the Law, or

2519 if he becomes resident in the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa and, as a result
thereof. a majonty of the Directors are resident in the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South
Africa

It the Company in general meeling removes any Direclor before the expiration of his period of office it
may by an Ordinary Resolution appoint another person to be a Director in his stead who shall retain his
office so long only as the Director in whose stead he is appointed would have held the same if he had not
been removed. Such removal shall be without prejudice to any claims such Director may have for
damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Board may meet for the despatch of business adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings as it thinks
fit. Questions arising at any meeling shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of an equality of votes
the Chair ai the meeting shall have a second or casling vote. All meetings of Directors shall take place
outside of the United Kingdom and the Republic of South Africa and any decision reached or resolution
passed by the Directors al any meeting hetd within the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa
or at which a majonity of United Kingdom or South African resident directars is present shall be invalid and
of no affect.

A video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of communication in
which a quorum of Directors participates and all participants can hear and speak to each other shali be a
valid meeting PROVIDED THAT no Oirectors physically present in the United Kingdom or in the Republic
of South Africa at the time of any such meeting may participate in a meeting by means of video link,
telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of communication

The Board shall also determine the notice necessary for its meetings and the persons to whom such
nolice shall be given.

A meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all powers and
discretions exercisable by the Board.
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The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy but if and so long as their number is
reduced below the minimum number fixed pursuant to these Articles the continuing Directors may act for
the purpose of increasing the number of Directors lo that number or of summoning a general meeling but
for no other purpose. If there be no Directors able or willing lo act then any holder may summon a general
meeting for the purpose of appointing Directors

The Board may elect one of their number as Chair of their meetings whe will hold office only for the
duration of the meeting at which he was elected. If no such Chair be elected or if at any meeling the Chair
be not present within five minutes afier the time appointed for holding the same the Direclors present may
choose one of their number to be Chair of the meeting.

The Board may delegate any of their powers to commillees consisting of such one or more Directors as
they think fit. Such commilteas shall meet only outside the United Kingdom and the Republic of South
Africa. Any commitiee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any
regulations that may be imposed on it by the Board.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Board may be fixed by the Board and
unless so fixed shall be two except that where the minimum number of Directors has been fixed al one a
sole Director shall be deemed to form a quorum. For the purpases of this Article an alternate appointed
by a Director shall be counted in a quorum at a meeting at which the Director appointing him is not present.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board may at any time appoint one or more of their body (who is resident outside the United Kingdom
and the Republic of South Afnca) to be holder of any executive office including the office of Managing
Director for such periods and upon such terms as the Board may determine and may revoke or lerminate
any such appointments. Any such revocation or termination as aforesaid shall be without prejudice to any
ctaim for damages that such Director may have against the Company or the Company may have against
such Director for any breach of any contract of service between him and the Company which may be
involved in such revocation or termination

The Board may entrust to and confer upon a Director holding any executive office any of the powers
exercisable by the Board upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as it thinks fit either
collalerally with or to the exclusion of their own powers and may at any time revoke withdraw alter or vary
all or any of such powers.

SECRETARY

The Secretary shall be appointed by the Board. Anything required or authorised to be done by or to the
Secretary, may, if the office is vacant or there is for any other reason no Secretary capable of acling be
done by or to any assistant or deputy secretary or if there is no assistant or deputy secrelary capable of
acling. by or to any officer of the Company authorised generally or specially in that behalf by the Directors

No person shall be appointed or hold office as Secretary wheo is:-

29.2.1 the sole Director of the Company, or

29.22 a corporalicn the sole Director of which is the sole Director of the Company, or

29.23 the sole Director of a corporation which is the sole Director of the Company,

Where the Company has appointed a Secretary, and without prejudice to the responsibility of any other
person of 1o any other responsibilities he may hold. the functions and responsibilities of a Secretary are
those which are set out in any agreement under which the Secrelary is appcinted from time to time or,

failing such agreement the Secretary shall take reasonabie steps to ensure

29.3.1 that all registers and indexes are maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Law,

26



204

30

3

32

321

33

29.3.2 that all notices and documents required to be filed or served upon the Registrar of Companies or
other persons are duly so filed or served;

29.33 that alf resolutions, records and minutes of the Company are properly kept;
29.3.4 that copies of the Memorandum and Articles are kept fully up to date; and
29.3.5 that the Directors are aware of any obligations imposed by the Articles.

The Secrelary may be removed by resolution of the Directors or otherwise in accordance with Article 25
which shall apply mutatis mutandis as if the Secretary were a Director, save that Article 25.1.9 shall not
apply.

RESIDENT AGENT

if Part XXX of the Law applies to the Company, the Board shali ensure that a resident agent is appointed
in accordance with the Law.

THE SEAL

If the Board determines 1o maintain a Seal it shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal which shall only
be used by authority of the Board or of a committee and every instrument to which the Seal shall be affixed
shall be signed by any such persons as are authorised by the Board in that behalf. The Board may
authorise the use of a duplicate or facsimile Seal for use outside Guermnsey in such manner as the Board
may at its discrelion determine.

COMMON SIGNATURE

The common signature of the Company may be either:-

32.1.1  the name of the Company with the addition of the signature(s) of cne or more of the Directors or
officers of the Company authorised generally or specifically by the Board for such purpose, or
such other person or persons as the Board may from time to time appaint, or

32.1.2 if the Board resolves that the Company shall have a Seal, it shall be affixed in such manner as
these Articles or the Board may from time to time provide

AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Board for the purpose shall have power to
authenticate any documents affecting the Company (including the Memorandum and these Articles) and
any resolutions passed by the Company or the Board and any books records documents and accounts
relating to the business of the Company and to certify copies or extracts as lrue copies or extracls, and
where any books records documents or accounts are elsewhere than at the Office the local manager or
other officer of the Company having their custody shall be deemed to be a person appointed by the Board
as aforesaid.

DIVIDENDS

Subject to the L.aw the Company in general meeting may at any time declare dividend's but no didend
shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board. All dividends will be paid in accordance with the
policy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange

Subject to the Law the methad of payment of dividends shall be at the discretion of the Board.
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Subject lo Article 18, unless and 1o the extent that the rights attached to any shares or the terms of issue
thereof otherwise provide, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up or
credited as paid-up on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid.

The Directors may at any time if they think fit declare and pay such interim dividends as appear o be
justified by the position of the Company.

With the sanction of the Company in general meeting, any dividend may be paid wholly or in part by the
distribution of specific assets and, in particular, of paid-up shares of the Company. Where any difficulty
arises In regard lo such distribution the Board may setlle the same as it thinks expedient and in particular
may issue fractional shares and fix the value for distribution of such specific assets and may determine
thal cash payments shall be made to any Shareholders upon the fooling of the value so fixed in order to
adjust the rights of Shareholders and may vest any such specific assets in trustees for the Shareholders
entitled as may seem expedient to the Board.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any Shareholder on or in respect of a share all sums
of money (if any) presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise.

The Board may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share on which the
Company has a lien and may apply the same in or lowards satisfaclion of the liabilities or obligations in
respect of which the lien exists.

The Board may retain dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any person is entitled to become
a Shareholder until such person has become a Shareholder.

Any dividend interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or
warrant sent through the post al the risk of the person entitled to the money represented thereby to the
registered address of the holder or in the case of joint holders to the registered address of that one of the
joint holders who is first named on the Register. Any one of two or more joint holders may give effectual
receipts for any dividends interest bonuses or other moneys payable in respect of their joint holdings.

No dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share shall bear interest against the Company.

All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for the benefit of the
Company until claimed. No dividends will bear interest against the Company. Al dividends unclaimed for
a period of six years after having been declared or became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall
revert to the Comnpany and the payment by the Directors of any unclamed dividend or other monies
payable on or in respect of a share info a separate account will not constitute the Company a trustee in
respect thereof,

RESERVES

The Board may before recommending any dividend set aside such sums out of the profits or otherwise of
the Company as it thinks proper as reserves which shal! at the discretion of the Board be applicable for
any purpose to which such sums may be properly applied and pending such application may either be
employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments as the Board may at any
time think fit. The Board may also without placing the same to reserve carry forward any profils or other
sums which it may think prudent not to distribute.

ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS
The Board shali cause proper books of account to be kept with respect to all the transactions assets and
liabilities of the Company in accordance with the Law and International Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The books of account shall be kept at the Office or at such other place as the Board shall think fit and
shall at all times be open to the inspection of the Directors bul no person other than a Director or
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Auditor or other person whose duly requires and entitles him 1o do so shall be entitled to inspect the
books, accounts and documents of the Company except as provided by the Law or authorised by the
Board or by the Company in general meeting.

The accounts shall include a Statement of Financial Posilion and shall be 1aid before the Company at its
annual general meeting in each year, Save where the Directors' duty to prepare a report is exempted or
waived in accordance with the Law, the accounts shall be accempanied by a report of the Directors which
includes a statement of the principal activities of the Company in the course of the Financial Year and
may be in summary form. The Auditor’s report shall be attached to the accounts or there shall be inserted
at the foot of the accounts a reference to the report.

A copy of the accounts and of all documents annexed thereto including the reports of the Directors (if any)
and the Auditor shall at least ten clear days before the date of the meeting be delivered or sent by post or
electromically to each of the registered holders and to the Auditor. Any holder may by written notice served
on the Company waive this requirement

AUDITORS
A Director shall not be capable of being appointed as an Auditor.

A person other than a retining Auditor shall not be capable of being appointed Auditor at an ordinary
general meeting unless notice of intention to nominate that person as Auditor has been given by a
Shareholder to the Company net less than fourteen clear days before the meeting and the Board shall
send a copy of any such notice to the retiring Auditor and shall give notice to the Shareholders not less
than seven clear days before the meeting PROVIDED THAT if after notice of the intention to nominate an
Auditor has been so given a meeting is cafled for a date fourteen clear days or less after such notice has
been given the requirements of this provision as to time in respect of such notice shall be deemed to have
been satisfied and the notice to be sent or given by the Company may instead of being sent or given
within the time required by this Article be sent or given at the same lime as the notice of the meeting

The first Auditor shall be appointed by the Board before the first general meeting and they shall hold office
until the first ordinary general meeting unless previcusly removed in which case the Shareholders at such
meeting may appoint the Auditor.

The Beard may fill any casual vacancy in the office of Auditor but while any such vacancy continues the
surviving or continuing Auditor (if any) may act.

The remuneration of the Auditor shall be fixed by the Company in a general meeting or in such manner
as the Company may determine except that the remuneration of any Auditor appointed by the Board shall
be fixed by the Board.

Every Auditer shall have a right of access at all times to the books accounts and documents of the
Company and as regards books accounts and documents of which the originals are not readily avaitable
shall be entitied to rely upon copies or extracts certified by an officer of the Company and shall be entitled
to require from the Board such information and explanations as may be necessary for the performance of
their duties and the Auditor shall make a report to the Shareholders on the accounts examined by them
and the report shall state whether in their opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs and whether they have been prepared in accordance with the Law.

Any Auditor shall be eligtble far re-election.
NOTICES

Any Sharehalder may notify the Company of a Relevant Elecironic Address for the purpese of his
receiving communications by Electranic Means from the Company al any time.

Any document or notice which, in accordance with these Articles, may be transmitted by the Company in
electronic form and by Electronic Means shall, if so transmitted. be deemed to be regarded as served
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immediately after it was transmitted. Proof {in accordance with the formal recornmendalions of best
practice contained in the guidance issued by the United Kingdom Instilute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) that a communication was fransmifted by Electronic Means by the Company shall be
conclusive evidence of such transmission.

A communication by Electronic Means shall not be treated as served by the Company if it is rejected by
computer virus protection arrangements

A notice may be given by the Company to any Shareholder either personally or in electronic form by
Elecirenic Means (Including publication on a website In accordance with Section 208 of the Law) or by
sending it by prepaid post addressed to such Shareholder at his registered address or if he desires that
notices shall be sent to some other address or person to the address or person nominated for such
purpose. Notices to be posled to addresses outside the Channel Islands and the United Kingdom shall so
far as practicable be forwarded by prepaid airmait

The Company shall, where no other period is specified in these Adicles. give all Shareholders sufficient
notice to enable them lo exercise their rights or comply with the terms of the notice.

Any nolice or other document, if served by post {including registered post, recorded delivery service or
ordinary letter post), shall be deemed to have been served on the second day after the day on which the
same was posled from Guemsey to an address in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of
Man and, in any other case, on the third day following that on which the same was pasted and, in each
case, exciuding any day which is a Saturday, Sunday. Good Friday, Christmas Day, bank holiday in
Guermsey, or a day appointed as a day of public thanksgiving or public mourmning in Guemsey.

Any notice or document delivered or sent by post to or left at the registered address of any Shareholder
shall notwithstanding the death disability insclvency of such Shareholder and whether the Company has
nolice thereof be deemed to have been duly served in respect of any share registered in the name of such
Shareholder as sole or jeint holder and such service shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service
of such notice or document on all persans interested (whether jointiy with or as claiming through or under
him) in any such share.

Service of a document sent by post shall be proved by showing the date of posting, the address thereon
and the fact of pre-payment.

Any notice or other document, if transmilied by Electronic Means, facsimile transmission or other similar
means which produce or enable the production of a document containing the text of the communication,
shall be regarded as served immediately after it was transmitted.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a Share by giving the notice to the joint
holder first named in the Register in respect of the Share

All Shareholders shal be deemed to have agreed lo accepl communication from the Company by
Electronic Means in accordance with Sections 523, 524 and 526 and Schedule 3 of the Law unless a
Shareholder notfies the Cornpany otherwise. Notice under this Article must be in writing and signed by
the Shareholder and delivered to the Company's Office or such other place as the Board directs.

RECORD DATES

Subject to any restriction thereon contained in the Law. for the purposes of serving nolices of meetings,
whether under the Law or under a provision in these Articles or any other instrument, the Directors may
delermine that those persons who are enlered on the Register at the close of business on a day
determined by the Direclors shall be persons who are entitled to receive such nolices provided that such
day may not be more than 21 days before the day on which the notices of the meeting are sent.
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For the purposes of determining which persons are entitled to attend or vote at a meeting, and how many
votes they may cast, the Directors may specify in the notice of the meeting a time, being not more than
48 hours, excluding any days which are not Business Days, before the time fixed for the meeting, by which
a person must be entered on the Register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in these Arlicles, changes to entries on the Register after
the time specified under Article 39.2 shall be disregarded in determining the nights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting unless the Directors in their discretion decide otherwise.

Subject to any restriclion thereon contained In the Law or in the lerms of issue of any share i the
Company, for the purposes of issuing any share, making any distribution or paying any dividend, the
Directors may determine that those persons who are entered on the Register at the close of business on
a day determined by the Directors shall be the persens who are entlitled to receive such shares, dividends
or distributions.

WINDING UP

In the event of the Company being wound up, the Liquidator will apply the assets of the Company, subject
to the provisions of the Law, in satisfaction of the costs associated with the liquidation creditors’ ctaims in
such manner and order as he thinks fit.

The assels available for distribution among the Shareholders shall then be applied in the following pricrity:-

40.2.1 firstly, in payment to the Shareholders a sum equal to the nemina! amount of the Shares held by
such holders respechively,

4022 secondly, in the payment to holders of Management Shares of sums up to the nominal amount
paid up thereon; and

40.2.3 thirdly, in payment to the Shareholders of any balance then remaining, such payment being made
in proportion to the number of shares held.

If the Company shall be wound up whether voluntarily or otherwise the Liquidator may with the authority
of a Special Resolution divide among the Shareholders in specie the whole or any part of the assets of
the Company and whether or not the assets shall consist of property of a single kind and may for such
purposes sel such value as he deems fair upon any one or more class or classes or property and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of
Shareholders. The Liquidator may with the like authority vesl any part of the assets in trustees upon such
trusts for the benefit of Shareholders as the Liquidator with the like authority shall think fit and the
liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company dissolved but so that no Shareholder shall
be compelled to accept any shares or other assets in respect of which there is any outstanding liability.

If thought expedient subject 1o the obtaining of any necessary consents or sanctions any such division
made in accordance with Article 40.2 above may be olherwise than in accordance with the then existing
rights of the Shareholders and in particular any class may be given preferential or special rights or may
be excluded altogether or in part but in default of any such provision the assets shall subject to the rights
of the holders of shares issued with special rights or privileges or on special condilions be distributed
rateably according to the amount paid up on the shares.

In case any of the shares to be divided as aforesaid involve a liability 1o calls or otherwise any person
enlitied under such division to any of the said shares may within fourteen clear days after the passing of
the Special Resolution by notice in wriling direct the Liquidator to sell his proportion and pay him the net
proceeds and the Liquidator shall if practicable act accordingly.

Where the Company is proposed o be or is in course of being wound up and the whole or part of its
business or property is proposed to be transferred or sold to another company (the "transfaree™ the
Liquidator of the Company may, with the sanction of an Ordinary Resoluticn, conferring either a general
authority on the Liquidator or an authority in respect of any parficular arrangement, receive in
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compensation or part compensation for the transfer or sale, shares policies or other like interests in the
transferee for distribution among the Shareholders of the Company or may enter into any other
arrangement whereby the Shareholders of the Company may, in lieu of receiving cash, shares, policies
or other like interests, or in addition thereto, participate in the profits of or receive any other benefits from
the transferee.

DURATION

The Company is of unfimited duration subject to the right of (but not the obligation on} the Directors in
their absolute discretion to convene an extraordinary generat meeting of the Company to be held within
25 days after a Redemption Date at which a Special Resolution may be proposed requiring that the
Company be wound up voluntarily. At such meeting the vote of those Shareholders entitled to vote shall
be taken by poll and the provisions of Article 41.2 shall apply in relation to such vole.

At any such extraordinary general meeting, those hoiders of shares who (being individuals) are present
in person or by proxy or (being corporations) are present by proxy or by duly autharised representative
and entitled to vote and who vote in favour of the resolution shall, on a poll, have such number of votes in
respect of each share held by them (including fracticns of a vote) so that the aggregate number of voles
cast in favour of the resolution :s four times the aggregate number of votes cast against the resolution and
each Shareholder presentin person or by proxy and entilled to vote and who voles against such resolution
shall an a poll have one vote for each share held.

INDEMNITY

To the greatest extent possible under the Law, every Director Managing Direclor manager agent Auditor
Secretary and other officer or servant for the lime being of the Company and any trustee (if any} for the
time being acting in relalion to any of the affairs of the Company and each of their respect:ve heirs and
executors shall be fully indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions expenses and liabilities which they or their respective heirs or executors may incur by reason of
any contract entered into or any act in or about the execution of their respeclive offices or trusts except
such (if any) as they shall incur by or through their own negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of
trust respectively and none of them shall be answerable for the acls receipts neglects or defaults of the
athers of them or for joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity or for any bankers or other person
with whom any moneys or assels of the Company may be lodged or depesited for safe custody or for any
bankers or other persons into whose hands any money or assets of the Company may come of for any
defects of title of the Company to any property purchased or for insufficiency or deficiency of or defect in
title of the Company 10 any security upon which any moneys of the Company shall be placed out or
invested or for any loss misfortune or damage resulting from any such cause as aforesaid or which may
happen in or about the execution of their respective offices or trusts except the same shall happen by or
through their own pegligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust.

INSURANCE

Without prejudice to any other provisions of these Articles, the Direclors may exercise all the powers of
the Company to purchase and maintain insurance for or for the benefit of any persons who are or were at
any time Directors, officers. employees or auditors of the Company, or of any other body (whether or not
incorporated) which is or was its subsidiary of the Company (together "Group Companies”} or otherwise
associated with the Company or any Group Company of in which the Company or any such Group
Company has or had any interest, whether direct or indirect, or of any predecessor in business of any of
the foregoing, including {without prejudice to the generalily of the foregoing) insurance against any cosls,
charges, expenses, losses or liabilities suffered or incurred by such persons in respect of any act or
omission in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of their duties and/or the exercise or
purported exercise of their powers and discretions and/or ctherwise in relation to or in connection with
their duties, powers or cffices in relation to the Company or any such other body.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS
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The Board shall determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places and under what
conditions the accounts books and documents of the Company shall be open to inspection and no
Shareholder shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document except as conferred by
the Law or authorised by the Board.

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES

These Articles may from time to time be amended in accordance with the Part IV of the Law PROVIDED
THAT no such amendment shall be made unless prior written approval has been sought and obtained
from the Bermuda Stock Exchange for such amendment (including any deletion or addition) for so long
as any shares are listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Company or its agents shall, if required to do so under the legislation of any junsdiction to which any
of them are subject, be entitled to release or disclose any informalion in their possession regarding the
Company or its affairs or any of its Shareholders (or their direct or indirect owners or account holders),
including without limitation information required under any Tax Reporting Regime. In making payments to
or for the benefit of Shareholders, the Company may also make any withholding or deduction required by
any Tax Reporting Regime,



